A

Riverine China Hoildings Limited
BIPEZEKRBR2E

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(R ESRBEMBINERDR)
Stock Code BRI : 1417

>

SNEENENERRNERINERN

————

) L‘
)

»

201 9 ;ninﬁual Report



CONTENTS B

2 Financial Highlights 118  Report of the Directors
MBHE EEEgHEE
3 Definitions 142  Independent Auditor’s Report
Bx B 3% BRD R
1 Corporate Information 150  Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
NAEE# and Other Comprehensive Income
13 The Group meEakEMERRE
rEE 152  Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
15 Environmental, Social and Governance fra AR &
Report 154  Consolidated Statement of Changes in
RE - HERERRE Equity
68 Chairman’s Statement REEREEER
FTREHREE 156  Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
71 Management Discussion and Analysis HELRERER
EBEENwWERON 159  Notes to Financial Statements
87 Directors and Senior Management BY 75 S 2k M 5T
EENERER 264  Five Years Financial Summary
102  Corporate Governance Report hFEMBHE

REEAME

)

-
-
-
-
|
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
|
-




F.INANCIA.L HI:GHLIGHTS

MBEEE

For the year ended 31 December

Operating results (RMB’000)
Revenue

Gross profit

Profit for the year

Profitability (%)
Gross profit margin
Net profit margin
Return on equity
Return on total assets

Liquidity

Current ratio (time)

Quick ratio (time)

Trade receivables turnover
(days)

Trade payables turnover
(days)

Capital adequacy
Gearing ratio (%)
Net debt to equity ratio

Per share data

Earnings per share — basic
(RMB)

Dividend per share (HKD)
— Interim
— Final
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BZE12A31ALEE
2019 2018 Increase/(Decrease)
ot Bl — T — )\ F EH/ (T %)
EEXB(AR%E TR %
0 &= 481,530 392,258 89,272 22.8
EH 74,171 67,383 6,788 10.1
F A5 F 20,481 26,240 (5,759) (21.9)
2 F £ (%)
EHE 15.4 17.2 (1.8) (10.5)
) & 43 6.7 (2.4) (35.8)
P # [B] 3y 8.5 10.9 (2.4) (22.0)
BEERRE 4.5 6.8 (2.3) (33.8)
REBES
BN & (%) 1.4 2.2 (0.8) (36.4)
REL X (1F) 1.4 2.2 (0.8) (36.4)
FEW AR IE M A8 X &
(XR) 69.4 65.1 43 6.6
BOENFERE XY
(X) 57.3 62.6 (5.3) (8.5)
EXR R KF
EEBELE(%) 25.7 8.3 17.4 209.6
SFEEE R L X Net cash Net cash
position position N/A N/A
FREMRR FREMN oy i A
BREE
BREN —ER
(AR®IT) 0.04 0.06 (0.02) (33.3)
BRREET)
— i 0.008 0.01 (0.002) (20.0)
— KH — _ _ _



" DEFINITIONS
Bx

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise RAFHF  BRXESZSHFFAEIN THFA=E
requires, the following terms and expressions shall have K FEBE B W TRE - Z X[ F X H
the meanings set out below. The English translation of fEEN RG] BMEEFLERBFZH -
company names in Chinese or another language which

are marked with “*" for identification purposes only.

“Anhui Bund”

[ BN ]

“"Anhui Pu Bang”

[% ®Om F )

“"Anhui Pu Jing”

[ BB = |

“Audit Committee”

[(EZEZEE]

"Bengbu Zhi Xin”

[ 18 B {5 ]

Anhui Bund Property Management Company Limited* (% &1 4N ¥ %
EEAHRAA), a limited liability company established in the PRC on
26 December 2005, a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and indirectly owned as to 51% by the Company and as to 49% by
Anhui Wan Tou Property Limited* (Z @B BEXZBR EME A F]), the
connected person at the subsidiary level
TRNEMEEER QA - —HR2005F 12268 EFBE K LA R
BEERT RARFFL2ENBRAT  AXARARLZHRKREXAR
EERR(RMEB AR EENREA L) D BIEEEB51% Kk49%

Anhui Pu Bang Property Management Company Limited* (% Ui F ¥
¥ZEIE AR AT, a limited liability company established in the PRC on
4 August 2015, the associated company of the Company and indirectly
owned as to 49% by the Company and 51% by an independent third
party
ZHBEAMXEERARAF - —HR2015F8H48 £ FEI K LK) B R
BEERF BRARABECE  AXARAE—E2BILE=755HE
HBEA9% K% 51%

Anhui Pu Jing Property Company Limited* (Z B HEEWEBRAF), a
limited liability company established in the PRC on 10 May 2017, a non
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and indirectly owned as to 51%
by the Company and as to 49% by Bozhou Cultural Tourism Limited* (=
Mo X bikEERGREERA)
ZHAESWEARDA - —HR2017F5810BEFEKIHERE
ERA BRARFIEZEMB AR - AARRA M= XL IK I EE
BREERR S R MEEEE51%Kk49%

the audit committee of the Company

ARAREZEZES®

Bengbu Zhi Xin Property Company Limited* (18 B MW E AR A7),
a limited liability company established in the PRC on 13 September 2004,
a joint venture company of the Company and indirectly owned as to 58%
by the Company and 42% by two independent third parties
HETEEVWERRLAR > —HEEPER2004FIA13EK LN AR
BEERA  BREARARIEERERT  AARRAIREEHEAFS% KAMA
BYE=SEEEBR2%

LB BR AR
45 2019




DEFINITIONS
Bx

“Board” or “Board of
Directors”

[Exg B

"BVI"
[RE R B & 18

“CG Code”

b %

il

ya ST All 15

“Company”

“Connected person”

[ AL i
“Controlling

Shareholder(s)”
[ 12 % A% 3R i

“Director(s)”

=3 i1
“GFA"

[ 55 H 75 | i
"Group”

[A £ E | i

"Hefei Zheng Wen”

[&AEER X 5
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the board of Directors of the Company
KRAEEEG

the British Virgin Islands
RERLES

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules

70 AR RIBH 8% 1 70 P # 4 % EA 5T Bl

Riverine China Holdings Limited (&I A E1ZE B BR A7), an exempted
company incorporated under the laws of Cayman Islands with limited
liability on 27 July 2016
IR BEERERAF - R2016F7A278REREH S EETMA L
MEHREEREELA

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

H B L8 AP T 5% a6 B OR &

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules and, in the context
of the Company, means a group of controlling shareholders of the
Company, namely Partner Summit, Vital Kingdom, Mr. Xiao, Source Forth,
Mr. Fu, Pine Fortune and Mr. Chen

EALTRAMETZANRE  BRARQRAME  BARAKERK
R&EE a5 2 HE4E R BEXE4E ERMREAE

the director(s) of the Company
RABHESE

gross floor area
EEmB

the Company and its subsidiaries
ZANYNSTDN@ TN /N

Hefei Zheng Wen Bund Property Management Company Limited* (& BT
BN EEIEBR AT, a limited liability company established in
the PRC on 14 April 2004, a joint venture company of the Company and
indirectly owned as to 50% by the Company and 50% by an independent
third party

ERETBRXINEMEERBBERQA - —BEFRBENR2004F47148 K
YHERBEERA  RARAALEERA AARAREEAF0%
MABIE=HREEEE0%



“HK$"” Or “HK dollars” or
"HK cents”

[T skl 18
“Hong Kong” or “HK"
(& 18
“"Hong Xin”

[3h R 18
“Leading Way"

(37 B |
“Listing”

[T 18
“Listing Rules”

[Em A A |
“Model Code”

& 2T Al Ec
“Mr. Chen”

[BR 554 | ¥
“Mr. Fu”

&4 18
"Mr. Xiao”

[H & ] |

" DEFINITIONS
Bx

Hong Kong dollars and cents, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BILAEN BEHNEEEY

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
REARLIMEFBRFRTHRER

Hong Xin Environmental Group Co., Ltd. (BATMRIRIBEEEBR QA , a
limited liability company established in the PRC on 5 July 2000, a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and is indirectly owned as to
51% by the Company and as to 49% by independent third parties
SR BEEFR AR - B2000F7ASAERBK L AEREE AR
RAARIMFEL2EMBRAR  BARAMEEREENN%  BYE=F#%A
49%

Leading Way Holdings Limited ( 32 & & B & R 2 & ), a company
incorporated under the laws of Hong Kong on 20 May 2016 with limited
liability, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sino Ease, and an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
VEEBEBRAR - —BRN2016F58208 RIBEF B ERTMALED
BRAR  RPLXHNE2EMBRRIRARGINEEZEZEWNE AR

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
RO RZAER T

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BZXAESZEMAR - BTEER - MR AEMT B

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
FHRAIMEETAE EHETAEFETIEFRHNRLETA

Mr. Chen Yao (F3£), the Controlling Shareholder
PREESCAE - IERIRE

Mr. Fu Qichang (2 H &), the Controlling Shareholder, vice-chairman of
the Board and an executive Director

BHEXRE BERERR EFSAIFERNTES

Mr. Xiao Xingtao (H #%&), the Controlling Shareholder, chairman of the
Board and an executive Director

BEBELE ZEERRR BEFSIFRITES

LR AR AR
45 2019




DEFINITIONS
Bx

“Mr. Xiao YQ"
[BETF¥BHhE] i1

“Nanjing Songzhu”

(7 AR AT Ec

U

“Nantong Pu Sheng’

[ @ s ] &
“Ningbo Plaza”
[ R T &35 | £

“Ningbo Puyong”

28 )2 R % | Ec

“Partner Summit”

6 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Mr. Xiao Yugiao (B T &), an executive Director, chief executive officer,
and the son of Mr. Xiao

BHYBEE RTEFRTRABRLEEENT T

Nanjing Songzhu Property Management Company Limited* (& &= A
MYEEIEEMRAA), a company incorporated in the PRC and an
independent Third Party

AR YMEEEBRAR, —HAEREGTMKZIHRRL RETE
=k

Nantong Pu Sheng Intelligent Property Company Limited* (& & Jf &% &
BEME AR AR]), a limited liability company established in the PRC on
18 October 2017, a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
indirectly owned as to 51% by the Company and as to 49% by Nantong
Sheng He Property Management Limited* (R E MY EEEFR QA A])
MBEEERYERRAR  —HER2017FI10R18HETEKIN A
REERR ARFAINEZTEMBRR  HARAILREERNYESE
B AR AR 5 B 5 A 51% %49%

Ningbo Plaza Property Management Company Limited* (Z 8 T ¥ 1 /& 35
Y ¥E R BRAR]), alimited liability company established in the PRC on
20 January 1995, an associated company of the Company and indirectly
owned as to 49% by the Company and 51% by an independent third
party

BERETHTESMEERARAR  —EERBERNI995F1H20H K
VHEBERBEERR  RARABMENCE  AARAREEFI9% KA
BYE=HEEEE%

Ningbo Puyong Property Management Company Limited* (28 i % %)
¥R AR AT, a limited liability company established in the PRC on
15 August 2018, a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
indirectly owned as to 51% by the Company and as to 49% by Ningbo
Yongbang Enterprise Management Consulting Company Limited* (% )8 %&
HBEEEREMABRAA)
ERBEVERBABERLR - —BR2018F8AISHEFBK IMEAE
REMERR ARAIWNEZTEMBRR  HARGAREREACEE
2 AAR AR DRI EE %A% K49%

Partner Summit Holdings Limited (& & % % B R 2 A)), a company
incorporated under laws of the BVI on 16 June 2016 with limited liability,
which is owned as to 87% by Vital Kingdom, 10% by Source Forth and
3% by Pine Fortune and is the Controlling Shareholder
ERERARLR - —HR2016F6H16ARBABR AFEEET
MZEBRAT > AEMH  REEREBEDREBE7% » 10% K&3%
BERERKR



“Period”
[ 58 A |

“Pine Fortune”

= 18]

“PRC" or “China”

[ B

U

"Pujiang Holding’

[R T 4% B

“Pujiang Property”

BipnyEN

“RMB” or “Renminbi”

AR

“SFO”

[7& 7 K ' &l

“Shanghai Aidepu”

" DEFINITIONS
Bx

the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31HIEFE

Pine Fortune Global Limited ( & %8 & ¥k & B 2 & ), a company
incorporated under laws of the BVI on 16 June 2016 with limited liability,
which is wholly-owned by Mr. Chen and is the Controlling Shareholder
EHEBRXRARLA - —HR2016F6A16ARBEABR XS EET
MKW BERAGR - DHIERRREREELEHESR

the People’s Republic of China which, for the purposes of this annual
report, excludes Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

PEARANE  ERAFETE  FTREEE RPRAE

Shanghai Pujiang Holding Company Limited* (L &8 T AE R A7),
a limited liability company established in the PRC on 18 June 2007, which
was beneficially owned as to 87% by Mr. Xiao, 10% by Mr. Fu and 3%
by Mr. Chen
EEBIERBRARA - —ER2007F6A18AERBRYHARE
ERE DRBEEE BEEMKRELEESHBGS7%  10% KR3% K
&

Shanghai Pujiang Property Company Limited* (L /88T ¥ B R A7),
a limited liability company established in the PRC on 2 December 2002
and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
FEBIMERRAR > —HAEPBENR2002F12A2BK LN ARE
ERF] RARANHEEZENB QA

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

ARE - R E % KA

Securities and Future ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
(BHERBEGEOEBENESTIE)  ETEEE] - MR i
7 B

Shanghai Aidepu Trading Company Limited* (/8 ¥ 8 & Z AR A 7)),
a limited liability company established in the PRC on 23 November 2006
and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
FBEYEEHEARAR - —HMN20065F11A238 £ P B LK B R
BEERR REARFBEEZENE AT

LR AR AR
45 2019




DEFINITIONS

Bx

“Shanghai Bund”

[ E78 5N |

“Shanghai Bund Green”

[ £ NE (L]

“Shanghai Bund Ke Pu”

[/ 9NERHR

“Shanghai Hong Ji”

(LB &

“Shanghai Jie Gu”

i

[EENA]

“Shanghai Jiu Yi”

[EBAMRE]

8 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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B

Shanghai Bund Property Company Limited* (L /8 5MN# ¥ 2GR A F)), a
limited liability company established in the PRC on 8 April 1996 and an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
FEMNEMEBRAR - —HEPBENI996F4R8HK I EREE
NAE RARTNEEEEMNE AT

Shanghai Bund Green Construction Company Limited* (_t & 9M# 4% 1t
AR AT, alimited liability company established in the PRC on 10
August 2004 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
EBINEZLERERBRAR - —HAEFRBEIR2004F8R10BK L8 A
REMERLQR BRARAINEEZENE QR

Shanghai Bund Ke Pu Engineering Management Company Limited* (I
EINERDE TIREE AR AR]), a limited liability company established
in the PRC on 30 November 2004, a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and indirectly owned as to 97% by the Company and as to 3%
by an independent third party
FEINERDBEIIEERARAGF - —HR2004F11 300 £ # B K 2
WMEREBEERR  RARAMEEFZENMEBEAR  AARAHERE
7% KB —EBILE=TTFHE3%

Shanghai Hong Ji Property Management Company Limited* (/&4 & %)
¥ EEABMRAA), a limited liability company established in the PRC on
18 March 2016 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
LEUEMEERRRAR  —EERBENR2016F3818HK LN A
REMERQR BAEARAINEEZENE QR

Shanghai Jie Gu Technology Company Limited* (/&M AR AR A A,
a limited liability company established in the PRC on 3 May 2016 and an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
FEMTARMBRERAA  —HMEFBER2016F5A3BX I EREE
NAE BRARTNEEZEEEMEB AT

Shanghai Jiu Yi Property Management Company Limited* (/8 A 1&%)
¥ EEBEMRAA), alimited liability company established in the PRC on 8
April 1996, a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and indirectly
owned as to 51% by the Company and as to 49% by an independent
third party

FEBAGYMEERARAR > —EHERBERIO6F4AHK I AR
EERF REARAMNIELZEMBLRA > AARRAIHEEHEAEN% R —
LB E = HEAEL9%



“Shanghai Puyun”

[LiBmE] Ec

“Shanghai Qiang Sheng”

[Eg®AE] 18

“Shanghai Rui Zheng”

[ 8 3 1F |

“Shanghai Xin Shi Bei”

[ L mit] 18

“Shanghai Xin Di"”

[ E )8R | &
“Share(s)"”
[ B 1] it

" DEFINITIONS
Bx

Shanghai Puyun Environmental Technology Company Limited* (/& &
IRERHE B R AR, a limited liability company established in the PRC on
29 November 2017, a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
wholly owned by Shanghai Jiu Yi

FPEBBRBEHEARAA S —BEFRBENR2017F11A29BK I E
REMERQR - BREARAIEZEMNBAR  ALBANKEZEHRE

Shanghai Qiang Sheng Property Company Limited* (E /84 EAR
72 A]), a limited liability company established in the PRC on 17 December
1992, an associated company of the Company and indirectly owned as to
30% by the Company and as to 70% by an independent third party
FBEBEMEFAERLAR  —HEPEMINFRZATTEXNINERE
ERA RARAMERLE  BARGBEEEI0%EBEBELE=F
BZEBT0%

Shanghai Pujiang Rui Zheng Property Company Limited* (/8% )T i IE
Y% BB A A]), a limited liability company established in the PRC on 8
January 2004 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
EBRAIHREMEBRAF  —EEFBENR2004F1A8AK LA R
BEAERA AARBIMNEEZEWE AR

Shanghai Xin Shi Bei Enterprise Management Service Co., Ltd* (Lt )8 #
I EEE AR AR, alimited liability company established in the PRC
on 6 July 2005, an associated company of the Company and indirectly
owned as to 27.5% by the Company and 52.75% and 19.75% by two
Independent Third Parties

FEFTICEXERBERAA - —HEFBENR2005F7A6HK I E
REMLRAR RARABEDRE BHARAMEEF27.5% K B M E
BB =7 #BE52.75%F19.75%

Shanghai Dong Fang Xin Di Commercial Service Company Limited* (/&
B E SRS AR AR), a limited liability company established in
the PRC on 10 December 2015, an associated company of the Company
and indirectly owned as to 45% by the Company and as to 55% by an
independent third party

FPERAMEEBRBEERAAD - —BEFTER2015F12108 K =
MERBEERA  RARAKERCE  AARAREREBLI% LHE

N

M E=7 REERS%

share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
RAABIRAREREEINAETHEBER

LB BR AR
45 2019




DEFINITIONS
Bx

“Share Option Scheme”

[BE A% AT 2l i1
“Shareholder(S)”

[ A% =R J i1
“Sino Ease”

[ £ | bii

“Source Forth”

[ R EX ¥
“sq. ft.”
75 R ] 18
“sq. m.”
75K ] 15

"Stock Exchange” or
“Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”

(X2 AT Sk [ & BB AP 48

“Vital Kingdom”

"%" or "Per Cent”
[%] &
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the share option scheme conditionally adopted by the Company on 15
November 2017
ARRAT 201711 A15 8 B 16 14 5 4% & B8 A 4 =1 8

holder(s) of issued Share(s)
B EEFE A

Sino Ease Global Limited (FZ3REK B R AF]), a company incorporated
under laws of the BVI on 16 June 2016 with limited liability, which is
directly wholly-owned by the Company

FRIRIBER AT - —ER2016F6HA16BRBEEBE RHESEARET
MKZBWBERAGT  RARANEEZENE AR

Source Forth Limited (RBXB R A F]), a company incorporated under
laws of the BVI on 8 June 2016 with limited liability, which is wholly-
owned by Mr. Fu and is the Controlling Shareholder

RRBRAR  —ER2016F6ASHREBEEBREXESIMKILINE
RAR - DHEBELEEL2ERE  BERERKRE

square feet

FHR

square metre

FHK

the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

EEBMAERIMARARA

Vital Kingdom Investments Limited (£ & & B R A7), a company
incorporated under laws of the BVI on 17 May 2016 with limited liability,
which is wholly-owned by Mr. Xiao and is the Controlling Shareholder
ZHEKRERRRA - —ER2016F5A17TERBERBRE X BHSEET
MZHERAR - DHEEELZ2ERER  BERERKRRE

per centum or percentage
AL
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HEADQUARTER IN THE PRC
14th Floor, Jiushi Tower

28 South Zhongshan Road
Shanghai, PRC
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Cheung Kam Mei, Helen
Mr. Jia Shaojun

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Xiao Yugiao
Mr. Jia Shaojun

LEGAL ADVISERS
Cheung & Choy, Solicitors & Notaries

AUDITOR
Ernst & Young

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd.
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN
ISLANDS

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

Cricket Square

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road east

Hong Kong

WEBSITE ADDRESS

WWW.riverinepm.com

SECURITIES CODE
Equity: 1417.hk

COMPANY ENQUIRES

Email: ir@ppmc.com.cn

12 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

REWE
KexXEXL
BELERAE

EERE
MT B L
BB

EEEE
SRS FEEEE FA

B ED
2K G R B FE A P

FEERRIT
LEBRERRITBRMNBRAF
FERTT(FB)ERQA

MEREROVEFERAR

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

EEROCBEERLSE
HEBAEBELARAT
&5

2[5 K8 ®E1835

A M 5418

48 1t

WwWWw.riverinepm.com

& 2 R
P EE 1 1417.hk

AREEHN

B I - ir@ppmc.com.cn



The Group is a property management service provider
in the PRC, mainly engaged in property management
service for high-end non-residential properties in the
PRC.

The Group provides a wide range of property
management services and value-added services to a
variety of properties, mainly in Shanghai. The services
also expand into other regions including Tianjin, Anhui,
Zhejiang, Jiangsu, Henan, Fujian, Hubei and Hunan
provinces. The managed properties can generally be
classified into six categories based on nature and usage,
which are comprised of (i) public properties (including
public arenas such as cultural venues, stadiums,
exhibition halls and public transportation properties such
as rail station and airport etc.); (i) office buildings and
hotels; (iii) commercial establishments (including shopping
malls, commercial and entertainment complexes); (iv)
government properties; (v) residential properties; and (vi)
others (including schools, land parcels, industrial areas
and properties under construction).

The property management services can be broadly
divided into two areas: standard property management
services (engineering, repair and maintenance services,
customer services, security services, and cleaning and
gardening services); and value-added services including
various kinds of consultancy services relating to or
ancillary to property management.

The Group charges fees predominantly on a lump sum
basis, pursuant to which, customers pay a lump sum
for property management services and at the same
time, the Group bear all costs and expenses involved in
the management of the property or facility. On a few
occasions, fees are charged on a fixed remuneration
basis, pursuant to which customers will pay a fixed
management fees, and at the same time, bear all costs
and expenses involved in the property management
themselves.

The Group generally charges customers with property
management fees, which are mainly calculated based
on the GFA of individual managed properties. These are
fees related to revenue-bearing GFA. On the other hand,
the Group also charges customers for a particular single
type of property management services or other valued-
added services based on a fixed agreed price without
making reference to the managed properties’ GFA.
These are fees related to non-revenue bearing GFA. In
this connection, the GFA of the managed properties can
be broadly divided into revenue-bearing GFA and non-
revenue bearing GFA.

THE GROUP ’

REHE

AEBATEMEEERGHER B
ERTHERBFEEMEREMEETIRRY

AEERTRERNDEREZEDXER
R MIBERY  ZEVEITBLURLE -
BAPTELEZERERERRERLMLE - B
RFE-LZR-HT T&  Am- 'E 4
ERHEE  AEENEEYE —RATRE
HUEEFBEDRAEER - BO)ARYE (8
BXEGHR RBEERREESZQITIGEN
NRERIERESENRIBYE) (R
AREBEBE (NHEFAR(BREDS B
ELRREFAR) (WBREDE: WEEY
X RVEMYEEFEER MR TXRE
ERERYE) -

AEBENMEEERBAIAR D HMEHDE
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Jiushi tower Jiushi Xijiao Villa

(AEXE) (AEERIEE)

14 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERN;AN(EE-REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Introduction to the Report

Riverine China Holdings Limited (“Riverine China”, “the
Company” and “we"” or “us”) is pleased to publish the
third Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
the Company (“this Report”), which aims to disclose
in a transparent and public manner the Company’s
performance in the past year in relation to the
environment, society and governance (“ESG"), in respond
to the concerns and expectations of stakeholders
regarding the Company’s sustainable development
management.

Scope of the Report

The report covers the Riverine China and its principle
subsidiary Shanghai Pujiang Property Company Limited
("Pujiang Property”), and other subsidiaries. The specific
statistical scope of environmental data will be described
in the “Green Activity” section.

The report covers the period from 1 January 2019 to 31
December 2019 (the “reporting period”), and part of the
contents may be extended as appropriate.

Basis of Preparation

The Company has prepared this report in accordance
with the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide ("Guide"”) under Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules
of the stock exchange of Hong Kong LIMITED. This report
has complied with all the “comply or explain” provisions
in the Guide and is based on the four reporting principles
of the guidelines: materiality, quantitative, balance and
consistency. The report is also prepared with reference to
the GR/ Standards of the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI).

RIR - HERERBE
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Source of Data and Reliability Assurance

The data and cases in this report are mainly derived
from the statistical reports and relevant documents of
the Company. This report does not contain any false
information or misleading statement, and the Company
accepts responsibility for the contents of this report as to
its authenticity, accuracy and completeness. This report
was approved by the Board on 31 March 2020 following
the confirmation by the management of the Company
and the ESG Executive Committee.

ESG GOVERNANCE

ESG Concepts

As a leading property management company in China,
Riverine China always takes it as its duty to become a
practitioner, promoter and leader of corporate social
responsibility. Since its establishment, the Company
has always adhered to the core values of "integrity,
innovation, dedication, win-win”, established a smooth
and standardized communication mechanism and a good
relationship with stakeholders, actively respond to the
expectations of stakeholders in various aspects, and
strive to achieve common development.

We continue to promote the sustainable development
of enterprises by governing enterprises according to law.
We plan social responsibility from the aspects of quality
service, benefit creation, scientific and technological
innovation, employee development, safety supervision,
environmental protection and community public welfare,
and carry out a series of social responsibility practices to
create corporate value together with stakeholders.

ESG Governance Structure

The Company is committed to reducing the impact of
ESG related risks to our sustainability, and has set up a
top-down ESG governance system, which will be initiated
by the Board of Directors of the Company, review by the
ESG Executive Committee and implemented by the ESG
Working Group to clarify the division of responsibilities
from management to implementation and ensure a better
integration of ESG concepts into the corporate strategic
planning and operational decision making process.

16 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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During the Reporting Period, the ESG Executive MRIMEHM  ESGHITZECFHNULTHA
Committee reviewed and discussed the focus of RIAIFEHRE TEFEZHHEBBESGERER
sustainable development work, as well as the operation HETTIEN  HMRAUBBEXE TIEZE AR
status of the management system related to ESG, in ¥R\ N WH KL ERNZAEE S 2 8
order to ensure the sustainable development work is in 2 EEFF

line with the Company’s current business development,

and to effectively respond to stakeholders’ expectations

and concerns.

Board of Directors =&

Main Responsibilities:
Responsible for assessing and determining ESG-related risks
Ensuring that the Company establishes an appropriate and
effective ESG risk management and internal control system
Examining and approving ESG-related policies and reports

ESG Executive Committee
ESGHITZEE

Main Responsibilities: FER=
Responsible for implementing ESG risk management and internal control
BEHTESGRARE IR KA EPEL1E
Guiding the work of ESG team and reporting to the Board of Directors
IEEESG/NETIEY FHRESE
Examining and approving the ESG reports and ensuring the accuracy of
performance indicator data

FEHLESGHR TS © FERARIRIRBUR M BRI

ESG Working Group ESGI{E/)Nd

Main Responsibilities: FTERE

e Responsible for collecting ESG-related data . EESGHEBEIR MK ETRE RS
and preparing reports Tt
Reporting to the Executive Committee TEHRNITEESER © LABIARAA
regularly to help the Company assess and A R EEESGRKREE M ASPESIE R
determine whether the ESG risk management HELAEREN
and internal control system is appropriate and
effective

WIFRERARRT 17
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Stakeholders Engagement

The Company regards stakeholders as companions in
the journey of enterprise development. We attach great
importance to the opinions of stakeholders and look
forward to working with all stakeholders to create value
in the process of improving the CSR performance of our
Company. We identified the following six main types of
stakeholders who had decision-making rights or influence
over the Company and a close relationship with us:

Employee

BT
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NEHEELT 2R
ARBEMEEE T BEEERLIENRTT
E-BMeEERNGEBINER N2
ERAARRBCEHEETERNERSD
HEMNEABIREBETAEER - HMAM
MHARBAARRELFEN  BRME
BRI H AT NBENE AR

Shareholder/
Investor

BRFR/REE

Riverine China

L E

Community

HE

Supplier

HER
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Government
and regulatory
authority
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To understand the expectations and requirements of AT ZAEBEIHHEHEER  HMER
stakeholders, we actively communicate with stakeholders BB ZERBHZH BB HRFTERE @ I8
through various channels to improve ESG performance FESGXRIE @ W EHiftiEE - TRERT
and respond regularly. The table below shows the issues 7N ¥ &5 B3 /A & I 25 48 B8 77 P 8 )% &0 & =8 J2 48
of concern to each stakeholder and their respective BREBFT R °

communication methods in the reporting period.

Stakeholders Expectations Communication Methods Frequency of
and Requests Communication
MEEEE BB EFR BEAA BERAR
Government and e Compliance of operations e Information submission e Regular
regulatory authority e Safety and environment protection ¢ Conversation with e Regular
e Payment of taxes regulatory authority
¢ Promotion of local economy
BRFHEEEHRE s ARESR o ERWMK o EH
o BEIRR s EEMBYHE o EH
o BT

° %i)); ﬁ_j,zﬁ/}q

Shareholder/Investor e Revenue and return e Company announcement e Irregular
e Business development e General Meeting e Reqular
¢ Compliance of operations e Site visit e |rregular
e ESG governance e Regular report e Regular

R/ REE o Wz MElR o RAINE o NEH
o XBER e REXE o TH
s BREE s BEMER o NEH
o ESGIHE s EHWmE o EH

Client (Property owner, ¢ Quality of service and satisfaction e Telephone communication e Irregular

tenant, property of the property owner e Joint meeting e Regular
user, etc.) e Communication with property e Annual meeting e Reqular
owner/user e Appointed visit e |rregular

e Integration between business and
local community development
¢ Compliance and legitimacy of

operations
ER(EX HP Y o BEmERZFRER o FEAER o NEH
XEAESE) o XX /FREED o MESH o EH
s ¥RHEEMHRBERERMS s FEER o FH
s SEAHEE o EHIED o NEH

BILIPEERAERAF 19
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Stakeholders Expectations Communication Methods Frequency of

Communication

and Requests

MEEEL HA 2 B 5k R BEAR BEAR

Supplier Lawful operation and quality Conference with supplier Regular
standards Online survey on opinions Irregular
Fair and reasonable treatment of Audit and assessment Irregular
business partners Bidding activities Irreqular
Compliance and legitimacy of
operations
Quality of service and satisfaction
of the property owner

e HEFSEZELERmERE MEDEE i 5
EBRHERTABENGFE BMErERASL TEH
BEAHRES Bz L E TEH
REREERETREE BREBED T E H

Employee Employees’ welfare and benefits Employee representative Regular
Staff safety and health meeting Irreqular
Legitimate recruitment and use of Company activities Irregular
workforce Letter and visit Irreqular
Staff training and education Suggestion box
Quality of service and satisfaction
of the property owner

BT BIFBERER BIR®RKSE i 5
BETRFEREZS RAEEH TE H
AEAHRATL (=il TEH
BEIREEHE EEM TEH
RERERETREE

Community Community environment Community Irreqular
Charity and public welfare communication meeting Irregular
Community contributions Visit and investigation Irregular
Compliance of operations Press release/

announcement

it @ HERE HEERE TE H
BERT JEERE TEH
=B R ik YN TEH
AREE
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Materiality Assessment

Materiality assessment is a key factor in identifying
the risks and opportunities of an enterprise and
in formulating business strategies and decisions.
The Company continued to improve the materiality
assessment methods and judgment processes, ensure
the full disclosure of issues related to the Company's
sustainable development, and respond to the concerns of
different stakeholders on the Company’s performance of
social responsibility.

Materiality Assessment Steps

Identification of
potential important
issues

B BEEERMEE

Based on the Company's
existing business,
comprehensive ESG Reporting
Guide disclosure requirements,
ESG management priorities of
the industry, we selected
related ESG issues covering
environment, employment
management, compliance
management and social
contribution.

Survey on
stakeholders

N ERS AE

¢ Internal and external
stakeholders were invited to
rank the materiality of the
potential ESG issues through
various forms such as
anonymous online
questionnaires and interviews,
and their opinions and
expectations on
the Company's ESG governance
were collected. According to
the survey results, the materiality
was sorted out.

5

RIR - HERERBRE

ERMEENMG

EEZME AN EE XA R RS E R
REIFRERBORKNERREER - XA A

FETEE2HHSR

AT A EAERE

RREENEBELANTSEEEEABHE
BIERRAA SRS HARA BT S E A

HY BT B o

EENS

il

Review on ESG
materiality
by management
EEEEH
ESG EEMZE

The management of the Group
reviews and confirms the
priority of ESG issues based on
the strategic development
direction of the Group.

5 [ P AR 4
T[] ERZAHER ESG %
BEEHT °

BRLE

Respond to
materiality

ElfEE R4 HE

The key points to be disclosed
in the report were determined
according to the priority;
BRESEHHFRERSEAD
MR =D

The key concerns of
stakeholders were analyzed
and the ESG governance plan
were determined.
DR ERRDESE
15 - EE ESG RE RS -

FBITPBEERAERRE 21
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During the process of assessment on issues, the
Company’s annual material issues have been
determined according to the contribution to sustainable
development, the general attention of stakeholders and
the Company’s strategic development, with reference to
the advice from the Company’s management, analysis
and suggestions from internal and external experts,
analysis on media information, benchmarking studies
from domestic and foreign peer companies, and several
aspects of the Guide and the GRI Standards.

This year, the Company commissioned an independent
third-party consultant to conduct an overall materiality
assessment to the management and internal and external
stakeholders, and a questionnaire survey on 33 issues in
5 areas, including environment, employees, products and
services, community and governance. We can understand
the importance of relevant issues to all stakeholders and
businesses, form a materiality matrix, and identify the
most material issues through the statistics and analysis
of the survey results. The identification of the materiality
provides a reference for the disclosure focus of this
report, and also provides an important basis for the
Company’s future management system and the direction
of sustainable development.

22 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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After analyzing the results of the survey, we have come #KB@BFAE

up with the following materiality issues:

RIR - HERERBRE

RO RABEATEZLES

Environment Employee Product service Community Governance
BIR BT EmR% #HE R

® Use of raw materials * Employees’ welfare and  Protection of users’ e Communication with ¢ Compliance and
and its impact benefits property, health and property owner/user legitimacy of operations
o RMEHER RFE o STRHBERET safety o Xx EREER o BEAREE
¢ Waste treatment and e Staff safety and health o REBHEABFNME - e Integration between e Lawful operation and
emission reduction e BTRRELRS RERS business and local quality standards
o FEEY)ERIP R e Staff training and ¢ Quality of service and community o HEFARELS LAY
* Water resources development satisfaction of the development A
consumption and o BTIEIEERE property owner o XiFEEHMETERER e Standardized
water preservation e Legitimate recruitment o REMEEEFREE & management
o KEREFEERLTK and use of workforce o Equipment reliability o [ER(ER
o BEARAT o RIBAISEM
Materiality analysis matrix on the environmental issues
BEMEEEE D
10.0
High
v =
5 .
3 # Materiality issues
o EEMEE
< B o
AT
50 on
7
N (7]
S’ so
g & o
c I8
iR
S i
E
0.0
Low 0.0 5.0 High 10.0
& Importance for Riverine China =

HRIHENEES
® 2. Use of raw materials
and its impact

® 4. Waste treatment and
emission reduction

® 3. Water resources
consumption and water

® 1. Contribution and precautious
measures to green properties

R EYENIRARERE BEMeERAREE preservation BRI R EE ROR BE
IKEFHFE R Hik
5. Publicity campaign and ® 6. Sewage discharge ® 7. Greenhouse gas emissions
education of green concept and treatment and emission reduction
REBREEHE SSKBE R ERERE BER B SR

LR AR AR
F7 2019
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Materiality analysis matrix on the employee issues
ETREEEMSHER

10.0
High

I

Materiality issues

P
(2]

o
5.0 e o

Importance for stakeholders
HARMEASNEEY

0.0
Low 0.0 5.0 High 10.0
& Importance for Riverine China =
HRIPENEEY
® 1. Staff training e 2. Staff safety © 3. Legitimate recruitment ® 4. Employees’ sense
and development and health and use of workforce of belonging
BTHIIEER BIRERZE AEERAT BIHMB
5. Employees’ welfare ® 6. Employee Communication e 7. Employee recruitment o 8. Diversity of employees’
and benefits BIEE and team building background
BIFBIER BT RBRENER BIESZHRI
Materiality analysis matrix on the product service issues
EmREEEEEL D ITER
10.0
High PN TP
. B Materiality issues
g EEMEHE
o (2]
S o @
:2 )
cE
S R
5.0
SE (8]
22 ’ o
c 18
2
E
0.0
Low 0.0 5.0 High 10.0
(& Importance for Riverine China =
HRIPENEEREY
© 1. Quality of service ® 2. Protection of users’ o 3. Equipment reliability ® 4. Contingency plans
and satisfaction of property, health and safety BB for disaster
the property owner RECAENGE  REREZ2 KBESER
REmERETREE
5. Business ethics ® 6. Privacy of clients e 7. Consulting technology © 8. Customer complaint
[GESEE EFR innovation of intelligent handling
property and respect for EERFEE
intellectual property rights
BRI B AR AR
BEMBERE
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BEHENEEMY

Eap gzl

&3

Importance for stakeholders

Importance for stakeholders
HRARERSNEEMY

RIR - HERERBRE

Materiality analysis matrix on the community issues

HERBEERMDITER

10.0
H' h . . .
g Materiality issues
BB o
5.0
0.0
Low 0.0 5.0 High 10.0
& Importance for Riverine China =
HHIHPENEEMS
© 1. Communication with ® 2. Integration between business ® 3. Charitable donation and
property owner/user and local community development voluntary works
(E EAEEE EREEBHBERERS DEBENSEER
Materiality analysis matrix on the governance issues
N2 <]
ERREEEM S TERE
10.0
High
= [ 1)
Materiality issues
EEMEE
5.0
0.0
Low 0.0 5.0 High 10.0
E Importance for Riverine China "
HRIPENEEY
® 1. Compliance and ® 2. Suppliers’ Lawful operation ¢ 3. Standardized ® 4. Transparency of
legitimacy of operations and quality standards management operating information
AEEREE HEFSEEERRAERE BELER REBRERE
5. Internal anti-corruption e 6. Suppliers’ environmental ® 7. Fair and reasonable treatment
management and social performance of business partners
AERBEE HEFNRRELERE EBBHLTEENFE

LB BR AR
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MANAGEMENT EXCELLENCE

Major Honors

The major honors received by the Company during the
reporting period are as follows:

26

2019 Top 500 Property Service Enterprises in terms
of Comprehensive Strength (20194 [ ¥ % IR 7% &
X6 E /5005%)

2019 Leading Enterprise in Public Venue Property
Services (20196 & & 35 68 1) % PR 75 4B o5& 1 %)

2019 “Advanced Unit” of Protective Historical
Building Property Management (20194 [& [ 5 (R #&
BREYEETEILEEM])

2019 "Outstanding Organization Award” of
Shanghai International Construction Owners and
Property Management Industry Exhibition (20194
ELreBFREEXTHYEXEEREXRESE
FRESEHFEBE])

2019 Shanghai Top 100 Integrated Property Service
Enterprises 2019 E LMW ERB &8 R 1
%)

The “Dynamic Building Matrix" (“DBM") won the
31st Shanghai Outstanding Invention Bronze Award

(F=+—f@ L8 ™EF 3 %)
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Operation in Good Faith

Riverine China has been abiding by the relevant laws and
regulations of corporate governance and strictly complied
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. With honesty, legal compliance,
integrity and self-discipline as the foundation, the
Company formed a top-down policy and operation
atmosphere with the orientation of anti-embezzlement,
anti-corruption and anti-fraud. We emphasize the
honesty and integrity of our employees in all aspects
of our business and are committed to maintaining a
high level of transparency and accountability within the
Company.

The Company is strictly complied with the “Criminal Law
of the People’s Republic of China”, the "Anti-Money
Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the
"Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic
of China" and other relevant laws and regulations.
The Company has set up the Discipline Inspection and
Supervision Department to manage the related work
of fighting corruption and promoting integrity, and
formulated the Measures for the Assessment of Integrity
and Self-discipline ({B&k 2 B & 12 £ i ¥t )£)), in
which the prohibited items were listed in detail and
corresponding penalties were set up. We require the
Company’s management personnel to sign the “Letter
of Commitment on Personal Integrity and Self-discipline”
(CEAFRRBEAFHEE)) every year and use it as a
reference item of the "Year-End Performance Appraisal
Program for 2019" ({2019F E F R EMET 77 F))
to conduct performance appraisal and promote the
systematic management of anti-corruption work. In
addition, we have integrity and self-discipline clauses in
our contracts with suppliers and contractors, requiring
them to abide by the laws and be strictly disciplined in
their work.

-
.
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In daily operation, we require our employees to be
honest in performing official duties and not to abuse
power for personal interests. Once a violation is found,
the employee can report it through the hotline or
email address set up by the Company. The Company
will conduct an investigation on the reported case. In
the event of a criminal case, it will be submitted to
the judicial body after the approval by the board of
directors; otherwise, the case will be jointly handled
by relevant functions and we will seriously investigate
and rectify illegal conducts. The Company keeps highly
confidential the identity of the reporter and the reported
issues, and strictly limits the scope of knowledge of the
investigation.

During the reporting period, the Company received no
corruption proceedings against the Company or any of
its employees.

Supply Chain Management

As a sustainable property management company,
suppliers are an important part of our business chain
and a guarantee of our quality services. The Company
actively promotes the supply chain management, takes
fair and equitable cooperation attitude and implements
a standardized operation model of integrated planning,
bidding and procurement to standardize bidding and
business cooperation process; and actively communicates
with suppliers to establish cooperative relations of mutual
trust and assistance. We also attach importance to the
environmental and social performance of suppliers,
prevent and combat unfair competition, prevent potential
corruption and fraud in the supply chain, enhance
communication with suppliers, and maintain fair and just
cooperation.

For supply chain management, the Company has
formulated the “Management Manual on Service
Outsourcing”, which clearly regulates various aspects
ranging from procurement process to the entry,
assessment and hierarchical management of suppliers,
and promotes the selection and performance evaluation
system of suppliers to effectively manage potential risks
of the supply chain and improve service quality. During
the reporting period, the Company had a total of 744
suppliers.
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Service Procurement

The Company has formulated and implemented the
“Management Measures on the Evaluation of Party for
Material Procurement ({) B BEH ST FEE B IE) )"
and the “Management Measure on the Evaluation of
Party for Labor and Technical Procurement (¥ 7% ¥ 1ig
HEMSFEEEP L))", and has strictly standardized
the selection criteria and audit process of new suppliers.
We adopt unified and standardized bidding process, and
strive to be fair and equitable. In the implementation
of procurement, we give priority to the material, labor,
service and technical suppliers with the qualifications
of ISO 9001 (Quality Management Systems), I1ISO 14001
(Environmental Management System) and OHSAS18001
(Occupational Health and Safety Management System),
and adopt different selection criteria according to the
type of industry in which a supplier operates.

We continuously strengthen the management for supplier
and optimize the procurement process. Procurement
personnel searches for business related suppliers
through professional market surveys, trade fairs, etc.
We carry out supplier review work in accordance with
the comprehensive performance of suppliers (including
quality, delivery date, price, labor standards, occupational
health and safety and professional ethics, etc.), prepares
the “List of Qualified Service Providers" ({& & IR 7
H 5 ZEE)), and list qualified suppliers in the supplier
database. Based on the result of review, we divide the
qualified suppliers into three levels, i.e. Level A, Level
B and Level C, according to their qualifications ranking
from the highest to the lowest, and have developed the
corresponding procedures for drawing up and examining
and approving a contract respectively. We regularly
eliminate unqualified suppliers through supplier review,
establish a long-term and stable cooperative relationship
with excellent suppliers, and promote efficient
management process.

RIR - HERERBRE
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RIR - HERERBE

Supplier Level Level A:

To further develop partnership with the suppliers. When entering a new

labour services contract, management office should preferentially select
the suppliers from those with Level A.

EERERMBTREERE

To maintain the existing partnership, namely renewal of the contract when

To gradually reduce cooperation with the supplier. In principle, contract

GRS AR —HEREZHEBOSERE -
RABHERTELERE -
Level B:
it is expired.
BAR : FIFERANEIEREFE  BERIBER -
Level C:
wiII not be renewed when it is expired.
CHR: TR AEZETOEE

Service Supervision

The Company continuously monitors the service standard
of individual supplier to improve the service quality.
We conduct unified management of suppliers, and the
relevant departments shall supervise the work quality
of suppliers according to the contract requirements,
inspect suppliers on a sampling basis from time to time,
and report “Monthly Return of Project Management"
every month to ensure service quality of the service
suppliers meets the agreed terms of engagement. In
addition, we also regularly organize supplier exchange
meetings, mutual visits and relevant trainings, including
experience sharing, safety education, environmental
compliance and emergency response, etc., to commend
outstanding suppliers. Supplier management department
arranges interviews with the suppliers with unsatisfactory
performance to analyze the reasons, formulate and
supervise the implementation of the rectification plan
so as to help the suppliers to enhance the overall
management standard.
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BEST SERVICE

Quality Management

Riverine China has always been concerned about the
effective improvement of service quality and is committed
to providing quality property management services.
The Company has established the quality management
system since 2004. With years of persistence and efforts,
we continue to optimize our service quality control
system and has obtained the authentication of the latest
National Standard and International Quality Management
System GB/T 19001-2016/I1SO 9001:2015 “Quality
Management System Requirements”.

RIR - HERERBRE
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We have strictly abided by the relevant regulatory
provisions of property quality management, and
compiled regulatory codes such as the “Management
Manual”, the "Management Manual on Service
Outsourcing” and the "“Property Inspection Manual” and
guidelines on implementation of specific issues such as
the "Risk Control and Management Procedures” and the
“Non-conformity Management Procedures” aiming to
standardize the standards of management, review and
evaluation in the course of operations.
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The Company regularly reviews, rationalizes and revises
internal regulatory documents, and continuously updates
the quality control specifications in many aspects
including risk control, surveillance and measurement
control, internal audit and error correction. The Company
formulated detailed operation instructions according to
the characteristics of the project, and strengthens the
concept of quality training through employee training to
promote the improvement of quality management level
continuously.

In terms of owner information and privacy protection
management, the Company strictly complies with the
relevant regulations of the “Cybersecurity Law of the
People’s Republic of China" on information security and
privacy protection, established the customer information
management system specification and detailed rules
for the implementation, clarified the department
responsibilities of information system safe operation, and
standardized the specific work of information system
such as permission management, emergency handling,
computer room management, data backup and recovery,
ensuring the safe and stable operation of the information
system. We carry out special training for employees who
need to access customer information, and require them
to comply with responsibilities of public safety. Before
seeking approval from the property owners, any trespass
of visitors will be prohibited. We never expose the family
and financial situation, address, phone number and other
customer information of the property owners to anyone,
strictly protecting customer privacy security.

As for advertising, the Company strictly abides by
the laws and regulations including the "Advertising
Law of the People’s Republic of China” as well as
the code of practice in the industry. The legitimacy,
authenticity, scientificity and accuracy of the publicly
released information are strictly evaluated. Publication
of deceptive and misleading marketing information and
materials is strictly prohibited to effectively protect the
legitimate rights and interests of customers.
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Customer Experience

Riverine China continues to promote the concept of
sustainable development and is committed to providing
customers with a good service experience. We have
committed vast amount of resources to maintain good
relationships with our customers. We keep in touch with
customers during the business process and after the
service, get feedback from customers and adjust the
service contents according to their opinions. On the basis
of strictly implementing industry standards, the Company
has revised a series of guidance documents to improve
customer experience, such as the “Standard on Repair
Services" ((IRIEPRFEZ %)) and the “Basic Manners for
Conferencing Services” ({& &R E A& &) ), so as to
improve service quality.

The Company actively communicates with customers
to understand customers’ and owners’ evaluation of
our services. Our communication with customers is
comprised of two parts: communication between senior
leaders of the property companies and representatives
of the property owners; and communication between
management office of the property projects and
responsible parties of the property owners. The former
is made mainly taking into account of macro and overall
services, while the latter is made mainly taking into
account of the improvement of service quantity and
service standard of the projects. Through combination of
these two communication methods, we adopt different
communication frequency and communication methods
respectively, so as to effectively optimize communication
standard with customers.

RIR - HERERBRE
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The table below shows the main channels through which
the Company communicates with its customers during

the reporting period:

Type of meeting
CE B

Annual meeting

Agenda of meeting
BBEXERSE

Annual work summary for

property services, work
plan for next year

MERBFE TIERLE:

THEEIEE

TEEE:

Frequency of
meeting
BN

Once a year, generally in
December every year

BFE—R —RESTF
12 A8

IATFERTARGE R &S HE R

i

F&RmN

Participants

BHER

Leaders of the property
owners, companies,
project managers
FEHEE MERT
WEE PHEHKE

Monthly work report for
property services, work
plan for next month

MERGAE TIEER:
TATI{EETE

Once a month, generally
convene at the end of
the month

BA-R —REAR
=

Department leaders of
property owners, project
managers, each division
manager of the projects
FFHEMRE  1EA
IR AR B IRAREE

Special or sudden events
occurred in property

services are the core issues

of the meeting
CET Al L
EHAEEZZL

Convene irregularly

NE A

Department leaders of
property owners, project
managers, each division
manager of the projects
XX HErIRE  1|A
IR HE R BRRKE

Satisfaction survey

Service quality satisfaction;

service improvement
recommendations

Once a quarter,
generally convene at the
end of the quarter

Department leaders of
property owners, project
managers, each division
manager of the projects

mEERSE REEEREE BEFEE-—R —REF XEXHHMAEE  IEA
PR 75 12 71 32 & EFS IR BB IRREE
Immediate Various types of events Anytime and anywhere  Relevant personnel

communication

B EE

occurred in property
services

MERGHOZEEMN

BE B B 3t

HE TIEAR
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In order to objectively and comprehensively understand
the customer satisfaction evaluation of the Company’s
service quality, and understand the demands and advice
of the targets of service. We have been continuously
carrying out the third-party customer satisfaction
evaluation work for many years. During the reporting
period, we once again entrusted the Customer Evaluation
Center-An Affiliate of SAQ to carry out an evaluation
work. Based on the “Guidelines for Customer Satisfaction
Evaluation Model and Method" GT/T19038:2009 General
Model, we have applied SMART criteria (which stands
for specific, measurable, attainable, relevant and timely)
to collect opinions on the specific indicators of the
Company's service reception, equipment and facilities
management, security services, cleaning services and
maintenance services through three methods, which are
home-visit, on-site intercepts, and on-site inspections.

A total of 86 assessment points were covered and 589
valid samples were collected. The results show that the
customer satisfaction on Riverine China Holdings Limited
in 2019 was 93.08 points, which was higher than the
89.27 points last year. Through the evaluation results,
we fully understand the customer’s satisfaction with
service quality and what needs to be improved, and
collect feedback and suggestions from interviewees to
continuously improve service quality.

We openly accept all suggestions and complaints from
the customers, and handle customers’ complaints and
opinions according to related provisions of the “Measures
for the Management of Complaints (3% 5 & 2 #1%) )"
and the “Procedures for Control of Non-conformity ({7
AR F))” in a timely manner. The “Measures
for the Management of Complaints ({1 & & I #¥
JA))" has specified the responsible department and
detailed procedures in handling customers’ complaints,
and established a handling scheme which includes the
first-complaint responsibility system, signature and
circulation system, customer acceptance system and
follow-up and return visit system.

RIR - HERERBRE
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CHERERERE

First-complaint responsibility system

o The person who received a complaint
from a customer will be the first recipient
of the complaint, who is responsible
for delivering and passing on the
complaint to relevant departments.
The first recipient cannot put off or
give up its responsibilities during the
course. It shall sign on the Complaint
Handling Circulation List as the first
responsible person, and undertake all the
responsibility to receive further questions
from the complainant and inform it of the
final results.

Signature and circulation system

] For every customer’s complaint, every
circulated handling procedure shall be
recorded in writing to ensure that every
complaint case is well-documented.

Customer acceptance system

o In respect of handling a complaint,
completion of handling complaint is
not dependent upon the adoption of
measures. Instead, such completion of
handling complaint culminates in the
satisfaction of the complainant who is
informed of the results of the complaint.

Follow-up and return visit system

o After completion of every complaint,
property management department
shall make a follow-up confirmation
with the complainant at least via
phone conversation. For more severe
complaints, it shall make a return visit
the complainants in person, and continue
to handle the complaints if there are still
problems pending to be handled until the
customers are satisfied with the results.

RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The Company has a quality risk control department
to manage the preparation, modification, review and
release of complaint documents. After the complaint is
received, it will be transferred to the relevant business
department for acceptance and then processed by the
corresponding project personnel. After preliminary
verification, investigation and analysis, providing solutions
and customer visits, the project personnel will feedback
the processing results to the business department. After
verification by the business department, the quality risk
control department will verify the results, and form the
Customer Complaint Record Form, which is convenient

for tracking, recording and feedback of complaints.

Innovative Property Management

With the development of property management industry,
Riverine China has increased the active research and
development, as well as application of digital and
integrated technologies, and is committed to providing
high-quality services for customers. We have particularly
established Shanghai Jie Gu, which devotes a huge
amount of resources on research and development of
"Dynamic Building Matrix" ("DBM") system, overall
digitalization of building, and organic integration of
the contents such as equipment, energy, personnel,
supervision and environment by way of deployment of
visualization and Internet of Things (loT).

RIR - HERERBRE
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The DBM system is composed of a “Three-tools-
One-platform” structure, which stands for mission
management tool, assets management tool, tenants
management tool and data presentation platform
respectively, and is ultimately built into an intelligent,

DBMEFHFAI=ZTE—FEIMEBAK - 5
MAEERERIAR BEEERIA HFPE
BTANURBEBRATSE  S&ITESRE
Rl BFEWGEEEERS - REIEA
LU

ecological and digital integrated management system.
The specific functions are as follows:

Name

=E

Mission management
tool
EHEETA

Function

ER

Optimizing inspections, managing repair plans in advance, managing work order
electronically, conducting detailed data statistics
AR TIEB(L BEFTEIRAEER TEEF(LER FABUIBESG

Assets management
tool

BEESEITA

Comprehensive equipment information, equipment warning, real-time
examination of equipment’s situation, automatic formation of maintenance
work order

EEHREES RERE ERETERERN BHEKEETE

Tenants management
tool
HEEHRIA

Recording information of tenants, mobile payment, repair transparency,
enhancing user stickiness

THEBEFPES BIYE BREEAL  REBFPHKE

Data presentation
platform
BERAFE

Presentation of visualization, statistical analysis by themes, linkage of
information state, viewing on various platforms

ARERE REIEGA DN EENREKS  Z¥eEF
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In order to promote the efficiency and innovation of
engineering services, the Company has independently
developed the Platform of Operation and Maintenance
System of Equipment and Facility (POMS), which
quantifies the process and results of the operation and
maintenance of engineering facilities. The platform
utilizes technologies including Al, loT, cloud computing
and big data, relies on the Company’s operational
experience of offline engineering facilities services as the
means and combines intelligent facilities management
platform tools with innovative and efficient operational
teams to provide customers with continuous, stable and
efficient intelligent services. POMS covers all aspects of
on-site operation and maintenance work, and realizes the
digital management of six major tasks of daily operation,
corrective maintenance, preventive maintenance, safety
and protection, energy management, construction and
supervision, and establishes a sound operation and
maintenance system.

Riverine China attaches great importance to technology
research and development and innovation, advances with
the times, and constantly promotes the transformation
and upgrading of traditional property management to
modern property services. We continue to optimize the
enterprise innovation process, improve the Company’s
innovation culture atmosphere, and create quality
service experience for our customers. We constantly
encourage innovative research and development from
our employees, and we have built a knowledge base
(information-knowledge list) that aggregates experience
from internal sources (e.g., intellectual property;
knowledge gained from failures and successful project
experiences) and external sources (e.g.,
standards; academic exchanges; professional meetings,
opinions from the customers or external suppliers), and
extracted specified knowledge sharing for employees
to learn from and reference. Meanwhile, we properly
manages the pooled knowledge base (including
intellectual property) to ensure that our intellectual
property rights are not infringed.

industry
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PEOPLE-ORIENTED

Employment Management

Employment Policies

The Company strictly abides by the labor laws such as
the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China ({
#=ARKLME L X)), the Labor Contract Law of
People’s Republic of China ({(FEAREMELEHE
[[%£)) and the Implementing Regulations of the PRC
Employment Contracts Law ({(FEARLZFIE L B4 F
EBE MK B)), and establishes a reasonable and perfect
talent selection and employment mechanism. Based
on the principle of “Priority to Internal Recruitment,
Open Recruitment, Fair Competition and Merit-based
Selection”, we have formulated the Recruitment
Management Regulations ({38 B2 & ¥ # F)), which
clearly defines the principles, standards and procedures
of recruitment and allocation of company personnel. We
encourage internal competition, uphold the principle
of “suitable and applicable” and select and promote
internal employees who meet the job requirements with
outstanding performance. The Company has entered
into a labor contract with each employee and strictly
enforced the terms of the contract to maintain good
labor relations. In the “Pujiang Employee Handbook
(JB)IL E TF )", we have regulated related systems
for recruitment, compensation, dismissal, promotion,
performance appraisal, working hours, holidays, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other
welfare system; at the same time, we adopt the “fair,
just and open” model of recruiting outstanding talents
who fulfill our requirements so as to supply the Company
with new blood.

We also comply with regulations including the Law
on the Protection of Women’s Rights and Interests of
the People’s Republic of China ({/F # A R £ f B 17
7 # z 1R [F J£)) to take reasonable protection for
female employees to fulfill their needs for rights and
interests. We advocate diversity and provide equal job
opportunities, and do not discriminate on the basis of
race, gender, age, religion, ethnicity and other factors.
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The Company strictly abide by the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Minors (/R
FARKELMERKFAREE)) and Provisions of
Prohibition of Child Labor ({Z 1 £ A Z T # F))
and other relevant laws and regulations, and resolutely
eliminate the use of child labor and all forms of forced
labor. The Company’s recruitment system automatically
filters all applicants under the age of 16, and verify
the valid identification documents of the applicants
in the employee recruitment, entry examination and
approval, entry registration and other links to ensure the
authenticity of their information. During the reporting
period, there were no cases of child labor or forced labor
in the Company.

Compensation and Benefits

The Company is committed to providing competitive
compensation and benefits for employees. We have
formulated the Corporate Title, Rank and Grade Table
and our Salary Grade Standard, which has detailed
regulations on compensation standards and promotion
standards, and made annual salary adjustment according
to the relevant national policies, enterprise operating
conditions and individual performance. The Company
encourages personnel at all levels to work diligently
within the Company’s management and personal ability.
The harder they work, the more incomes they can earn.
The Company has established a “part-time allowance”
for the escrow project, which is issued according to
relevant standards during the escrow project.

In terms of holiday benefits, according to the practical
situation, we have formulated the Guidelines Related to
Holidays on the basis of the regulations on holidays such
as the Provisions of the State Council on Working Hours
of Workers and Staff (B % B B8 5 B T T1E K #9 #R
JE)). In addition to statutory holidays, the employees
also can enjoy paid leave including annual leave, sick
leave, maternity leave, marriage leave and bereavement
leave. In addition, the Company purchases commercial
insurance including group medical insurance and
employer liability insurance for qualified employees, and
provides regular health check for employees, including
extra special check for female employees, to provide
comprehensive protection for employees.

RIR - HERERBRE

RARBBETFT(REAREMBERRKFA
REIDICELFREIRE)SHBELZ
EHROBAMBERAETIR BB
BT - ARBIMBERFBEEBIEME FiR
TRIEAmWERE  WHEBEIHEE AR
B ABBIESROABEZEREENEX
FOENH BREEMHDEEN - AHEH
M ARBIARBEEREETIRBHILE TS -
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ARABBARBE TR A B B F 805
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BERRE) HHEMBRERE TR EMD
HARTE YEFREBREEARE %
RERARBEAXZEETHESHE - A7
HEERAEDBDER  ERAREEMEA
ENBEARN 2827 BB A IR
TREBEBEMIFERRE] RREEAHHE
HHBEEEER -

BHEMNTE RARBBEBEBERNE T
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The Company’s relevant employment system operates
well and we have not received any cases of violations of
relevant laws and regulations in relation to employment.
During the reporting period, the Company has a total
of 1,472 full-time employees, including 6 part-time
employees. The number of employees divided by

different types is shown below.

Number of employees by gender

BURBINET AR

Female

x

525 r

Male

947

Total number of employees by

type of occupation

EREERE NS THR

Senior management
BREERE
9

General staff
LiEBE
1,106
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Technical staff
Bt AE
357

Zhejiang Province
ppAS)
12 \

Anhui Province
ZHE
181

AARIHAERHEETBEARE W AE
EAWERERHEBEREZENER - RS
M ARBERE T HF14A2A EF B
FoERBETI UTRRUTRERS S
BT AH -

Number of employees by age

BRERESHNET A
Under 30
Above 51 30 BT
51 BB L ﬂ

301
30-40
41-50 30-40 %
41-50 %, 513
428

Total number of employees
by geographical region

RBEESNE TR
Jiangsu Province Hunan Province
TERE pileaEsy
35 94

Tianjin
REM
1

Shanghai
IS
1,149
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Health and Safety

The health and safety of employees is closely related to
the sustainable development of enterprises. We have
consistently adhered to the principle of “safety first”
and strictly abide by relevant laws and regulations in
relation to occupational health and safety including
the “Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, "Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Treatment of Occupational Diseases”,
“Regulations on the Administration of Occupational
Health Examination”, "Administrative Measures for
Work Safety Training” and "Regulations of Shanghai
Municipality on Safe Production”. According to the
specific situation of the Company, we have formulated
the “"Manual of Occupational Health and Safety
Management” and "Employee Code of Conduct”, and
defined the safety and fire protection responsibilities
of employees. Employees are required to report to
the senior management in a timely manner under the
premise of ensuring safety if they encounter illegal
command from superior and forced risky operations or
find emergency situations that directly endanger personal
safety during work, so as to reduce occupational safety
risks, create a safe, healthy and comfortable working
environment for employees and protect employees’
physical and mental health.

RIR - HERERBRE

REHRZZ
BIMRELZEZHECENFERR S SAEE -
ARG —BEEBFZ2E—IMNRA - &iKE
F(REAREXMBELZ 2 EE LX) (PEA
REMBEBERBEE) (BEUHERERSE
EREI (XE2EEHIERHE) (L
BMEZ2EERINSEBRERRELE2HE@E
BER - REQRABEBER AT TH
¥EEEZ2EEFMMCEISTA)  BET
BEINLZE2MENBE YEKRKEIWNAET
EFR B ERMEERENRSFRIERXL
BREEBRASLTENESBNE  #E
ERELZEZHART AEBERASLAETEEE
HB-UMBEBRELZEZRAR  BREITER
2 @#@FE FEMNIERE REEIFD
fEER -
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The Company has obtained the occupational health and ARAFBEB TR ERRL 2 T EE XGB/T
safety management system GB/T 28001-2001/OHSAS  28001-2001/OHSAS 18001:2007 8 & o & ¥
18001:2007 certification. In view of the hazard, the EREFE Al alAE(LtEmERILEREE
Company has compiled and implemented the “Hazard ##%) - (/@b 2 & & K&k IR %) A
Identification and Risk Assessment Procedures” ({f& BREEH)TEETERMWER L GRW
BRR % B A AR ERF)) and the “Risk Control EBR(ERBHBZMNRARKRTERF)M(AR
and Management Procedures” ((RfEZEHIEEIEF)) BHEERF) EE &N AAEHENZIE
based on the “Measures of Shanghai Municipality for EEBHTHBEERELZ2ERE FTEILHET
the Management of Hazardous Chemicals" (( L/@mfE ZZREF - {METAEBIES o XA R E R
Bt 2 RERMIL)), “ldentification of major hazard FRZZ2KE  2EHEL2EBE BT
installations for hazardous chemicals" ({fefe{t B mE EEEBNE - ARHEERRED ITE -
ANERIRYEE)) and “Catalogue of Special Equipment”

(18 & % B £%)), aiming to identify occupational

health and safety hazards in various activities within

the Company, evaluate and determine important risks,

and thus carry out effective control. We conduct safety

inspections regularly to comprehensively check potential

safety hazards, formulate and implement rectification

plans, and effectively promote the risk prevention work.

TR G 6 2 4 OF BB 4K A GESE R

[BHYI&&T!RM}H]

] O T T g

HibtANCENEFET
R 26001201 LTIESAS

VLR ]

B RER RS EE

i I it 9?*'l| FK*T‘

For the identified hazard in the operation, we consider M¥ REBEZLF 2 H AN ERIR  BHMIEXZE
effectively reducing its risk by successively adopting EREER - K&  ITREZH - FHEE
elimination, replacement, engineering control, EE&EH - BEARENTN  BHEEER
identification warning, management control and personal B - i R EERIREE ITENHELI AQ
protection. For employees whose work content involves ®IEIEERKE2HETHF L BEKESE
hazard sources, the Company strictly requires all of #&FE BE¥XERZTE  FEEXRIEZRSE
them to hold relevant certificates, including operation E R °

qualification certificate, professional qualification

certificate and certificate for special operations, etc.
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The Company also attaches great importance to the
occupational health of employees and is committed to
providing employees with a safe working environment.
We organized fire safety trainings for security guards,
controllers and security administrators in accordance with
the provisions of the “Manual of Occupational Health
and Safety Management" and the "Employee Code of
Conduct”. The key training contents include importance
of safety production, on-site safety education, fire
safety, national safety production guidelines and policies,
situation and accident education, casualties and first aid.

During the reporting period, the Company suffered 2
work-related injuries, and the total number of work days
lost were 210 days. The Company has not had any fatal
accident that occurred due to work relationship.

RIR - HERERBRE

ARBIRABERBEINRERERE  BMORE
TRHEZ 20 TERE - AR R X2
FrE2EEFMMCEITADPONRE -
EHHABRELZE EEBNZ2EEBETT
Bz EHBIANTEBRLELEE
MEEEE BBRE2HE HH%x: H
REEEESTHBE HBENEHHE B
CTERMEZE -

WERME ARFEE2H0TE - KBEXIE
H#210K LERETERBEREMRNAEBRL
TEMf-

Riverine China attaches great importance to the
health of its employees and regularly organizes
health seminars and provides health consultations.
On 28 February 2019, the Company’s union invited
the associate chief physician of the Department of
Cardiology of Shu Guang Hospital to provide health
guidance for employees, including explaining the
symptoms of hypertension and methods of prevention
and treatment, and providing common disease
knowledge to employees. The Company also invites
fitness teachers to teach employees office aerobics to
stretch their muscles and bones, so that the employees
can relax themselves and prevent occupational
diseases, highlighting the humanized management
mode of the Company.

The Company Held a Health Care Seminar for Employees

NEAEPHEEETRERE

HIPESEERBT@EE  THEHE
A MIRHEERERLN - 20192281 -
AR T EBEEAER ARSI FEERM
RETRHERERES  BEERSDEE
RIARTEF MM AT RETHREER
RABE - RAIMBEREEZM BHEE
ITHRAERFR SFRHE BWAEE
ITHEZSL BRBRER ZTELEAFA

M EREEN -
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Training and Development

Riverine China regards the learning and development
of its employees as the driving force for the sustainable
development of the Company. The Company is
committed to establishing a sound training system and
constantly improving the learning and communication
platform to turn learning into a way of life. We also
improved the career development channels for our
employees, so that they can grow together with the
Company.

Vocational Training

In order to meet the Company’s development goals and
enhance the comprehensive ability of the employees,
the Company has formulated and implemented the
“Management Measures of Employee Training” ({8 T 1%
FIE I 9% %)) to standardize the training management
work and specify the requirements for the skills and work
experience of the employees in each position, so as to
ensure that they are competent for the work. We provide
suitable training for different targeted participants
according to the Company’s training needs, and organize
two types of training: practical training and qualification
training to meet employees’ diversified learning needs
and improve their professional skills.

Practical training

gl

EANERE
HITERETEERBRACENFER
RO - ARABMNRIE2HHFIER
MAZEE2BEIRFE HEBEX &
AR BRPMRETITERERRBE
ERBETHMAEHARNKE -

Lo |

RTEARAMBERER EBRETNEE
BN ARAHIE X HITC(E THI LEE
WoR) HIRIEETHFETHRE X FA
MR EEMUETHRERTELR2EX
BREBRHENBEIE HFARELRR
B FER HEUTRABIERREHREENT
AT YHASTMEBEI: BEFIRE
EEAmEBTEZHRIEMBEERFR &
SR THERREE -

Qualification training

ZEEI

e Corporate training, including safety production, supervision
of the property service center, new employees’ induction,
daily management knowledge, project manager class of
Pujiang Academy, practical operation training for each
position

o BENI  BRETEAE MERBHLEE HETAR -
BB T RRIER IR - S ERREE
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e Qualification training, including intermediate and senior titles
(engineers, economists), technicians and senior technicians
(management, engineering, security), various types of
engineering recertification, registration certificates of security
guards, security officer certificate, etc.

o PEARERTE (TI2EM - LEAD) - A RS RSEE (B3 -

Ti2 - R%) - RETIREE  RELHE  REEEFI
HEF
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The Company will carry out regular assessment according AR R B EFITAE R - T HEEZZF
to the completion of the training, integrate performance i B AXINE TR A ITIERBFETEES
of the trainee in the later period for appraisal of overall ZEKREF & BRZINWE o ARG
learning results, so that the training outcomes can be ZEZERERETIHA A  BAFAE &
guaranteed. The training assessment results will be WEZXZEAZEIHNL2EKXKE -

used as a reference basis for human resources related

activities such as job mobilization, rank adjustment and

performance evaluation.

Average

No. of training

participants Percentage' hours (Hour)

Statistics on 19 32 3 B &

training in total 1 5% Hl & FZAl AR BZ (NEF)
Staff training by rank ZEREIHWZTIET

Senior management SRERE 110 0.8% 120

General staff TRBE 10,940 74.3% 40

Technical staff HFr A B 3,670 24.9% 50

Staff training by gender ZM BB W ZINET

Female pegis 5,250 35.7% 40
Male B 9,470 64.3% 40
! Refers to the percentage of the group's number of participants 1 EZPDHESTIAREELIINARPETIEBR DL

in the total number of participants

BT B AR AR
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The 3rd Project Manager Class of “Pujiang Academy”
Was Successfully Completed
[HIBRR|EERKRE = ER & X

“Pujiang Academy” is a property management [HIZ2RIZ2H IVEANNMEETESR
professional training institution established by ¥ EJI#E EEESAESEYWESTIET
Pujiang Property. It aims to cultivate various XHRHEEE HEFBEEER BT -
management talents who are interested in the long- FEEERRIHKEHNTEER AL - [HIL
term development in the property industry, have FHER&ZEFIILIIEABIERMNE K
expectations for their careers, and are willing to grow B RFIIRE  EERABIRBEEEL
together with the Company. The “Pujiang Project IEEBRFERBALGAZEZE @ I AW TH
Manager Training Course” is the first phase of the EREEAKE AL  WELAAEKERE
training course in Pujiang Academy. It aims to improve ¥ BB ABMFR - X EHINE R A
the management skills and individual integrated IR{EIEE&IE - HES LR - HE LR
capabilities of Pujiang’s existing project managers, BEIEBEEBENKABERLE|MHEMASR -
and to reserve the project manager talents for Pujiang

Development so as to meet the needs of managers

in the Company’s business development. The major

targets of the training are the existing project

managers, project deputy managers, project manager

assistants and other personnel who are willing to

become “project managers”.

The third project manager class of Pujiang Academy JH/TE2fTEH & =HMFERK6MEA - ©¥
lasted 6 months and was successfully completed in 201998 IEF| 4 % - E X & HIEF1 — 51
September 2019. Based on the successful experience HEAXIHE P&  REBARMHEBRET
of the first and second classes, we invite academies [AIJMNB R EIAEFE 2 A BEEH - R E
from different foreign companies to participate in {LIFFIARRE - FWEFINAD - BRBTE
the training in this period. Meanwhile, we optimize HEREHABMAERE SEEENEZ
the training processes, add new training contents, &f&F °

and impart the knowledge and skills related to the

Academy’s project management, which has been

widely praised by the participants.
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Talent Promotion

Riverine China attaches great importance to the growth
of internal excellent talents and gives promotion to
employees with talent and integrity, outstanding
performance in a professional way or with special skills
by providing them with various means such as gradual
promotion, internal transfer and discretionary promotion
based on the combination of “vertical” and “crisscross”
promotion to foster staff development. In addition, we
regularly carry out performance appraisal, adhere to the
principle of “flexible promotion and demotion” so that
demotion measures are in place for the staff who are not
sufficiently competent to perform their duties, and strive
for fairness and justice.

RIR - HERERBRE

AT EFH

ARRERANBEFATAE  BEELSE
Ft AEEBARBERERES FEE K
RIEKIEZIXXIBEENT N BET R
B EREY AREHIABRRRTE
ETRHESARE - i RPERRAREE
MEZ RA&(ggEL BETINRE Y
MR ETIIENE TEIRIERE M - K
NFEAIE -

Gradual Promotion

BRE

The Company encourages
young employees at all
levels to continuously
improve their professional
skills in their respective
positions, and to make
achievements in their
professional fields.
The Company gives
employees promotion after
recognizing the year-end
performance evaluation

AREEBERESETIHE
EHEIEMAM EREIR T
BARMBERE  TEE
EEMBEM KFKR
BUFEESRAE A
AR FEIEH

Internal Transfer

B 5 B8

In order to establish an
internal talent competition
mechanism, optimize
human resource allocation,
and motivate employees’
enterprising spirit, the
Company establishes
an internal competitive
recruitment mechanism.
When there is a vacancy
in the company’s internal
management positions, it
first conducts an internal
selection and recruitment,
providing unimpeded
promotion space for
employees at all levels

RESTANEBAT B FH
# - BEANEREE
MEBTHERBE - QA
RIUANMHEBES - B
BARABERMEMLE

fr - FEETNEER 4
EMETRHEG BB

Z=fE]

“Discretionary
Promotion”

WA R A

For those who make
outstanding contributions
to the Company or have
special talents, they
may be nominated by
the human resources
department of the
Company for promotion,
examined by the party
committee and is subject
to the approval of the
general manager

HAREHREERRE
BRI BE KRAAD
ARARE  BREEZ
HAS IR B AR IR T DA AR 4R
3

“Vertical” and

"Crisscross” Promotion

ERIEIXXIBH

According to the
employee’s career
development plan,
employees can be
promoted according
to their professional
positions, or they can
be promoted to other
professional positions as
their ability develop

REEBEIBRXEEZRR
R ATARBEELE
oA LABEE B T
MERMABEEMEE
i L & 7t
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Employee Communication
Riverine China promotes good, harmonious and simple
human relationships and is committed to establishing a

ETEE

system of “Happy Riverine — Sunshine Lighting”, and {818 A £ A7) - @ A B @ A 2 B # 1T

advocating an effective communication and cooperation

between individual and company, individual and individual. % 2 A NZE BB EE:
We are willing to listen to employees’ opinions and
suggestions and establish the following communication

channels:

Open-door policy
9 5 B BX

Working meeting
THaR

Job interview
T E &%

Satisfaction survey
mMEBEERE

50 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Managers welcome employees to directly present their ideas and questions
with an open mind. Managers are also required to actively follow the
thoughts and emotions of subordinates.
EBRBABURMMEEROETEERBEBENER RAKOEREEA
BXHMITENRENBERE -

The Company advocates managers to attentively listen to the team’s opinions
through work meetings when setting an objective so as to co-share the
vision.

EEEREAEFTERNREBATIFSREREEGNER  XASZM

=2
= °

Under the circumstances of new employee regularization, employee salary
adjustment or job change, making a job evaluation, career development plan
and employee resignation, superior leaders will conduct an interview with the
employee to understand the situation and listen to his/her opinions.

MEIBE BIRFXEUES ETIFENGE BEERAIIUAKE
TREFBEBEVT  LRESHHEETETEHA  TRERL  BRER -

The basic function of employee committee is to participate, communicate
and supervise. Any employee can make his/her opinion and ideas heard by
reporting to the committee.

BIZEENELARES2HE BB EE -MREIBFERMEZE A
VAfE Bh E S Bk o

The Company consults its employees on the business and management of
the Company through a regular anonymous opinion survey to understand the
overall satisfaction of employees with our working environment.
AARBBERNTLEERFAEMEIAANARER EESHTEN
BER THMEIHIFRENERBRERRE

NV.IRONIiIIEI\'I'TAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Listening to the Voice of Employees and
Seeking Common Development of Pujiang
EHEEITLE HAEBIZRE

The first session of the “Voice Hall” talk meeting of JHTHBIE—H[ OB E R A S H2019F
Riverine China was held on 17 October 2019. The 10A17HZAM - RRIERERKRERBE
management representatives of the Company had a — FEXPBHI0ZZETKRRAEMEMR
face-to-face and sincere communication with more e &t BIRKXKETHEAM AR L
than 40 employee representatives from the first {E¥& X{ESE -  THERBZEHTE M
business department. At the meeting, the employee ZEE - R ORI REEEEHRGRE -
representatives expressed their satisfaction with EAAFEE - - ETHHRE - 2EXLE
the Company's current working platform, cultural & HE/EAZEZFERETHENE
atmosphere, and working environment, etc. At the BRMZE#H  RaEEEBEHETIMNEZMNR
same time, they also put forward pertinent opinions #7177 & — <88 « B Z -
and suggestions from the aspects of business
development layout, enterprise personnel training,
employee labor security, corporate culture promotion
and the role of mass organizations. The Company’s
management provided feedback and answers to
employees’ suggestions and questions one by one.

At the “Voice Hall” talk meeting, employees BBRILEBE|BRAET ETHNRETHEE
communicated with the Company’'s management M¥ERZA - DBIOER - KR

A

ED"
ol
f@r

face-to-face and intimately, and sought sustainable & @8 7TETHREBRRER
development, which enhanced employees’ sense of
belonging and identity.

| - ——
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Employee Activities

Outside of work, the Company actively organizes
recreational and sports activities to enrich the lives of
employees, relieve their pressure from work, enhance
relationship among employees, and improve team
cohesion, so that the employees would have a sense of
belonging in the big, dynamic family of Riverine China.

_NV.IRONMEI\iTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ETEE

TEz#  ARRBEGRRBEETHEEE
TEE BRIERH HEBITRE &
SEERRBE N FEIEBITREMEEGE
IHARRXEREERB X -

On 21 September 2019, on the occasion of the 70th
anniversary of the founding of China, the Company
executives, more than 170 employees and their family
members formed 8 teams to participate in this activity.
With “healthy life, happy family” as the main axis,
the activity adopted the team points system and
launched a fierce competition in team cooperation
and parent-child fun sports. After the competition, all
employees of the Company sang the song “Ode to the
Motherland” ([FXMEHE ), pushing the atmosphere
of the whole activity to a climax.

L A
=4

T

“Me and My Family, Me and My Company, Me and
My Motherland-Concentric Circle” Cultural Theme Activities

[BRARE BAQAF  RAEE—RBLOEIXLEEEFS

2019F9A218 - IR K70 F 2K - &
AIEENRTIOZZETRRAMBAKSTRE
BR2mTHREE  FEBAREEE -
FTRREIATH  UHABEEES S -
TFEBBERR FEBRESRHEANRRA T
BAAZE - BE RAZ2BABMEBIR
EEE] BEEEHIFAERSE -
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“The Trudge of an Egg” Team Building Event
—EBENREIEHEEH

On 11 May 2019, 50 employees of the Company
formed 7 teams and participated in the 50-km walking
challenge. Eventually, six employees of the Company
completed the whole process after more than 13
hours of perseverant walking. The team members were
very rewarded, and they also showed us the spirit of
hard work, continuous progress and teamwork of the
Riverine people.

20194 5A118 » A F504 8 T 4 K7 B
h 2MTS0REBRESEMNKE - &L
RAINBEL KB13EZ/NFARREE
TTEE - BFEMKERM  hERME
ATEELENBIANZENEMN T
ER - EBRWBENBSELR -
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GREEN PROPERTY

Green Management

As a leading sustainable development property
management enterprise in China, Riverine China has
always adhered to the objective of “Caring for the Earth,
Protecting the Environment and Maintaining Sustainable
Development” and always followed the development of
environmental protection. The Company strictly complied
with the relevant laws and regulations, including the
Regulation on Realty Management, Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, Water
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Solid Waste Pollution Prevention and
Control Law of the People’s Republic of China and Energy
Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China.
We regularly updated our internal management policies
and were certified with the I1SO 14001 Environmental
Management System. During the reporting period, the
Company has not violated any environmental laws and
regulations.

A
.
e’

{
-

HLbTAN

WEARLN

R,
4 AR T

(L E ) e e BN U R AL BT R S BT B BT R )

s

To identify the environmental factors in the operating
activities and service processes of the Company, we
have established the “Procedures for Management of
Environmental Factors” ((GRBEEZXEIEREF)), which
standardizes the environmental factor management
process, specifies duties of each department and
effectively controls significant environmental risk
factors, so as to provide the basis for the environmental
guidelines and environmental objectives of the Company.
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RIR - HERERBRE

Procedures for Management of Environmental Factors

Person in charge/
Department in charge

BEEAEEBM

Quality and Risk
Management Department
EERER

Quality and Risk
Management Department
EEREH

Integrated Management
Department

A EEE

Quality and Risk
Management Department
BEREH

Quiality and Risk
Management Department
BERE D

RREEZEERF

Outline of procedures
A A2

Identifying environmental
factors
IR 35 A 3= AR

L

Evaluating environmental
factors

SELTE Ed

1

Formulating environmental
aims/targets
HEREHEEE

!

Recognition and update of
environmental factors and
significant environmental
factors
REARMEEZRE
HHER K EH

l

Significant environmental
control
BEERFES

Relevant documents/forms

MR R

“Research and Evaluation
Sheet for Environmental
Factors”

CREEEFHERFER)

“Aims and Management
Solution”
(BEERFRERFE)

“List of Significant
Environmental Factors”

(ERMEE S R)

“Research and Evaluation
Sheet for Environmental
Factors”, “List of Significant
Environmental Factors”
(CREE=FAERFER)
(EERBERZREFE)

In addition to strengthen the environmental factors
related management, the Company also formulated
a series of accident emergency plans including the
Contingency Plans for Environmental Pollution, the
Contingency Plans for Leakage of Dangerous Chemicals,
and the Contingency Plans for Leakage of Toxic Gas,
and set up a relevant emergency response team, clarify
the emergency handling procedures, prevent problems
from occurring, and minimize the losses caused by
environmental emergencies.

BRTMBRRRAXMEBEER  ARATHE
T(RBESRAEFRESER) (eRLBEMm
BRESEAR) (EEREBRRESER)
EF-RINEHREIAR > XA AREZN
HeoRERSRERF BRERARR &K
RERERERESHATRNES -
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Green Engineering

Conservation of Resources and Energy

o Avoiding any dripping and leakage, and preventing
tap from keeping running and lights from keeping
on as well as improper utilization of resources

o Frequently cleaning air-conditioner filter to maintain
indoor air quality

e Adopting non-paper record for patrol inspection

o Setting up the upper and lower temperature limits
for exhibition hall

o Monitoring and analyzing energy and water
consumption each month

o Monitoring the optimized set up of energy facilities

o Setting escalator at idle mode

° Reusing rainwater

Disposal of waste

o Recycling wasted materials from exhibition hall
o Recycling wasted battery and ink cartridge

o Recycling wasted fluorescent tube

B IRE

BER BERED

. HREBBR BHLERK ERAE
Mt 2 AR ER

H

. PRBEAERARE REEEEAZE
ﬁ

. #fe R0 8% 4 AR A

. RERBREFHG TR

. BAERMIE HRER - JOEFREBR

. ERRERRENRERERBN
. BEHREREEFERR

. /KB F A

BEYERE

. (Bl Y | PR J £8 BE 3 A1 R
. ClEEEL 22
. [B] 4 g 2 5 e

e Dredging with bag and completing cleaning process e BEREEIL EBEETE
on the same day
Cleaning machine room floor Escalator at idle mode Cleaning air-conditioner filter
with condensate water [EEEEEEER (55 e2esmEam |

[FIAHERBEXKITHEEE |

Reusing wasted wood
from exhibition

[BRARSERERAM]
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Rainwater harvesting
for reuse
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Green Activity

Resources and Energy Management

The main resources used in the operation of the
Company include water, electricity, unleaded gasoline
and paper.
resources and reduce the Company’s operating costs, the
Company formulated and implemented the Resources
and Energy Management Requirements and the
Regulations for Motor Vehicle Management, clarified
the content of energy saving, while implementing

In order to ensure the rational use of

unified vehicle management and a special maintenance
responsibility system to promote management and
control of resources and energy. The Company’s water
comes from the municipal pipe, and the wastewater
generated during the office process is preliminarily
treated by the sewage treatment facilities of the property
in the building where it is located and discharged into
the municipal sewage pipeline.

Electricity consumption management

o Employees are requested to turn off the lights when
leaving. The last one leaving office shall check and
make sure all lights are turned off

o Other electric device shall be switched off
immediately after use to avoid idling of machines

° In summer, staff is allowed to turn on the air-
conditioner only if the outdoor temperature is above
30 degree Celsius, and the temperature shall be set
above 26 degree Celsius. In winter, staff is allowed
to turn on the air-conditioner only if the outdoor
temperature is below 0 degree Celsius, and the
temperature shall be set below 20 degree Celsius

o While purchasing new equipment, energy saving
equipment shall be considered first

R #HE8RESR
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RIE - -HERER

wE

Water consumption management

We adopt the principles of using water as necessary
and frequently cleaning with a small amount of
water

The slogan, “Save water by turning off the tap”,
is posted next to taps in all washrooms, which are
supervised and managed by administrative staff.
When using toilets and sinks, employees should
pay attention to saving water and turn off the tap
in time. If any abnormal situation is found, inform
the administrative personnel department or the
maintenance department to deal with it immediately
Depending on weather condition, we reasonably
arrange watering to prevent wastage

Office supplies management

Each department shall apply for paper according to
their actual demand, and the paper applied shall
be controlled and distributed by the administrative
personnel and supervised by the head of each
department

The paper (for non-important documents) shall be
used with both sides as much as possible

Ballpoint pen refill, ribbon, battery, toner cartridge
and ink cartridge shall be returned to administrative
staff for collection and replacement

Vehicle management

58

We implement unified management of the
Company’s vehicle, insist on energy saving and
highly efficient management principle, and increase
utilization rate and serviceability rate of vehicle
Carry out vehicle maintenance and repair work in
time to reduce the use of vehicle fuel
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The following table shows the Company’s environmental
performance in respect of resources consumption and

emission during the reporting period?:

Resources consumption

ERERAE

Water consumption
FKE

RIR - HERERBRE

LTERRTARGRBRENHEBEBEERER
&ﬁm%mh%%ﬁﬂ

1,001 tons

1,001 A

Water density
BKEE

1.01 tons/square meter?

1.0108 /3 J5 K3

Electricity consumption

HFES

37,790 Kwh
37,790 T K B

Electricity density
REEE

38.07 Kwh/square meter
38.07 T EL B/ F 75 5K

Gasoline consumption
e P

15,567.98 Liter
15,567.98 2 F

Gasoline density

2,224.00 Liter/vehicle?

FEmEE 2,224.00A F+,/ 8 4
Paper usage 168 KG
/NSRS 168F 7%

Paper density

2.80 KG/person®

RERE 2.80F 7 A°
2 The environment performance index includes the Shanghai head 2 BREVBBEEARACR LENEREL
of the Company =
3 The Shanghai head of the Company is located at Jiushi Mansion, 3 AARELBREBPRAENRAERE - A HE
with an office area of 992.73 square meters & A 992.73 F K
4 There are 7 vehicles in the Company’s Shanghai head office 4 ARB EBBRARAEHREFTHNHLEH
s There are 60 employees the Company’s Shanghai head office 5 ARE EBBRARAETHEORET

BT B AR AR
&3k 2019 9
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Emission of greenhouse gas

BERBENE

Emission from vehicle (Scope 1)& 35.97 tons

BN E (FE)s 35.971

Emission from electricity consumption (Scope 2)7 26.59 tons

BOEBHERE (FE2)7 26.591

Total greenhouse gas emission 62.56 tons

mRERBIHME 62.56 1

Total greenhouse gas emission density 1.04 tons/person

BAEREBHNEE 1.04W8 /A

6 The figure of emission of greenhouse gas (Scope 1) is calculated B EEEE(EE ) NN Es Eh

with reference to the Guidelines for Accounting and Reporting BARHMEEE ST GEE F X BES
of Greenhouse Gas Emissions from Land-based Transportation BE T AR R U B R H i (BT

Enterprises (Trial) published by the Ministry of Environmental
Protection of the People’s Republic of China

7 The figure of emission of greenhouse gas (Scope 2) is calculated 7 BEREEE R BREBENAET A2 EH
with reference to the 2077 and 2012 PRC’s Regional Grid ZARANMBERRZEEMKEZE S HMAIC01N1
Average Carbon Dioxide Emission Factor published by National FR0NFRHEES BT A BBENEAT)
Development and Reform Commission of the People’s Republic
of China

60 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Emission of poIIutants from vehicles

RIR - HERERBRE

ERERTRYVHERE

Carbon Monoxide (CO) emission 241.48 KG
— @ bk (CO)BEph & 241.48T %
Nitrogen Oxide (NOy) emission 20.37 KG
RAE Y (NO, HE 2 2037 F %
Sulfur Oxides (SOy) emission 0.23 KG
R E ¥ (SO, ek 2 0.23F 7%
Particulate matter (PM, ) emission 0.55 KG
FERLY) (PM,s) HERX 2 0.55F 7%
Particulate matter (PM,,) emission 0.58 KG
BERL Y (PM,o) BER & 0.58F 7%
Waste Management BEDER

On 31 January 2019, the “Regulations of Shanghai
Municipal Administration of Domestic Waste" was passed
by the 15th Shanghai municipal people’s congress, which
officially became a local regulation and was implemented
on 1 July of the same year. It is required to store
domestic waste according to four types: recyclable waste,
hazardous waste, wet waste and dry waste. In order to
dispose office and domestic waste and production waste
generated by the Company, we formulate the Requlations
for Solid Waste Management in accordance with the Law
of the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution
by Solid Waste of the People’s Republic of China,
National Catalog of Hazardous Waste and Procedures
of Shanghai Municipality on the Prevention and Control
of Pollution by Hazardous Waste. Guidance instructions
on the collection, storage and treatment of waste were
made, and the operation process was standardized
according to the degree of harm of waste to the
environment, and the regulatory requirements for waste
classification.

8 The figure of emission of air pollutants is calculated with
reference to Technical Guide for Air Pollutant Emission
Inventory for Road Vehicles (Trial) published by the Ministry of
Environmental Protection of the People’s Republic of China

20191 A318 » (k)& 4 &t B B AR BIl)
RETHAEELEBETARRKRAGREB  EX
RAMAMEER YR EF7ABRERGE
B ERBEENRZBRUBKY - BEN
TR BN BFUBERAES>BEER A
BEARNTBEENBWREFE R R EENR
BURB(PFEARANBEREDIREY
aE) (EREREMAE) (LEMRER
s ’Lfﬂﬁ/nfﬂ#/£>%lJmT<F§%¢@Ei¥%ﬁm>>’
REBREVHRENGEEE  BERUED
*EEI’JW”* ko HEEDOKRE  RENE
EITTIEEBMHE A TRIERRE -
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RIR - HERERBE

Non-hazardous waste?® includes office and domestic
waste and production waste, that is, waste materials,
waste equipment components, and waste construction
materials generated by the Company during the
processes of service, maintenance, construction and
storage. Office and domestic waste shall be collected
and stored in the waste storage site by the Company
personnel. Waste storage containers are set at the
storage site. Posters of classification guidelines are
posted in accordance with the waste classification
requirements to facilitate classified storage and cleaning
and recycling by the cleaning staff. The production waste
shall be centralized, classified, identified and managed
by the engineering personnel, and shall be stacked in the
designated waste recovery area with consideration of the
compatibility of waste placement. Firefighting equipment
shall be set up near the recovery area, and there must
be obvious safety signs. If necessary, measures such as
erecting interior walls can be taken to prevent dispersion
and leakage. Local environmental hygiene management
bureau is entrusted by the Company to carry on a unified
treatment to the harmless waste.

Hazardous wastes include corrosive, flammable, toxic
and polluting wastes such as engine oil, toxic solvent and
coating wastes during business operations, and those
wasted batteries, wasted lamp tubes and wasted ink
cartridges disposed in office services, etc. The Company
has special containers and sites for storing hazardous
materials, which are marked with danger labels and
stored properly. Besides, the Company has engaged the
enterprises and entities with environmental qualifications
to process with waste recycling without causing the
pollutants to be transferred.

9 Because our business is property management, the Company did
not use any packaging material during the reporting period.

62 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The property management office also periodically WEEBRERNTSATHRESEEZYNGE
checks whether each type of waste is storaged subject WELHFAER WHERBERIZLYIE -
to requirements in each month, and requires to rectify NEFEN KWME L EEMHERERENTS

immediately for any breach to reduce the pollution to the 3 o
ecological environment.

Media and logo publicity of “Waste Classification” in office buildings

MOABARUFTEINERE  BERBEE

The Company held a lecture on the

Trash can placement site theme of “Waste Classification”

WRBERBRE RAERI NI B | FTEEREY
TN 2 -

BT B AR AR
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R HERERRE

The following table shows the environmental WU TERTARRLBEBHAERIREH
performance index of the Company’s Shanghai head [ 7 B8 & Z ¥ HF DA 3R 35 48 U -
office regarding waste emissions during the reporting

period:

Solid waste generation
EREREYELE

Non-hazardous Waste

Wasted paper 30 KG
BEREARELEE 30F®
Wasted paper density 0.50 KG/person
BEERREETE 0.50F 5 A
Office waste 144 tons
MARRELE 144148

Office waste density

2.40 tons/person

WA REERE 2.40M8 /A
Hazardous Waste

EEEEY

Wasted ink cartridge 17 units
BEERESELXE 17 &

Wasted ink cartridge density

0.28 units/person

BEREELTE 0.281& /A
Wasted fluorescent tube 16 units
BEEXAEEELS 1632

Wasted fluorescent tube density

0.27 units/person

BEEUKBEELTE 0.27% /A
Wasted battery 14 units
BEMELE 144&

Wasted battery density
EELELERE

0.23 units/person
0.2318 /A
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HELPING THE COMMUNITY BAOE
Achieving a Win-Win Cooperation BIEHR

The Company is committed to combining its own ZARARBMABTESEKELSRFIMAES
business with social benefits, while creating economic #FAIEKEEBENER - AL SAIEGE -
value, it also creates value for society and meets social E¥S T ZHKE - KPR NHEEEEMITE -
challenges. We vigorously promote the joint construction XK HBEZAFER  ZHESFEKED
and cooperation projects with other industries and & RR4%EE At EEBAIEFHEE -
enterprises, give full play to our business advantages,

and contribute to create new value for the community in

different fields.

Riverine China and Shanghai Children’s Library

Signed a Co-Construction Agreement

HIFERELELELAEEEEITIRLEN S
On 25 October 2019, Riverine China and 20194F10A25R BT EE L R EEH
the Shanghai Children’s Library signed a R HEHE ECLEEMRXEMNSEED -
co-construction agreement, aiming to give EMALFRERHEEN AKX UER -
play to their respective advantages and better KRR -EFBEIRBREE] [2FHREIRIX
provide quality public cultural services for REZ|I-FTEHEEFRRBRAIE BBAEAYMH

children. In the future, the two parties will BEEENSRLHEN BEEFENELE
focus on cooperation in three areas: “service BNMXAERBEAR BERHAREEZFENX
co-construction”, “learning co-construction” BEE WKEZER BRH2E BEIHRA
and “cultural and sports co-construction”. G HAZERMNETBR  ERHOBXHE

Through the application of intelligent HEBER—EFARE -
technologies based on the Internet of Things, we

will give full play to the historical background

and cultural service connotation behind us,

actively carry out a variety of cultural and

sports activities, and form an operating system

featuring complementary advantages, resource

sharing, common cooperation and common

development, so as to bring the construction of

spiritual civilization to a new level.

LB BR AR
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Honggiao Airport is an important aviation hub
in Shanghai, and the Airport Industry Group has
created tremendous value for the industry, which is
in line with the goals of Riverine China. In 2019, we
signed a co-construction agreement with the Field
Management Department of Honggiao Airport to give
full play to our respective advantages, consolidate and
deepen cooperation, innovate governance systems and
mechanisms, and achieve complementary advantages,
resource sharing and joint innovation.

Co-construction of Riverine China and
the Field Management Department of Hongqiao Airport
I EET GRS SEEENEHHE

IREEELEEZENMERE  B5
EXEERZTXAETEXEER &8
THENBEZRERZE <2019 » FIET
BHRESREERRITLERE  TOH
BEEED EEXRLAEHRE 8IFA
RS BEREBEMH ERAE
HElFBHmE
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Community Welfare

Riverine China has always focused on working with
the community, and we want to give play to our
characteristics and capabilities to help people in need
improve their lives. During the reporting period, we held
a series of charity donation activities, and also organized
volunteers to care for social vulnerable groups and
provide them with couplet-assistance, which was widely
praised.

In 2019, there were in total 975 volunteers from Riverine
China in social welfare, the accumulated service hours
were 3,950 and donations amounted to RMB9,200.

RIR - HERERBRE

HEQ =

HTRERAREETRERNBIE HMFHE
HEAGNEHMERES  EPAFTEMNAL
HEMMNEE - BRERME - HAEMRT—
RIPaZEREERY CLEMTHEEHRE
HEnBEE WOERK  BESEZH-

20195 HIIHhEAEHERAF TEEFERE
FH® A97SA IR - BEF R B [E3,950/ ) B -
BRSEHNARBORNRE T -

“Volunteering for the Old” Community Joint Public Welfare Activities
(AEEXBETIHEREARTH

On 28 May 2019, in the “Volunteering for the Old”
activity organized by Pujiang Property, more than
30 elderly people visited Shanghai Disney Town and
Lavender Ecological Park in the company of volunteers,
aiming to better enable the elderly in the community
know the changes of Shanghai’s reform and opening
up and enrich the spiritual life of the elderly. The
activity provided a platform for the elderly of the
community to communicate, and at the same time
made them feel the spirit of mutual assistance and
fraternity of voluntary service, making a demonstration
and example for building a harmonious community of
beautiful homes.

201945280  HIMEMAEBHIAEE
FEIT)EB R - EFEIT —1130% R E AL
EFREENRBRTEE BB TE/JEM
BEXEARER BEEETNELAEREZAM
THREBSHRERMMMNENL BEEFARB
BEF R FHATEEZEAREIR
MEE AR TERRBNE R
B AERNBELENEBRE MY
TREBRERE -
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CHAIRMA'N'S :STATEMENT
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Mr. Xiao Xingtao HE B % &£
Chairman E &

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Riverine China
Holdings Limited together with its subsidiaries, | would
like to present the annual report of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

ANNUAL REVIEW

The Group continued to press ahead with the operating
strategies in 2019 under the principle of “strengthening
the foundation, optimizing the layout, improving services
and developing science and technology” with expected
goals achieved.

In addition to basic management, the Group optimized
and strengthened the management team and refined
mechanisms and modes to further improve the operating
vitality and efficiency of the Company.

For property services, the Company continued to improve
its nationwide geographical layout, enrich the product mix
of property services, improve service quality and customer
experience, as well as expand the size of its core business.
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For science and technology services, while enhancing
investments, the Company applied and optimized the
information technology system for building services
based on the Internet of Things and cloud computing
which was profoundly applied in property service projects
with breakthroughs achieved in overseas markets. In the
meantime, we invested resources into the development
and application of information tools for project operation
and maintenance business in property management to
strengthen the building of its core competitiveness.

In 2019, the Group formally and cautiously launched
substantive merger and acquisition activities. Through
acquisitions, the Group entered the market of urban
sanitary services, taking a solid step to build the
Company into a comprehensive provider of urban public
services.

Meanwhile, the Company also carried out necessary
business exploration in asset management, corporate
service and other fields.

Despite certain decline in the gross profits generated
in the process of business deployment and service
improvement, the Company managed to develop its
service scale and increase customer stickiness, which
laid a solid foundation for its subsequent operation and
development. In spite of the decrease in profits resulted
from a large investment in science and technology, with
the gradual maturity of science and technology products,
the investment in development will gradually fall; the
internal application of science and technology products
will help improve corporate efficiency; and the external
sales of science and technology products will gradually
generate revenues. Hence, the Group is full of confidence
in its future development prospects and profitability.

ANNUAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s
total revenue was approximately RMB481.5 million,
representing an increase of approximately 22.8% from
RMB392.3 million for the previous year. For the year ended
31 December 2019, net profit was approximately RMB20.5
million, representing a decrease of approximately 21.9%
from RMB26.2 million for the previous year.

CHAIRMAN':S S'I"ATEMENT

ETRBEE
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DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors does not recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward, the Group will continue to provide quality
property management services as well as value-added
services targeting the commercial interests of customers,
and develop and provide quality sanitary services for
urban management. The Group plans to continuously
grow its business efficiently and strategically through
acquisitions and mergers, investments, joint ventures and
business collaboration. The Group will expand its business
vertically along the industry chain and the supply chain
of the property management industry. In addition, the
Group will strengthen the application of its information
technology system as well as enhance its service quality
for the customers and users of the properties under
its management while launching the marketing of its
information technology system to generate more revenues
for the Group. Last but not least, the Group will promote
the mechanism within the Company’s departments and the
mechanism to coordinate subsidiaries in different regions to
improve its operating efficiency. With the in-depth strength
of the Group in capturing market opportunities, its well-
established brand name in the industry and the strong
growth potential in the property management industry and
sanitary industry, the Directors believe that the Group's
business will continue to grow thereby further driving the
growth of its market share and profits.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my
gratitude on behalf of the Board to the Shareholders,
business partners, customers and suppliers for their
great support and trust. | would also like to express my
appreciation to the management and all the staff for
their contributions and efforts during the past year.

Xiao Xingtao
Chairman
31 March 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION A:-ND'ANAL.YSIS

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The urbanization development of the PRC has been
gradually accelerating since 1980s with urbanization rate
increasing from only 19.4% in 1980 to 60.6% in 2019.
Improved urbanization has led to an increased demand
for residential and other property projects, resulting in
an increased demand for property management services.
The PRC property industry and property management
industry will continue to develop in tandem with rising
urbanization.

The fast-growing economy in the PRC has spurred
continuous growth in annual disposable income
per urban capita. According to the National Bureau
of Statistics of China’s preliminary calculation, the
annual disposable income per urban capita increased
from RMB39,251 in 2018 to RMB42,359 in 2019. The
increasing demand for better living conditions is another
reason for the growth of property management industry.

In line with the economic growth and urbanization of the
PRC, there will be increasing supply of public properties
such as museums, arenas and stadiums to cater for the
increasing demand from city dwellers of the PRC.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group, through its subsidiaries and investments in
associated companies, provide a wide range of property
management services and value-added services to a
variety of properties in the PRC, a majority of which are
in Shanghai. A few properties managed by the Group
are located in Tianjin, Anhui, Zhejiang, Jiangshu, Henan,
Fujian, Hubei and Hunan Provinces. During the Period,
the Group through its subsidiaries and investments in
associated companies had entered into 455 property
management agreements for the provision of various
kinds of property management services for the properties
in the PRC,
compared to 400 property management agreements in
the previous year.

representing an increase of 13.8% as
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWRE DM

During the Period, approximately 90.9% of total revenue
was generated from provision of property management
services to non-residential properties whereas the
remaining 9.1% was generated from residential
properties and other services. Hence, the Group’s
property management services have been and will
continue to be strategically focused on non-residential
properties in the PRC.

During the Period, the revenue was generated from the
provision of property management services. Property
management services comprise (i) engineering, repair
and maintenance services, (ii) customer services, (iii)
security services, and (iv) cleaning and gardening
services. Approximately 99.0% of the revenue during
the Period was generated from the provision of property
management services on a lump sum basis. As to the
lump sum basis, the customers pay a lump sum service
fee for the management services and the Group bear all
the costs and expenses involved in the management of a
property or facility.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION P:ND .ANAL.YSI.S'

The table below sets forth a breakdown of revenues
from providing property management services by type of

managed properties for the year indicated.

BEENWED

TREIIEMREFEREE
RUEMEEE RGO K=

SRR A

MEELE D
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For the year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE
2019 2018
2019% 20184
Revenue % of total Revenue % of total
HEH 1G4
g B g gHEHL
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARE T AREF T
Lump sum basis: B8
Fees related to revenue-bearing & & W =5 12 £ W 18
GFA HEzEA
Public properties NRYE 121,719 25.3% 103,130 26.3%
Office buildings and hotels WARERBE 151,155 31.5% 153,216 39.1%
Commercial establishments GEX S 46,899 9.6% 27,140 6.9%
Government properties g RES 12,773 2.7% 12,458 3.2%
Residential properties FEWE 41,364 8.6% 35,820 9.1%
Subtotal INEF 374,310 77.7% 331,764 84.6%
Fees related to non-revenue TetEWEZER
bearing GFA EHECER
Residential properties EEWEHE 2,334 0.5% 1,265 0.3%
Non-residential properties EEFEEYWE 100,002 20.8% 55,111 14.0%
102,336 21.3% 56,376 14.3%
Total of lump sum basis B 8 I AR5 476,646 99.0% 388,140 98.9%
Fixed remuneration basis B < )
Non-residential properties EREEWE 4,884 1.0% 4,118 1.1%
Total of fixed remuneration B < 1 42 58
basis 4,884 1.0% 4,118 1.1%
Total @t 481,530 100% 392,258 100%
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BEENWRE DM

The table below sets forth a breakdown of revenue-
bearing GFA under the management of the Group by

type of properties for the year indicated.

TREINEMREEVERENAEBEE
AP E U et 12 5w a0 B AR

For the year ended 31 December

BZE12A31HLEE
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
GFA GFA

OO NI /W (I Il  '000 sg.m. % of total
BEEE L2 AR b 42 25
Ferk  mott [P
Public properties NRYE 1,927 29.2% 1,837 33.7%
Office buildings and hotels A KERBE 1,586 24.1% 1,403 25.7%
Commercial establishments EEX =N 967 14.7% 554 10.2%
Government properties BT ¥ % 68 1.0% 67 1.2%
Residential properties TEME 2,046 31.0% 1,591 29.2%
Total “Et 6,594 100% 5,452 100.0%

The table below sets forth a breakdown of management
fee per sq.m. of revenue-bearing GFA under the

management of the Group by type of properties for the

year indicated.

average monthly fee per GFA

(sgq.m.)
Public properties
Office buildings and hotels
Commercial establishments
Government properties
Residential properties

BEEER(FAXK)FIIRE

NRYE
/NN D LY
BEREAE
295R7ES
EEME

TR RFERMERLE N A KE
EEMNAENERERES PO REEERAM:

For the year ended
31 December

BZ12A31BLEFE
2018
AN
RMB
AR
5.3 4.7
8.3 9.1
4.0 4.1
15.6 15.4
1.7 1.9
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION A:ND'ANAL.YSIS

During the Period, the average monthly fee per GFA
is relatively higher for offices buildings and hotels,
government properties and public properties. Thus,
the higher the ratio of office buildings and hotels,
government properties and public properties under
management, the higher average monthly fee per GFA
will be. The total GFA of the managed public properties
increased by approximately 4.9% to approximately
1,927,000 sq.m for the year ended 31 December 2019
from approximately 1,837,000 sq.m for the year ended
31 December 2018. The average monthly fee per GFA of
public properties increased by approximately 12.8% to
approximately RMB5.3 per sgq.m for the year ended 31
December 2019 from approximately RMB4.7 per sq.m for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

The total GFA of the managed office buildings and hotels
increased by approximately 13.0% to approximately
1,586,000 sg.m for the year ended 31 December 2019
from approximately 1,403,000 sq.m for the year ended
31 December 2018. The average monthly fee per GFA of
office buildings and hotels decreased by approximately
8.8% to approximately RMB8.3 per sq.m for the year
ended 31 December 2019 from approximately RMB9.1
per sq.m for the year ended 31 December 2018.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group employed 1,472 employees and dispatched
staff as of 31 December 2019. The Group also
subcontracted part of the labour intensive work, such
as security, cleaning and gardening services and certain
specialized engineering repairs and maintenance works
to sub-contractors. The employment contracts either
have no fixed terms, or if there are fixed terms, the terms
are generally up to three years, after which the Group
evaluate renewals based on performance appraisals.
All of the full-time employees are paid a fixed salary
and may be granted other allowances, based on their
positions. In addition, discretionary bonuses may also
be awarded to employees based on the employee’s
performance. The Group conduct regular performance
appraisals to ensure that the employees receive feedback
on their performance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWRE DM

PROSPECTS

Following the listing on the Stock Exchange on 11
December 2017, the Group, by leveraging on its capital,
has striven to develop as an operator for systematic
urban management engaging in environmental and
property management businesses in core regions around
the country. Currently, the Group has been actively
developing its business in the cities along the eastern
coast, as well as the regions along the Yangtze River by
extending the horizontal development of complementary
products and vertical development along the industrial
chain. The Group has gradually kick-started its acquisition
and investment activities. Against the backdrop of
global economic downturn, the Group will carry out
its acquisition activities in a prudent manner. With the
Group’s acquisition of Shanghai Xin Shi Bei and Hong
Xin in August 2019 and January 2020 respectively, the
expected profit contribution from the acquisition and
investment activities is expected to gradually emerge in
2020.

As a leading service provider in the non-residential
property management service industry, the Group
will continue to build up its core competitiveness
in engineering technology. We endeavor to achieve
innovative development in engineering technology
with our ability to operate and maintain the online and
offline integrated engineering equipment and facility for
Shanghai Bund Ke Pu as well as professional resources
synchronization mechanism.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION A:ND'ANAL.YSIS

Furthermore, based on various technologies, such as
the Internet of Things, the Internet, 3D technology and
big data, the Group will continue to utilise its property
management business as a pilot business to develop a
self-owned open source smart building system, “Dynamic
Building Matrix" ("DBM") to manage the data of
basic status of buildings, which allows the provision of
data and information as well as professional service to
relevant parties, including property owners, property
users, managers and regulators. In the first half of 2019,
such system was installed on projects to a different
extent covering gross floor area of 3.35 million square
meters. On this basis, we summarized the experience in
the second half of the year, kept improving, optimized
the system, and started SaaS upgrading. Meanwhile, we
launched DBM's technical roadshow to key customers
in the second half of the year. Some famous customers
at home and abroad expressed their strong interest
in succession, and the Group maintained continuous
communication and interaction with them. In 2020,
we are expected to achieve the sales of this system to
important customers at home and abroad. The Group
will prudently expand the market at home and abroad
and gradually realize the output effect of science and
technology investment on the premise of ensuring
advanced and stable technology.

Since the outbreak of COVID-19 in China in January
2020, the Group has taken active measures to implement
the regulations and requirements issued by the local
government on the prevention and control of COVID-19,
and carry out all epidemic prevention work, focusing on
the health of the customers, users and employees and the
public security and social responsibilities. Although this
outbreak had a huge impact on the global economy, and
may inevitably continue to spread and affect the upstream
and downstream enterprises of the Group to varying
degrees, however, according to the current guidance of
domestic policies, the important role of sanitation and
property management in urban comprehensive services in
the epidemic will be recognized by the community. Hence,
ahead of the Group lie both crisis and chance, the crisis
being a chance in disguise. The Group will continue to
deepen its strategic positioning, assess and measure the
risks posed by the outbreak, and identify and seize the
opportunities in this crisis.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue increased by approximately 22.8%
to approximately RMB481.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 from approximately RMB392.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018. The increase in
revenue was mainly attributable by the increase in the
property management services by approximately 12.8%
to approximately RMB374.3 million from those revenue-
bearing GFA for the year ended 31 December 2019.
Revenue derived from providing property management
services for public properties, commercial establishments
and residential properties increased by approximately
18.0%, 72.8% and 15.5% respectively which was mainly
attributable to the increase in the average monthly fee
per GFA (sq.m.) for the public properties and the increase
in the managed GFA for commercial establishments and
residential properties for the year ended 31 December
2019. Furthermore, the revenue derived from non-
revenue bearing GFA increased by approximately 81.5%
to approximately RMB102.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2019.

Cost of services provided

The Group's cost of services provided increased by
approximately 25.4% to approximately RMB407.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 from
approximately RMB324.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2018. The increase in cost of service provided
was primarily due to (i) increase in property management
services income from revenue-bearing and non-revenue
bearing GFA which leads to the increase in staff costs,
sub-contracting staff costs and utility expenses, and (ii)
the Group continues to recruit more talent staff and
providing training for existing staff to cope with the
expansion of operations.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s gross profit increased by approximately
10.1% to approximately RMB74.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 from approximately RMB67.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 due to
an increase in revenue despite being partially offset
by the increase in the cost of services provided. Gross
profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2019
was approximately 15.4% which is lower than gross
profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2018 at
approximately 17.2% as a result of the increase in cost of
services provided.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND 'ANAL.YSI.S

Other income and gains

The Group’s other income and gains was maintained at a
stable level of approximately RMB6.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 as compared to the year ended
31 December 2018.

Selling and distribution expenses

The selling and distribution expenses increased by
approximately 54.1% to approximately RMB9.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019 from approximately
RMB6.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.
The increase in selling and distribution expenses was
primarily due to the recruitment of more marketing
staff and corresponding marketing activities for business
expansion for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses increased by approximately
19.8% to approximately RMB58.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019 from approximately
RMB48.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2018. The increase in the administrative expenses was
primarily attributable to (i) the increase of staff costs
by approximately 9.5% to approximately RMB29.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 from
approximately RMB27.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2018 due to recruitment of more
management staff for the expansion of the business;
(i) the increase of professional fees by approximately
80.7% to approximately RMB10.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 from approximately RMB5.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 due to the
merger and acquisition activities; and (iii) the increase of
research and development cost by approximately 14.3%
to approximately RMB8.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 from approximately RMB7.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018 for the development
of the information technology system on both database
level and application level on order to enhance the
guality of the property management services. These
one-off research and development cost has mainly
contributed to the continuous upgrade of “Dynamic
Building Matrix" (“DBM") and a considerable sales to
external market might be realized in year 2020.
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Interest expenses

The interest expenses increased to approximately RMB1.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 from
approximately RMB0.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2018. The increase in the interest expenses
was due to the increase in average bank borrowings for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

Share of profits and losses of joint ventures
Share of profits of joint venture was maintained at a
stable level of approximately RMB5.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 as compared to the year ended
31 December 2018.

Share of profits and losses of associates

Share of profits of associates decreased to approximately
RMB6.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
from approximately RMB7.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2018 due to increase in profits shared from
Anhui PuBang, Shanghai Xin Di and Shanghai Xin Shi
Bei amounted to approximately RMB2.4 million, RMB1.3
million and RMB1.2 million respectively, which was offset
by the decrease in profits shared from Ningbo Plaza
and Shanghai Qiang Sheng amounted to approximately
RMBO.7 million and RMB4.6 million respectively.

Income tax expense

The income tax expenses decreased to approximately
RMB3.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
from approximately RMB5.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2018. The decrease in income tax expense
was mainly due to the decrease in profit before tax for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

Profit for the period and net profit margin

As a result of foregoing, the net profit decreased by
21.9% to approximately RMB20.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 from approximately RMB26.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the
net profit margin decreased to 3.9% for the year ended
31 December 2019 from 6.7% for the year ended 31
December 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION P:ND .ANAL,YSI.S

Other Non-current Assets

The other non-current assets increased to RMB30.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 from zero for the
year ended 31 December 2018. The other non-current
assets mainly represented the non-refundable prepayment
in a sum of RMB30.0 million for the acquisition of
Hong Xin. Details of the transaction are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 9 September 2019
and the circular of the Company dated 25 October 2019.
On 3 January 2020, the acquisition was completed.

Trade Receivables

The trade receivables increased by approximately 20.9%
to approximately RMB100.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 from approximately RMB82.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018, which primarily
kept in line with the increased revenue. However, the
trade receivables are in line with the historical pattern
throughout the Period. The trade receivables turnover
(average trade receivables divided by revenue multiplied
by 365 days) was 69.4 days (2018: 65.1 days).

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
The prepayment, deposits and other receivables
decreased by approximately 22.1% to approximately
RMB48.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 from approximately RMB62.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The decrease in prepayment,
deposits and other receivables primarily due to the
transformation to other non-current assets of Rmb10.0
million earnest money and loan advance for acquisition
of Hong Xin.

Trade payables

The trade payables increased by approximately 41.3% to
approximately RMB74.9 million as at 31 December 2019
from approximately RMB53.0 million as at 31 December
2018, primarily due to the later settlement of the trade
payable. The trade payables turnover (average trade
payables divided by cost of services provided multiplied
by 365 days) was 57.3 days (2018: 62.6 days).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWRE DM

Other payables and accruals

The other payables and accruals increased by
approximately 16.1% to approximately RMB75.6 million
as at 31 December 2019 from approximately RMB65.1
million as at 31 December 2018. As at 31 December
2019, receipts on behalf of residents accounted for
approximately 38.9% of total other payables and
accruals. The receipts on behalf of residents increased by
approximately 6.3% to approximately RMB29.4 million
as at 31 December 2019 from approximately RMB28.5
million as at 31 December 2018. The deposits received
increased by approximately 41.3% to approximately
RMB10.6 million as at 31 December 2019 from
approximately RMB7.5 million as at 31 December 2018.

The payable for acquisition of Shanghai Xin Shi Bei
amounted to approximately RMB6.9 million, which
represented the third instalment payment also resulted in
the increase. Details of the transaction are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 22 July 2019.

Cash Flow

The net cash from operating activities for the year
ended 31 December 2019 was approximately RMBOQ.7
million. Operating cash inflow before changes in working
capital was approximately RMB15.4 million, which was
primarily attributable to profit before tax for the year of
approximately RMB23.8 million, as mainly adjusted by
deducting share of profits of joint ventures and associates
of approximately RMB12.0 million. Changes in working
capital increased the cash outflow by approximately
RMB14.7 million.

The net cash used in investing activities for the year
ended 31 December 2019 was approximately RMB54.3
million. This was primarily due to the payment for
acquisition of Hong Xin and Shanghai Xin Shi Bei.

The net cash from financing activities for the year ended
31 December 2019 was approximately RMB36.9 million.
This was primarily due to the net increase in bank
borrowings at approximately RMB41.5 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION P:ND .ANAL,YSI.S

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB143.6 million. The
total interest-bearing bank borrowings increased to
approximately RMB61.5 million as at 31 December 2019
from RMB30.0 million as at 31 December 2018. The
gearing ratio (total debts divided by total equity) as at 31
December 2019 was approximately 25.7% (31 December
2018: 8.3%). The current ratio (total current assets
divided by total current liabilities) as at 31 December
2019 was 1.4 (31 December 2018: 2.2).

Financial management and policy

The management has designed and implemented a risk
management policy to address various potential risks
identified in relation to the operation of the businesses,
including financial, operational and the interest risks
from the property management agreements. The risk
management policy sets forth procedures to identify,
analyse, categorise, mitigate and monitor various risks.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the overall risk
management system and assessing and updating, if
necessary. The risk management policy is reviewed on
a quarterly basis. The risk management policy also set
forth the reporting hierarchy of risks identified in the
operations.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2019, the Directors was not aware
of any significant events that would have resulted in
material contingent liabilities.

FINAL DIVIDENDS
The Board of Directors does not recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWRE DM

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at
the forthcoming AGM of the Company, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Friday,
5 June 2020 to Wednesday, 10 June 2020, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of
the Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the above meeting, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 4 June
2020.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS

Net proceeds from the IPO (including the exercise of
the over-allotment options on 5 January, 2018), after
deducting the underwriting commission and other
estimated expenses in connection with the Listing which
the Company received amounted to approximately
HK$125.5 million (equivalent to approximately RMB104.9
million), comprising HK$117.9 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB98.6 million) raised from the Listing
and HK$7.6 million (equivalent to approximately RMB6.3
million) from the issue of shares pursuant to the exercise
of the over-allotment options, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRRDON

As at 31 December 2019, the net proceeds from the
Listing were utilised as follows: ERWT:
Planned Use
of Proceeds
Fr 8 & E
Bl DiER=S
HK$ million

FRERERER BEAETT

Use of proceeds

MR2019F12A318B FmATERBE FHEEE

Proceeds
Used
2EHA

8 E
HK$ million
BERET

Balances

HK$ million
BERET

Horizontal expansion by FHRWE - RERHET

acquisition, investment or 5N E) ) K E IR N A

forming business alliance AP T R AT OK

with property management  “Fi#& 7t

companies in the markets 42.7 29.3 13.4
Vertical expansion of both ROMEEBTENESE

industry chain and supply P8 K pE g ETTHE W)

chain in the property "R

management industry 29.8 29.8 —
The development of MEEARMRRS

information technology

system 19.8 19.8 —
Recruitment of talent and BEATREBIEI R

implementation of training L &t &

and recruitment programs 16.3 16.3 —
Repayment of bank BEERITEX

borrowings 5.0 5.0 —
General working capital —REEES 11.9 11.9 —

125.5 1121 13.4
As of the date of this annual report, the Company does RAREHE BB ER - EF78

not anticipate any changes to its plan on the use of
proceeds as stated in the Prospectus.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWRE DM

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY
Quality and committed staff are valuable assets to the
Group's success. The primary objective of the Group’s
remuneration policy is to ensure there is an appropriate
level of remuneration to attract and retain experienced
people of high calibre to join the Group. The Group
links the remuneration of its employees to both the
Group’s performance and individual performance, so
that the interests of the employees align with those of
the Company’s shareholders. As at 31 December 2019,
the Group employed approximately 1,472 employees.
To enhance the performance of the employees, the
Group provides its employees with adequate and
regular trainings. Employees’ remuneration package
comprises fixed and variable components including
salary, discretionary bonus and share options that may
be granted to eligible staff by reference to the Group’s
performance as well as individual’'s performance.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR IViANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xiao Xingtao (H #3%), aged 70, a co-founder
of our Group with Mr. Fu. Mr. Xiao was appointed as
our Director on 27 July 2016, as the chairman of our
Board and re-designated as our executive Director on
24 October 2016. Mr. Xiao is responsible for strategy
planning and business development of our Group. He is
also the chairman of the nomination committee of our
Group. Mr. Xiao is the father of Mr. Xiao YQ.

Mr. Xiao obtained a diploma degree in Chinese Language
from Shanghai Institute of Education* (/8% & Z20x)
in the PRC in July 1985. He attended a training course
in economic study organised by the Graduate School of
Shanghai Academy of Social Sciences* (£ /&1 & £l £z
fiff 3T & ZB) in the PRC in March 1997. Mr. Xiao obtained
the qualification of senior economist upon completion of
the Integrated Economic Management Programme* (&%
E 4R A B 32) organised by Shanghai Accreditation Board
for Senior Professionals in Economics (Production sector)*
(EEBTRBRIN(EAEERH) SREERMTBREETRE
BEFEZEF)in July 2003.

Prior to the establishment of our Group, Mr. Xiao had
worked in several state-owned enterprises. He joined
Jiangnan Shipyard* ()L B #& M B ) (now known as
Jiangnan Shipyard (Group) Company Limited* (JT F#&
(= ®)BMREM AR in November 1968 and acted
as head of its publicity department from October 1992
to June 1995. Mr. Xiao first encountered the property
management industry when he served as an officer
director of Shanghai Jiu Shi Company* (L&A E R 7]),
deputy general manager of Shanghai Jiushi Company
Bund Zhihuan Headquarters* ( /& A & R 7 58 # &
# 48 30) responsible for overall operation and general
management of Shanghai Bund Housing Replacement
Property Company Limited* (- S EEBEHMER
R 2 a]) (now known as Shanghai Bund) from May 1995
to October 2002.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENGHREEE

With his knowledge and experience gained in property
management industry, Mr. Xiao established Pujiang
Property jointly with Mr. Fu in December 2002 for
carrying out property management business and served
as the chairman of the board and general manager since
its establishment. With the growth and expansion of our
Group, Mr. Xiao and Mr. Fu later established or acquired
other property management companies for carrying out
various property management projects and also set up
Pujiang Holding in June 2007 as their investment holding
vehicle for various property management companies and
other companies carrying out investment management
business and has been acting as its chairman since
then. He has served as the director and chairman of the
board of Shanghai Rui Zheng, Shanghai Bund, Pujiang
Holding and Shanghai Pujiang Energy Co. Ltd.* (L &#
T BEIRA R A F]) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Pujiang
Holding) since January 2004, March 2004, June 2007
and February 2011 respectively. He served as a director
of Shanghai Jiu Yi since May 2003 until April 2018 and a
director of Shanghai Bund Ke Pu since its establishment
in November 2004 until February 2019. Mr. Xiao has also
been the director of Shanghai Aidepu.

Mr. Xiao was awarded the independent innovation
leading talent* (B & &% %8 A7) by Shanghai Luwan
District Government* (E/BEE&E A RIBT) in April
2008, the golden prize of outstanding contribution to
Shanghai Property Management Industry* (_t & %
¥XERBTERLER &%) in January 2011 and the
outstanding individual* ( f i A % %) by Shanghai
Property Management Industry Society* (&%) % & 1%
T % 2) in January 2015.

Mr. Fu Qichang (&), aged 62, a co-founder of
our Group with Mr. Xiao and was appointed as our
executive Director and vice chairman of our Board on 24
October 2016. He is responsible for strategic planning
and business development of our Group. Mr. Fu is also a
member of the nomination committee and remuneration
committee of our Group.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR IViANAGEMENT | ’

Mr. Fu obtained a diploma degree in Accountancy from
Lixin Accountancy College of Professional Studies* (37
EE 5 ERIER) in the PRC in July 1983 and a Master
degree in Business Administration from Macau University
of Science and Technology (by distance learning) in
Macau, in February 2004. He obtained an executive
Master of Business Administration (Service Management)
(by distance learning) in Shanghai, the PRC offered by W.
P. Carey school of Business of Arizona State University in
May 2013.

Mr. Fu obtained the accountant qualification awarded
by Shanghai Accreditation Board for Middle Level
Professionals (Accountants) of the Shanghai Moto
Industry Holding Company* (E/& ™ /558 T ¥ 4 A A
B FRITPREXERMBBEEIRERTEEZE E.)
in June 1992 and attended a corporate finance course
organised by Sino-Euro International Business school*
(PREUEIBE TR EFT) in August 1999. He obtained the
qualifications of senior business manager* (= &k i 7%
‘S 1P L & 1% & &) awarded by Shanghai Business
Talents Training Center* (LB AAEI A L)
and Shanghai Desirable Talent Training Projects Joint
Conference Office* (EBEMR AT BI T EHE S
P AZE) in February 2004 and corporate manager of
national property management upon completion of the
National Property Management for Corporate Manager
Programme* (&2 B %) % 8 12 b ¥ &£ I2) organised by
Shanghai Property Industrlal Educatlon Centre* (L8
FiETEZREF D) in December 2001. Mr.
awarded the chief financial officer qualifying training
certificate by Shanghai National Accountants Institute in
July 2013.

Fu was

Prior to the establishment of our Group, Mr. Fu acted
as the deputy general manager and chief accountant in
Pudong Company of Shanghai Jiu Shi Company* (&
AERNFHHEAT) and the deputy general manager of
Property Company of Shanghai Jiu Shi Company* (£ &
AEREYE QA from July 1997 to March 2003.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENGHREEE

Mr. Fu has served as a director of Puijiang Property since
its establishment in December 2002. He was appointed
as the director and deputy general manager of Shanghai
Bund in April 2004 and he has served as its vice chairman
and general manager since February 2009. Mr. Fu has
also been acting as the director of Shanghai Rui Zheng
since its establishment in January 2004, a director of
Shanghai Bund Green since its establishment in August
2004, a director of Anhui Bund since October 2010 and
a director of Shanghai Hong Ji since March 2016. He has
served as a director and chief executive officer of Pujiang
Holding since its establishment in June 2007. He was a
director of Shanghai Jiu Yi from April 2018 to December
2019. He is also a director of Shanghai Puyun, Hunan
Pujiang Property Management Co., Ltd*, and Hunan
Pujiang Commerce City Property Management Co., Ltd*
and the general manager of Shanghai Aidepu.

Mr. Fu was awarded the role model of the Shanghai
Labour Force* (/@M & EN1E %) by Shanghai People’s
Government in April 2010, national role model of
the industry* (% Bl 17 % #& #£) by National Property
Management Society* (2B ¥ % B E %) in September
2011, veteran professional manager of the Shanghai
property service industry* (_E 8 #) 2 iR % 1 % & R B
F¥#£38 N) by Shanghai Property Management Industry
Society in January 2012, Shanghai Huangpu district
professional and technical talents* (Z 2 & fiT L A A)
by Shanghai Huangpu District Government* (/&M =&
R A RBAT) in September 2012 and the outstanding
individual by Shanghai Property Management Industry
Society in January 2015.

Mr. Xiao Yuqiao (B ¥ &), aged 37, was appointed as
our executive Director and chief executive officer on 24
October 2016. He is responsible for the overall operation
and management and execution of the policies of our
Group. Mr. Xiao YQ is also member of the remuneration
committee of our Group. Mr. Xiao YQ is the son of Mr.
Xiao.

Mr. Xiao YQ obtained a double degree in Philosophy and
Business Management from the State University of New
York at Stony Brook in the United States in May 2005.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Xiao YQ has over ten years of experience in the
property management industry. He joined our Group in
February 2006 and had served as the general manager
of Shanghai Pujiang Sanqging Property Co. Ltd* (/&
L= BWHEBMR AT (now known as Shanghai Rui
Zheng) until May 2012. He was the general manager of
Ningbo Plaza from May 2012 to December 2013. Mr.
Xiao YQ had served as the deputy general manager in
Pujiang Property since May 2012 and was subsequently
appointed as its director on 11 March 2016. He has been
the deputy general manager of Shanghai Bund since May
2012 and a director of Shanghai Jie Gu since May 2016.
Mr. Xiao YQ has also served as an executive director
of Pujiang Holding since January 2014. He is also a
director of Shanghai Bund Ke Pu, Ningbo Puyong, Hunan
Pujiang Property Management Co., Ltd*, and Hunan
Pujiang Commerce City Property Management Co.,
Ltd*, Shanghai Jiu Yi, Anhui Pu Jing, Nantong Pu Sheng,
Shanghai Puyun and Anhui Bund.

Mr. Xiao YQ was awarded the outstanding individual
(15th anniversary) by China Property Management
Magazine* (P B ¥ ¥ E 1 )5 5 4L) in July 2016.

Mr. Jia Shaojun (E 4 &), aged 50, joined our Group
in December 2014 and has served as a deputy general
manager and chief officer of department of operation
and administration in Pujiang Property and Shanghai Bund
since then. He was appointed as our vice president on 24
October 2016, as our executive Director with effect from
7 May 2018, and as our joint company secretary of the
Company with effect from 20 May 2019. Mr. Jia is also the
director of Nantong Pu Sheng, Ningbo Puyong, Shanghai
Bund Ke Pu, Shanghai Jiu Yi, Hunan Pujiang Property
Management Co., Ltd*, and Hunan Pujiang Commerce City
Property Management Co., Ltd*, Anhui Bund and Anhui
Pu Jing.

Mr. Jia graduated with a bachelor’s degree in ship
engineering from Dalian University of Technology* (X
I T AEZ) in July 1992 and a master's degree in
professional accountancy from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong (by distance learning) in December 2011. He
obtained the chief financial officer qualifying certificate
from the Shanghai National Accounting Institute in
August 2010.
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Mr. Jia has over 20 years of experience in strategy
planning and corporate management before joining our
Group in December 2014. He was a deputy head of the
department of operation and management in Shanghai
Waigaogiao Shipbuilding Company Limited* ( £ /& 4p
=EEMARAQF) from June 1996 to October 2005.
He served as an assistant to the president and head
of planning and management department of Jiangsu
Rongsheng Heavy Industry Company Limited from
November 2005 to March 2008 and was its deputy
president from April 2008 to March 2010. Mr. Jia was
the president and head of economics and operation
department of Rongsheng Machinery Company Limited*
(B AR A7) from March 2010 to March 2011
and its president from May 2013 to June 2014. Mr.
Jia was a deputy general manager of Zhonglian Heavy
Machinery Co., Ltd (FE¢E# I DA R A R]) from July
2014 to November 2014.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Yongjun (5 # &), aged 44, has been
appointed as our non-executive Director with effect from
7 May 2018.

Mr. Zhang graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University* (/8% 8 KE) with a bachelor's degree
in cranes, transportation machinery and mechanical
engineering in July 1996 and a master’'s degree in
business administration in July 2003.

Mr. Zhang has extensive experience in investment and
corporate management. Prior to joining our Group, he
worked as the senior investment manager in Shanghai
Galaxy Digital Investment Co., Ltd.* (£ /8 2 M &HHE X E
B R AR]) from January 2003 to March 2006. He served
as the assistant director of the investment department
at Shanghai Industrial Investment (Shanghai) Company
Limited* (EEEBE (L&) BR2AA) from April 2006
to April 2008. He was the deputy general manager of
Runfeng Investment Group Shanghai Investment Co.,
Ltd* CHEREEE L BIKREBR QA from April
2008 to May 2009. Since June 2009, he has served as
the director and head of the investment department
at Shanghai Industrial Investment (Shanghai) Company
Limited*( E EE®E (L) BMR2AA]). He has served as
the assistant president of Shanghai Overseas International
Trading Co., Ltd.* (_E /&8 N2 &) since January 2019.
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Currently, Mr. Zhang serves as a director of Weifang
City Water Supply Co., Ltd* (4 mEEKERAF),
Shanghai Qingpu second sewage treatment Plant Co.,
Ltd* (E/BBAE =5 /KEE M BR QA and Dazhou
Good Environment Renewable Resources Limited* (i )
FERRERBEEZRARAR). He is also on the board
of supervisors of SIIC environment Holdings (Wuhan) Co.,
Ltd* (EERBZER(EZE)BRAT]), a subsidiary of
SIIC environment Holdings Ltd. (a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 807) and the
Singapore Exchange Limited (stock code: BHK)).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Cheng Dong (%), aged 57, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 15 November
2017. He is responsible for overseeing the management
of our Group independently. He is also the chairman of
the remuneration committee and a member of the audit
committee and nomination committee of our Group.

Mr. Cheng graduated with a Bachelor degree in
management engineering from Tongji University
(F17E A E) in the PRC in July 1984 and Master degree
in economic informatics from Academy for Computer
Science and Computer executives* (Akademie fur Fach-
und Fuhrungskrafte der Informatik) in Germany in May
1995.

Mr. Cheng was accredited as an organisational
programmer and economic informatics scientist by the
Chambers of Industry and Commerce Region Stuttgart*
(Industrie-und Handelskammer Region Stuttgart) in
Germany in November 1992 and December 1992
respectively.
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Mr. Cheng was a teacher at the school of economics and
Management at the Tongji University ([@ % AZ) from
July 1984 to January 1990. From March 1992 to June
1995, he served as an software engineer and project
manager at Yingta Information technology Company
Limited, Germany* (12 B & 45 #% 3 £2 i {5 2 7)) and was
the company’s chief representative at its representative
office in PRC between June 1995 and May 1998. He
had served as the general manager of Shanghai Yingta
Information Technology Company Limited* (/& Z# {3
B R MTA R AF]). Mr. Cheng is currently holding senior
positions in several companies in the PRC including legal
representative (JA AfX ) of Shanghai Entai Business
and Trading Company Limited* (F/BBRREmE AR QD
A]) since May 1996, chairman of Shanghai Yingta Health
Management Company Limited* (/B REREERAR
[ 22 8]) since November 2008, and general manager of
Anpac Bio-Medical Science Company Limited (& & & 4
Y& SR (EF)BRAA) since April 2014.

Mr. Weng Guogqiang ($ B ), aged 59, was appointed
as our independent non-executive Director on 15
November 2017. He is responsible for overseeing the
management of our Group independently. He is also
member of the audit committee, nomination committee
and remuneration committee of our Group.

Mr. Weng graduated with a Bachelor degree in Applied
Mathematics from the Tongji University in the PRC in July
1982 and a Master degree in Public Administration from
the University of Macau in Macau in September 2003.

Mr. Weng was accredited as a National Vocational
Qualification Level 2 Vocational Management
Professional* (BB X B —RBEKLIE A) in May
2003 and a Level 1 Senior Vocational Management
Professional* (— &% = AR Bk 3¢ 4¢ 22 A) in September 2004
by the Shanghai Vocational Skill Testing Authority* (&
& T B 2 B AL 2 AP 0. Mr. Weng was also accredited
as a Certified Property Manager by the Personnel
Department of Shanghai* (/MW AZEE) in October
2006 and an Advanced Economist* (7= & £ % BM) by the
Personnel Department of Jiangsu Province* (T # & A5
) in September 20009.
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Mr. Weng has extensive experience in the property
management industry in Shanghai for over 18 years.
He had served as a general manager of Shanghai
Lujiazui Property Management Co., Ltd. (L /8 FER¥E
MEEEBRADA) from October 1999 to May 2008
and as a general manager of Wuxi Dongzhou Property
Management Company Limited* (£ 5 % M%) % & 2
BB AT from May 2008 to December 2009. Since
January 2010, Mr. Weng has taken up the positions of
general manager and subsequently executive director at
the Shanghai Tonglai Property Management Company
Limited* (/B RAMEE R AR A G).

Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence (& % %), aged 47, was
appointed as our independent non-executive Director
on 15 November 2017. He is responsible for overseeing
the management of our Group independently. He is also
the chairman of the audit committee and member of the
remuneration committee and nomination committee of
our Group.

Mr. Shu graduated with a Bachelor degree in Business
(Accounting) from Deakin University in Australia in
September 1994. He qualified as a certified practising
accountant in Australia in May 1997 and became an
associate of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants in
September 1997. Mr. Shu attended the chief financial
officer programme offered by China Europe International
Business School from July to November 2009.

EENEAREEE

BAREELBYECTETEEABBISFN
WL o L AEBT1999F108 22008457
REBEREMEEERERARIETRLE -
It 2008458 £2009412 A 7 £ 5 H N ¥
XEEERAAFIEMTHEKE - 52010618
BRLEREBRECLSRAMEERE
RARBIKERNTESHS -

FERKE 4758 0 N2017F11HA15H & %
FAEMMNBILIENTES KEERILE
BEXAEEEREE BRAFKTAASEEEZZ
BgXRURTHEEGRIERELEGKE -

AFAEMIMFIRRBENBR AN G @A K
2.ESEHBEMELTEAM - HMN997F
SATERAMTERMERESTMERS - TN
1997F9AK BB B EHAMAETEE - 7L
A H2009F7AENAZ T BB R s 2k
KBTS AR EEERAE o

LB BR AR
' 45 2019 95




DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENGHREEE

Mr. Shu has over 20 years of experience in audit,
corporate finance and financial management. He joined
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) as an accountant
in March 1994 and later became a manager of Deloitte’s
reorganisation service group in April 2000. Mr. Shu
joined Deloitte & Touche Corporate Finance Limited
and served as its manager from July 2001 to November
2002. Mr. Shu worked as an associate director in
Goldbond Capital (Asia) Limited from November 2002 to
April 2005. He served as the chief financial officer and
company secretary of Texhong Textile Group Limited* (X
W44 £ B AR AA]) (@ company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code 02678) from May 2005 to July
2008. Mr. Shu was employed as the chief financial officer
of Jiangsu Rongsheng Heavy Industries Co., Ltd* (/T & /&
B ETHAPRAF]) overseeing its financial management
functions and corporate finance activities as well as the
daily management of its finance department from July
2008 to June 2010. Mr. Shu served as the chief financial
officer of Petro-king Oilfield Services Ltd.* (& £)’h M iR
% AEBRAF]) (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange
with stock code 02178) since July 2010 to July 2018. Mr.
Shu has served as the chief financial officer of Brainhole
Technology Limited (formerly known as Top Dynamic
International Holdings Limited) (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange with stock code: 02203) since August
2018 to November 2019. He was also an independent
non-executive director of Chengdu Expressway Co., Ltd.
(KE=RAERMDABERAAT) (@ company listed on
the Stock Exchange with stock code 01785), Twintek
Investment Holdings Limited (Z /2% EE KA R A A)
(@ company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code
06182) and Goldstream Investment Limited (£ 8% & A
fR A7) (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange with
stock code 01328) since November 2016, December 2017
and December 2019 respectively. He has been served as
a member of the Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive
Director Association since May 2019.
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Company Secretary

Ms. Cheung Kam Mei, Helen (38 & ), aged 58, was
appointed as the company secretary of the Company on
1 May 2019.

Ms. Cheung obtained a Bachelor of Laws from University
of London in 1999 and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws
from University of Hong Kong in 2000. She is a qualified
solicitor in Hong Kong, a member of the Law Society of
Hong Kong since 2002, a member of the Law Society
of England and Wales since 2003 and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries since 2005.
Ms. Cheung has 3 years of experience in the corporate
governance and company secretarial field.

Mr. Jia Shaojun (B4 &), aged 50, was appointed
as the joint company secretary of the Company on 20
May 2019. The biographical details of Mr. Jia are set out
under the paragraph headed “Executive Directors” of the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management”.

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Cai Yufei (& M), aged 35, joined our Group
in August 2017 as assistant to chief financial officer
and was appointed as our chief financial officer on 1
May 2019. He is responsible for overseeing accounting
activities.

Mr. Cai obtained a bachelor’s degree in Economics with a
major in Finance from Tongji University ([F] & X £2) in 2007.

Mr. Cai has over ten years of experience in auditing,
financial management and corporate financing. Prior in
joining our Group, he worked as a senior associate at
PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhongtian LLP from August 2007
to January 2010. He served as deputy director of finance
department in Tat Hong Zhaomao Investment Holding Co.,
Ltd* (EZL KK EBFRAAF) from January 2010 to
November 2016 and was its head of corporate financing
department from December 2016 to August 2017.
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Vice President

Ms. Zhu Hong (% 4L ), aged 55, is responsible for
managing the invested companies of our Group and their
projects outside Shanghai markets.

Ms. Zhu graduated with a diploma degree in Basic
organic synthesis from Shanghai Chemical Industry
College* (E/B{EETEERER) in the PRC in July
1984 and a Master degree in Business Administration (by
distance learning) from Macau University of Science and
Technology in June 2004.

Ms. Zhu qualified as a corporate manager of the
national property management upon completion of
the National Property Management for Corporate
Manager Programme organised by Shanghai Property
Industrial Education Centre in May 2003, a national
property manager by the Shanghai Human Resources
and Social Security Bureau* ( £ /8 A 71 8 B M
€ R [ @) in September 2011 and an engineer by
Shanghai Engineering Technology Management Middle
Level Professional and Professional and Technical Title
Qualification Evaluation Committee* (/& LTI &5l
MREERAREERMBEEBRERTIEEZESE) in
November 2014.

Ms. Zhu had been engaged in the property management
business for nearly 20 years. Ms. Zhu served as an
assistant to the general manager in Shangshi Property
Management Company Limited* (F/§ FEWXEES
R A &)) from July 1996 to January 2001,

Ms. Zhu joined our Group and was appointed as the
office director of Pujiang Property in August 2003,
deputy general manager of Pujiang Property and
Shanghai Bund since April 2006. Ms. Zhu was appointed
as a deputy general manager of Anhui Bund on 1 January
2013 and became its director on 15 February 2016. She
has served as an assistant to the director of Pujiang
Holding since January 2009. Ms. Zhu was appointed as
our vice president on 24 October 2016.
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Ms. Zhu was recognised as an expert for the Shanghai
Property Management Bidding and Tendering*
(EBETYMREERBKRZFFZEEZER) by the Shanghai
Housing and Land Resources Management Bureau*
(EBMEE L EREEB) from September 2006 to
September 2008 and a procurement evaluation expert
of Shanghai People’s Government* (- & ™ B 7T &% B8
FF#EHXK) by Shanghai Finance Bureau* (b & B
/®). She was awarded the veteran professional manager
of Shanghai Property Service Industry by Shanghai
Property Management Industry Society in January 2012
and the outstanding individual by Shanghai Property
Management Industry Society in January 2015.

Mr. Bai Min (B E), aged 48, is responsible for managing
business development and day-to-day business of our Group.

Mr. Bai graduated with a Bachelor degree in Business and
Corporate Management from Hubei Province economic
Management Cadre Institute* (J# 4t & & 7% & 12 & %0
B [r) in the PRC in January 2009, a Bachelor degree in
Business Administration (Marketing) from Shanghai Jiao
Tong University in the PRC in January 2012 and a Master
degree in Business Administration (by distance learning)
from City University of Macau in July 2015.

Mr. Bai obtained the qualification of national property
manager by Shanghai Human Resources and social
security Bureau in October 2010.

Mr. Bai had worked in various property management
companies in Shanghai for over 10 years before joining
our Group in April 2009. Mr. Bai was a property manager
of Shanghai Yuntai Property Management Company
Limited* (E /B ERMEEIE B R 2AA]) from April 1997
to August 2000. He was a senior director in Shanghai Kai
Shing Property Management service Company Limited*
(EBRUBYMEEERBBEMRAF) from August 2000
to December 2000. He was employed as an assistant to
general manager of the integrated centre and deputy
general manager of the property department of Shanghai
Minghua Property Company* (_t & BAZE %) % A &) from
February 2001 to July 2005. He was the general manager
of Yangshan district and deputy general manager of the
quality control department of Shanghai New Century
Property Service Company Limited* (/& ¥t 42 &= &= R
% A IR A 7)) from August 2005 to March 20009.
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Mr. Bai joined our Group as the general manager of our
estates management office of Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China in April 2009 which was managed by
Pujiang Property. He was then seconded to serve as the
general manager of the Shanghai World Expo in January
2010. Since January 2011, he has served as an assistant
to the general manager and chief property officer in
Pujiang Property. Mr. Bai has been serving as a deputy
general manager of Anhui Bund since 1 January 2013,
and director and deputy general manager in Shanghai
Xin Di since June 2015. Mr. Bai was appointed as our vice
president on 24 October 2016.

Mr. Bai was awarded the outstanding individual by
Shanghai Property Management Industry Society in
January 2015 and is an expert of 5th Council of Shanghai
Property Management Industry Society* (L /& m ¥ % &
BITEWE R HEESES)since December 2015.

Mr. Xu Wenzhang (# X &), aged 50, is responsible
for managing engineering facilities of our Group.

Mr. Xu graduated with a Bachelor degree in Power
Mechanical Engineering from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University in the PRC in July 1983 and a Master degree in
Management from Norwegian School of Management B
in Norway (by distance learning) in January 2000.

Prior to joining our Group in November 2015, Mr. Xu
had worked at a number of international corporations
in property management sector for over 25 years. Mr.
Xu was the property engineering senior manager in
American International Group (AIG) from March 1990
to February 2005. He was the chief property officer in
Shanghai Alison Group Company Limited and general
manager in Shanghai Alison Property Management
Service Company Limited from February 2005 to January
2007. Mr. Xu held the position of national facilities
manager (associate director) in Jones Lang LaSalle
Surveyors (Shanghai) Company Limited from February
2007 to September 2008. He served as a director of
facilities management of Accor Greater China in Accor
Hotels Group from September 2008 to December 2015.

Mr. Xu joined our Group in November 2015 and has
served as the chief technical officer in Pujiang Holding
since then and deputy general manager of Pujiang
Property since January 2016. He was appointed as our
vice president on 24 October 2016.

100 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

H 5 £ R2009F4 A MMAKEB - EALFE
ITERTYEEEE(RBEIVEER) AL
B k& HAR2000F 1A EFT A LB
BEREAAKLIE - B2011F 1A H—EHIEDTH
T ENBEENERYERE - ALEB
203F1ATHBETLZHINED I RKLE
H2015F6 AR —BHEETLSMREBENEER
Sl 48438 o B EN20165FE10824B E & £
ARMHO S EE -

R2015F1H > AL A FBYMEEEITED
SHAEBELANY - HE2015F12AR 5 L8
MYEERTERSFAEESZERKE

FEhE 505

o

BEEEAKEMNTIE

4,
B

\

K5
& X

A ERIIFIAEXRNFARLEBEREB KX
B ESSHOMM TEE LS4 I 72000
FIA(EBRERSE) NS HBEOBEBIE R
Bl EIREE B o

F205FMAMAREBE 251 REEB K
ZRYWEBTEDTNBEE A5 TIEHBIB25F -
% £ R1990F 3 E2005F2 A E L B H
BREEBAGMMETRESMAAE - 520054
2R E2007F1A  BELBRDE(EE)E
RAREAMERE YR EESENEDE
EERBAER NG ETBLEIE - 52007F2
A Z2008F9A KL ERAHEBTHZ
MEHM(EE)ABRARZ2EREEEE
HEE) 2008498 =2015F 128 © &
THESHEEERS AP ELEOREE R

Z@ ﬁb o

e mm

BAEER2015FMAMAREE - 5L EE
TR MR R 82016 F 17 B EEH
T ER BETE o F2016F10A24BE L
FAEBMIEIBE -



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR IViANAGEMENT

Assistant President
Mr. Xu chaobin (FF#7&), aged 42, is responsible for
managing major projects of our Group.

Mr. Xu CB graduated with a diploma degree in
International Trade and Economics from Shanghai
Institute of Foreign Trade* (L /B ¥4NE 5 KE) (now
known as Shanghai University of International Business
and Economics* (_E /& ¥ N EE K E)) in the PRC in July
2000.

Mr. Xu CB qualified as a corporate manager of national
property management upon completion of the national
property management for corporate manager programme
organised by Shanghai Property Industrial Education
Centre in December 2004 and as a national property
manager by the Shanghai Human Resources and Social
Security Bureau in September 2013.

Mr. Xu CB has 20 years of experience in property
management. Mr. Xu CB served as a property
management assistant in Shanghai Hong Kong Square
Property Management Company Limited* (/8% &R
BYEEE AR AR) from October 1997 to January
2000. He was the project manager in Shanghai Shenda
Property Service Company Limited* (L8R KM EER
2 A)) from January 2000 to February 2002.

Mr. Xu CB was appointed as a manager of the property
management department in Shanghai Bund in April
2002 which was acquired by our Group in May 2004. He
was promoted as the deputy office director in January
2003 and manager of the human resources department
in January 2004. He has been serving as a manager
of several public transportation property management
projects since January 2005. He started to serve as
a secretary to the Board in January 2011 and as an
assistant to the general manager in January 2012. He
has been serving as a manager of Shanghai Jinhonggiao
International Building, Shenhong area and Honggiao
airport property management projects in Pujiang
Property since January 2012. Mr. Xu CB was appointed as
our assistant president on 24 October 2016.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to establishing good corporate
governance practices and ensuring integrity, transparency
and comprehensive disclosure. The Board believes that
such commitment is beneficial to safeguard the interests
of the Company and its shareholders.

The Board has adopted the CG Code as set out in of the
Listing Rules.

The Company has been listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange since 11 December 2017 (the "Listing
Date”). The Board is pleased to report compliance with
the code provisions of the CG Code from the Listing Date
to 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors. In response to specific enquiry made by the
Company, each of the Directors confirmed that he had
complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code from the Listing Date to 31 December 2019.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board comprises:
Executive Directors Mr. Xiao Xingtao
(Chairman)
Mr. Fu Qichang
Mr. Xiao Yugiao
(Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Jia Shaojun

Non-Executive Director : Mr. Zhang Yongjun

Independent : Mr. Cheng Dong
Non-Executive Directors  Mr. Weng Guogiang
Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence

Mr. Xiao is the father of Mr. Xiao YQ. Save for the family
relationship between Mr. Xiao and Mr. Xiao YQ, there
was no financial, business, family or other material
relationship among the Directors.
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Each of the three independent non-executive Directors
has confirmed his independence of the Company and
the Company considers each of them to be independent
in accordance with the guidelines of assessing
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL
MEETINGS

According to code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code, board
meetings should be held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals with active participation
of the majority of the Directors, either in person or
through electronic means of communication.

The Company generally convenes at least four regular
Board meetings a year. During the Period, five Board
meetings were convened for the following purposes:—

1. reviewed and approved the 2018 annual report of
the Company and its related results announcement
and documents;

2. reviewed and approved the 2019 interim report of
the Company and its related results announcement
and documents;

3. reviewed and considered various projects and
investment opportunities that have arisen and/or
undertaken by the Company during the Period; and

4. reviewed, discussed and considered the Group’s
affairs, including strategic plans, financial affairs,
progress and updates of business performance.
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Attendance at Meetings of the Board and

Board Committees

CORPORA:TE éOVERNANCE REPORT

EEZERESZESCERHFERE

Number of meetings attended/eligible to attend
for the year ended 31 December 2019

BZE2019F12A31HLFE
HE GEREEERRE

Audit Annual
Name of Director Board Committee General Meeting
EspE Exg EREES RRBEFEKRE
Executive Directors
HITEF
Xiao Xingtao 5/5 N/A 11
SR A i B
Fu Qichang 5/5 N/A 11
BHE 3 A
Xiao Yugiao 4/5 N/A 11
BET® A i B
Jia Shaojun 5/5 N/A 11
ELE T iE A
Non-executive Director
FHITEF
Zhang Yongjun 5/5 N/A 11
REE LA T iE A
Independent Non-executive Director
BUIFPITEE
Cheng Dong 4/5 2/2 0/1
BR
Weng Guogiang 3/5 172 11
KSRCiE:
Shu Wa Tung Laurence 5/5 2/2 1/1

& HER
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During the Period, no meeting of Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee were convened.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the management of the
Company, which includes formulating business strategies,
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. The
Board reserves power for decisions concerning all
major matters which include, inter alia, the approval
and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgeting, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those
which may involve conflict of interests of Director(s) or
substantial shareholder(s)), appointment of Directors and
other significant financial and operational matters.

The Board is also entrusted with the overall responsibility
of developing, maintaining and reviewing sound and
effective corporate governance policies within the Group
and is committed to ensuring that corporate governance
functions are carried out in accordance with the CG
Code, including continuously reviewing and improving
the corporate governance practices within the Group.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the
information of the Company as well as the services
and advice from the company secretary and senior
management. The Directors may, upon request,
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expenses for discharging
their duties to the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

No corporate governance committee has been
established and the Board is responsible for performing
the corporate governance functions such as developing
and reviewing the Company’s policies, practices
on corporate governance, training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, etc.

Every Board member has full access to the advice
and services of the company secretary with a view to
ensuring that Board procedures, and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
As at the date of the report, Mr. Xiao Xingtao is the
Chairman while Mr. Xiao Yugiao is the chief executive
officer of the Company. Mr. Xiao Xingtao is the father of
Mr. Xiao Yugiao.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible
for the effective functioning and leadership of the
Board. The chief executive officer focuses on the overall
operation and management and execution of the policies
of our Group. Their respective responsibilities are clearly
defined and set out in writing.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

All executive Directors and non-executive Director
have entered into a service contract with our Company
for an initial fixed term of three years and renewable
automatically until terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the
other expiring at the end of the initial term or any time
thereafter. All independent non-executive Directors are
appointed from the date of the Listing until terminated
by not less than three months’ notice in writing served
by either the Company or the respective Director.

The current articles of association of the Company
provide that subject to the manner of retirement by
rotation of directors as from time to time prescribed by
the Listing Rules, at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation and that every director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To assist Directors’ continuing professional development,
the Company recommends Directors to attend relevant
seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. All Directors also participate in continuous
professional development programmes to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills in relation to their
contribution to the Board.

All the Directors have confirmed in writing they had
participated in continuous professional developments
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills as
directors during the Period.
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The below table summarises the participation of Directors
in training and continuous professional development

during the Period under review.

&

DNRERRE

TRELZEEXROBEBEAS MBI EFE

EXRERNBR -

Types of Continuous Professional Development

FEREXTRER
Received an
introduction

regarding the

Reading responsibilities
Material regarding and obligations
regulatory update under the Listing Attending
and corporate Rules and seminars/
governance relevant statutory conferences/
Name of Directors matters requirements forums
EERE
EHRAR
REEBEE HEEEER
BEFREEER EEAENBER HENwE
E=pR =EHHMH BEEHSA - V k-
Executive Directors
BiITES
Mr. Xiao Xingtao v/ 4
H WS kL
Mr. Fu Qichang v v
BHELE
Mr. Xiao Yugiao v v
HTB&EE
Mr. Jia Shaojun 4 v
BELERAE
Non-executive Director
FHITES
Mr. Zhang Yongjun v v
SREESLE
Independent non-executive
Directors
BYFHITES
Mr. Cheng Dong v v
BREE
Mr. Weng Guogiang v v
HEREE
Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence v v v

SERKE
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) was established on 15 November 2017
comprising 3 independent non-executive Directors, who
have reviewed the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2019. All of them have
appropriate professional qualifications and one of them
has accounting expertise. Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence is
the chairman of the Audit Committee. No member of the
Audit Committee is a member of the former or existing
auditor of the Company. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee are available at the Company’s website
and on the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for, inter alia,
the following matters:

(@) overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
system, internal control procedures and risk
management;

(b) reviewing the terms of engagement and making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor
of the Company;

(c) reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standard; and

(d) monitoring the integrity of financial statements of
the Company and the Company’s annual report
and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports, and reviewing any
significant financial reporting judgments contained
in them.
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During the Period, the Audit Committee convened two
meetings and performed the following work:

1. reviewed the 2018 annual report and the 2019
interim report of the Company and their related
preliminary results announcements;

2. reviewed and discussed the auditor’s report to the
Audit Committee in respect of 2018 annual audit;

3. reviewed and recommended the re-appointment
of the external auditors, taking into account its
independence;

4. reviewed and discussed the internal control reports;

5. reviewed and discussed the 2019 annual audit plan
of the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company
(the “Remuneration Committee”) was established on
15 November 2017 comprising five members, namely
2 executive Directors, Mr. Fu Qichang and Mr. Xiao
Yugiao and 3 independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. Cheng Dong, Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence and Mr.
Weng Guogiang. Mr. Cheng Dong is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available at the Company’s
website and on the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for,
inter alia, the following matters:

(@) establishing and reviewing the Company’s policy
and structure for all remuneration of directors and
senior management and making recommendations
to the Board on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration;

(b) determining the specific remuneration packages
of all executive directors of the Group and senior
management;
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() reviewing and approving compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal or removal
of directors for misconduct to ensure that such
arrangements are determined in accordance
with relevant contractual terms and that any
compensation payment is otherwise reasonable and
appropriate; and

(d) advising shareholders of the Company with respect
to any service contracts of directors that require
shareholders’ approval under the Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee did not hold any meetings
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Details of the fees and other emoluments paid or payable
to the Directors and the details of the remuneration
of the members of the senior management (excluding
Directors) for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
set out in details in Notes 8 to the audited consolidated
financial statements contained in this annual report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company
(the "Nomination Committee”) was established on
15 November 2017 comprising five members, namely
2 executive Directors, Mr. Xiao Xingtao and Mr. Fu
Qichang and 3 independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
Cheng Dong, Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence and Mr. Weng
Guogiang. Mr. Xiao Xingtao is currently the chairman of
the Nomination Committee. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available at the Company’s
website and on the website of the Stock Exchange.
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The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for,
inter alia, the following matters:

(@) reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board;

(b) developing and formulating relevant procedures for
nomination and appointment of Directors;

() making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of Directors;
and

(d) assessment of the independence of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of
selecting and recommending candidates for directorships
by making reference to the balance of expertise, skills,
experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity
and time commitments of such individuals, business
requirements of the Group and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations.

The Nomination Committee did not hold any meetings
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy
(“Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to
achieve diversity of the Board. The Company embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the
quality of its performance. Pursuant to the board diversity
policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board diversity
through the consideration of a number of aspects,
including, but not limited to, gender, regional and
industry experience, skills, knowledge and educational
background. All board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.
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As at the date of this report, the Board comprises 8
directors. Three of them are independent non-executive
directors, thereby promoting critical review and control of
the management process. The Board is also characterised
by significant diversity, whether considered in terms
of nationality, professional background and skills. The
following tables further illustrate the diversity of the
Board members as of the date of this annual report:

__,Q'f’"tORPORA"I'E éOVERNANCE REPORT

BEAREHY EFeh/\REFEAK -
HR =2 RBIUFATES  EEPERR
AkEZEEREF EFSEWMNAEZE  F
XEERARERTEERE  H#HEZTE-
TRE-—FBERAEFHRAYPESTEXELZ
ZERE :

Age Group Ethnicity
Fir R A = i
Other,
Name of Director 30 to 39 40 to 49 50 to 59 Above 60 Chinese if applicable
EEns 302395 40Z49% 50E59m 60m M L ¥£5H Ht(WER)
Xiao Xingtao 4 v
HEE
Fu Qichang v v
BHE
Xiao Yugiao v v
BET®
Jia Shaojun 4 v
Zhang Yongjun v v
REE
Cheng Dong 4 v
3
Weng Guogiang 4 v
HE
Shu Wa Tung Laurence v v

FER

The nomination committee will review the Diversity
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities (as set
out in the Independent Auditor's Report) for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group
that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group. The Board was not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
might cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and the Board has prepared
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis. The responsibility of the external auditor is to form
an independent opinion, based on their audit, on those
consolidated financial statements prepared by the Board
and to report their opinion to the shareholders of the
Company. A statement by auditor about their reporting
responsibility is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board has developed the Group's internal control,
risk assessment and management systems and has
overall responsibility for reviewing and maintaining an
adequate and effective risk management and internal
control systems to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and the assets of the Group. It evaluates
the effectiveness of the systems at least annually to
ensure the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions.

The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring
and management of risks associated with its business
activities. The Group’s internal control system is designed
to provide reasonable assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate
risks of failure in operational systems and fulfillment
of business objective. The system includes a defined
management structure with segregation of duties and a
cash management system such as monthly reconciliation
of bank accounts.
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The Board reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s
material internal controls and is of the opinion that the
resources for and qualifications of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function are adequate
and sufficient. Based on information furnished to it
and on its own observations, the Board is satisfied with
present internal controls of the Group.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

A deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-
Competition”) was entered into by Partner Summit, Vital
Kingdom, Mr. Xiao, Source Forth, Mr. Fu, Pine Fortune
and Mr. Chen, the Controlling Shareholders in favour
of the Company on 28 November 2017, pursuant to
which each of the Controlling Shareholders will not, and
will procure any of its/his associates and any company
directly or indirectly controlled by him/it (not include
any member of the Group) not to either on his/its own
or in conjunction with any body corporate, partnership,
joint venture or other contractual agreement, whether
directly or indirectly, whether for profit or not, carry on,
participate in, hold, engage in, acquire or operate, or
provide any form of assistance to any person, firm or
company (except members of the Group) to conduct any
business which, directly or indirectly, competes or may
compete with the business presently carried on by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or any other business
that may be carried on by any of them from time to
time during the term of the Deed of Non-Competition,
in Hong Kong or the PRC and such other places as the
Company or any of its subsidiaries may conduct or carry
on business from time to time, including but not limited
to provision of property management services and other
related services. Details of the Deed of Non-Competition
are set out in the section headed “Relationship with
Controlling Shareholders” in the prospectus of the
Company dated 28 November 2017. In order to ensure
that the Controlling Shareholders have complied with
the Deed of Non-Competition, the independent non-
executive directors of the Company had reviewed
the status of compliance by way of confirmation by
individual Controlling Shareholder and confirmed that
the Controlling Shareholders have complied with all the
undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition for
the year ended 31 December 2019.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of
the Company in respect of audit for the year ended
31 December 2019 amounted to approximately
RMB1,400,000.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Cheung Kam Mei (“Ms. Cheung”) was appointed as
the company secretary of the Company on 1 May 2019.
Mr. Jia Shaojun (“Mr. Jia”) was appointed as the joint
company secretary of the Company on 20 May 2019.
The biographical details of Ms. Cheung and Mr. Jia are
set out under the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management”.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2019,
Ms. Cheung and Mr. Jia have complied with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules and taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide
an opportunity for communication between the
shareholders and the Board. An annual general meeting
of the Company shall be held in each year and at the
place as may be determined by the Board. Each general
meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be
called an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM").

— Right to convene extraordinary general

meeting

Any one or more members holding at the date of
the deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company, shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition sent to the Company’s principal
office as set out in the manner below, to require an
EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months
after the deposit of such requisition.
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The written requisition must state the purposes
of the meeting, signed by the requisitionist(s) and
deposit it to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company at the Company’s principal place
of business at 8/F., Remex Centre, 42 Wong Chuk
Hang Road, Wong Chuk Hang, Hong Kong and such
may consist of several documents in like form, each
signed by one or more requisitionists.

The request will be verified with the Company’s
branch share registrars in Hong Kong and upon
their confirmation that the request is proper and
in order, the company secretary of the Company
will ask the Board to convene an EGM by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory
requirements to all the registered members. On
the contrary, if the request has been verified is
not in order, the shareholders will be advised of
this outcome and accordingly, an EGM will not be
convened as requested. If within twenty-one days
from the date of the deposit of the requisition the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s), may convene a meeting in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed by the Company to the
requisitionist(s).

The notice period to be given to all the registered
members for consideration of the proposal raised
by the requisitionist(s) concerned at the EGM varies
according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

— At least 14 clear days’' notice in writing (and
not less than 10 business days) if the proposal
constitutes an ordinary resolution of the
Company;,

Right to put enquiries to the Board
Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the
Board. All enquiries shall be in writing and sent
by post to the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the
company secretary.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication
channels between itself and its shareholders, investors
and other stakeholders. The Company endeavors to
maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and
in particular, through annual general meetings and
other general meetings. At annual general meetings,
Directors are available to meet Shareholders and answer
their enquiries. The Company discloses information and
publishes periodic reports and announcements to the
public in accordance with the Listing Rules, the relevant
laws and regulations.

There has been no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents since the Listing Date.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Except for the adoption of new memorandum and
articles of association by the Company to comply
with the applicable legal and regulatory requirements
(including the Listing Rules) on 15 November 2017 and
with effect from the date of the Listing, there were no
changes in the constitutional documents of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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REPORT. dF THE DIRECTORS
ESHRES

The Directors of the Company have pleasure in
submitting their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is property
management. Details of the principal activities of the
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is not organised
into business units based on their services and the Group
has only one reportable operating segment which is
engaged in property management services. Since over
90% of the Group's revenue and operating profits
were generated from providing property management
services in mainland China and over 90% of the Group’s
identifiable assets and liabilities were located in mainland
China, no geographical information in accordance with
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments is presented.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS

Net proceeds from the IPO (including the exercise of
the over-allotment options on 5 January, 2018), after
deducting the underwriting commission and other
estimated expenses in connection with the Listing which
the Company received amounted to approximately
HK$125.5 million (equivalent to approximately RMB104.9
million), comprising HK$117.9 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB98.6 million) raised from the Listing
and HK$7.6 million (equivalent to approximately RMB6.3
million) from the issue of shares pursuant to the exercise
of the over-allotment options, respectively.
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As at 31 December 2019, the net proceeds from the
Listing were utilised as follows:

EEHRES

R2019F12A31H - LA R B FBEC K
ERAMT:

Planned use Proceeds
Use of proceeds FEeREAR of proceeds Used Balances
R8s E BEEHR
T8 A% 8 RIE ek
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEAET BEET BEAT
Horizontal expansion by FHRWE  REKHET
acquisition, investment or 5 AR EE IR R A]
forming business alliance A PR T FE B R AT OK
with property management &7
companies in the markets 42.7 29.3 13.4
Vertical expansion of both RMEEBITENESR
industry chain and supply o Rt e g ETT A A
chain in the property "=
management industry 29.8 29.8 —
The development of F 8 EMBHR R
information technology
system 19.8 19.8 —
Recruitment of talent and BEATREmIEI R
implementation of training Lt &
and recruitment programs 16.3 16.3 —
Repayment of bank borrowings & & R 177 & & 5.0 5.0 —
General working capital —REEES 11.9 11.9 —
125.5 1121 13.4

As of the date of this annual report, the Company does
not anticipate any changes to its plan on the use of
proceeds as stated in the Prospectus.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December
2019 and the state of affairs of the Group and of the
Company as at that date are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 150 to 153 respectively.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019 is set out in the sections headed
“Chairman’s statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 68 to 70 and 71 to 86
respectively of this Annual Report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS
Relationship is the fundamental of business. The Group
fully understands this principle and thus maintains close
relationship with the customers to fulfil their immediate
and long-term need.

All of our full-time employees are paid a fixed salary
and may be granted other allowances, based on their
positions. In addition, discretionary bonuses may also
be awarded to our employees based on the employee’s
performance. We conduct regular performance appraisals
to ensure that our employees receive feedback on their
performances.

Our major suppliers are primarily sub-contractors for
our property and management services. The Group is
dedicated to develop good relationship with suppliers
and sub-contractors as long-term business partners to
ensure stability of the Group’s business.

POSSIBLE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
FACING THE COMPANY

The Group’s financial conditions, results of operations,
businesses and prospects may be affected by a number
of risks and uncertainties. The following are the key risks
and uncertainties identified by the Group. There may be
other risks and uncertainties which are not known to the
Group or which may not be material now but could turn
out to be material in the future.

Business Risk

A significant portion of our operations is concentrated
in shanghai. We expect that Shanghai will continue to
account for a significant portion of our operations in
the near future. If Shanghai experiences any adverse
economic conditions, or if the local government
authorities adopt regulations that place additional
restrictions or burdens on us or on the property
consultation industry in general, our business, financial
position and results of operations could be materially and
adversely affected.
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Financial Risk
The financial risk management of the Group are set out
in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial performance of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and the financial position of
the Group as at that date are set out on pages 150 to
153.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members will be closed from Friday,
5 June 2020 to Wednesday, 10 June 2020 (both days
inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote
at the forthcoming annual general meeting, all transfers
of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Hong Kong branch share
registrar of the Company, Tricor Investor Services Limited
at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Thursday, 4 June 2020.

SUMMARY OF 5 YEARS’ FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

A summary of the published consolidated results and of
the assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the 5
years ended 31 December 2019 is set out on page 264.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the outstanding bank loans and other
borrowings of the Company during the year are set out
in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the
Cayman lIslands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any listed shares of the
Company during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company
and of the Group during the year are set out in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively.

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the
"Dividend Policy”), pursuant to which the Company
may declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”). As a general
policy, given the current growth of the Company, it is
the intention of the Company to declare no more than
30% of the net profit as dividend each year. However,
the actual amount of dividends declared and paid (if any)
will depend on the results of our operation, cash flows,
financial position, statutory and regulatory restrictions on
the payment of dividends, future prospects, and other
factors that we may consider relevant.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend
is subject to the absolute discretion of the Board, and
any declaration of final dividend will be subject to the
approval of the shareholders.

Any payment of the dividend by the Company is also
subject to the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
and the constitutional documents, which indicate that
dividends may be declared and paid out of the profits,
realised or unrealised, or from any reserves set aside
form profits which the Directors determine is no longer
needed. With the sanction of an ordinary resolution,
dividends may also be declared and paid out of the share
premium account or any other fund or account which
can be authorised for this purpose in accordance with
the relevant law.

There can be no assurance that dividends of any amount
will be declared or distributed in any years.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had distributable
reserves of approximately RMB224.8 million (2018:
RMB227.7 million) calculated in accordance with
the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. This
includes the Company’s share premium account of
approximately RMB167.3 million (2018: RMB170.2
million) which is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and
when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
The share premium account may also be distributed in
the form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the Period, sales to the Group’s 5 largest customers
accounted for approximately 23.1% of the total sales for
the year and the sales to the largest customer included
therein amounted to approximately 6.9%.

Purchases from the Group's 5 largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 27.0% of the total purchases for the
year and the purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to approximately 13.0%.

None of the Directors, or any of their close associate(s)
or any shareholders of the Company (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s 5 largest customers or 5 largest
suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xiao Xingtao (Chairman)

Mr. Fu Qichang

Mr. Xiao Yugiao (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Jia Shaojun

Non-executive Director
Mr. Zhang Yongjun
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Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Dong

Mr. Weng Guogiang

Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Fu Qichang, Mr. Xiao Yugiao and Mr. Weng
Guogiang will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Each of the three independent non-executive Directors
has confirmed his independence of the Company and
the Company considers each of them to be independent
in accordance with the guidelines of assessing
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 87 to
101 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive
Director, has entered into a service contract with our
Company for an initial fixed term of three years and
renewable automatically until terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either party on
the other expiring at the end of the initial term or any
time thereafter.

The independent non-executive Directors have been
appointed from the Listing Date subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of
our Company and until terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either the Company
or the respective Director.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed to have
a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within 1 year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected
transactions”, no transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance, to which the Company, its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year. There are no
transactions, arrangements and contract of significance
to the business of the Group between the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries, or a controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries during the year. During the year, no
transactions, arrangements and contract of significance
for the provision of services to the Group by a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries were made.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or in
existence during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company,
the Directors, the secretary and other officers of the
Company are entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
and profits of the Company against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or
any of them shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason
of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their
respective offices or trusts, to the extent as permitted by
laws. The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’
and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors
and officers of the Company during the Period.

EEHRES

EENREZ ZHREHNZERESR

BRIEXZ—EHREEIN  ARFE - EHK
BARIFE RN B AR BB EARER
SEFERNEMEBDAERMARBEETER
FEBEREEARDZIEARS  RHAA
oo TR ARAHEEFAKHBAR - HE
BRERRIEEFMMBEARBRET LEAEE
EBEMEBERZRS  RHRAH - FA -
22 BB R sl AT o] Y B A R B R | AN 5 B
RERBMAILEARS - ZHREX -

EEEHN
AEFYEITIXTFEABEBARR 2T
MEBEBHOZEERTRZAK -

CEMECHERERX

REBEARFABERAM  EEOBF 28
BAR ARBEFR MEREMSABRER
FESBTHREAARTERBERALR 2
BEREL  REERZEMATEMmA
BB AT AN ZITE SR Z—IERA
RA-BR B BEKHAXBARAE
ENMGENPRAXRRFESE WEREMSR
BERHME -REA ARFREREFR
SRBERYBECEERGABEERER

B o

LR AR AR
F7 2019 125




“REPORT. dF THE DIRECTORS
ESHRES

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2019, the interests of the Directors in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO), which (a) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which the Directors are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were
required to be notified to the Company and the stock
exchange pursuant to the Model Code for securities
transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”) were as follows:

EERNEAQFAREAEABEE 2R G
HEROREREBZ2EERAXR

2019512 A318 - & EF RN A A A) 3 H A8 B
ZE(EERBHFRBEKRAIEXVE) 2R H
RBERGOPHEE(QBEREE S RKHAEERM
EXVEFETRSD MM AN T R A2 7
Hm(BREBESFLMHERIZZERXE
EWERIERIEZTA 2R LAR) (b
AR ARBES KB EKO E32E8EF
EzECMzER H(QOEBERE EWEITA
EFETESFRINEETA((RESFRA D
BAARNFIRBRzERZAT

Number of issued

ordinary/underlying Percentage
Director Nature of interests Shares held of interest
FEeRiTER/

BEx EEMHE HBEROBE FritEZBES T
Mr. Xiao Xingtao Interest held jointly with another 296,754,000 73.27%

person; interest of controlled

corporation®
EESCP ks HE-—ATHRFENEZ

REHEEERO
Mr. Fu Qichang Interest held jointly with another 296,754,000 73.27%

person; interest of controlled
corporation®

HHEHESXE HE-—ATHRAFENER
REGEERERO
Notes:

Q) As at 31 December 2019, 296,754,000 shares were held by
Partner Summit, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands which is owned as to 87% by Vital Kingdom, 10% by
Source Forth and 3% by Pine Fortune. Mr. Xiao and Mr. Fu own
the entire issued share capital of Vital Kingdom and Source Forth
respectively. Thus, both Mr. Xiao and Mr. Fu were deemed to be
interested in 296,754,000 shares.

(2)  All the interests disclosed above represent long positions in the
shares of the Company.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none
of the Directors, or their associate(s) had any interests
or short positions in the shares or debt securities of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which
the Directors are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (c) were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

A no time during the year were the rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age,
or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company or its holding company or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year under review and up to date of this
report, no Director of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries is considered to have an interest in a business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group, pursuant to
the Listing Rules, other than those business of which the
Directors of the Company were appointed as Directors to
represent the interest of the Company and/or the Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 15
November 2017 (the “Share Option Scheme”). The
Share Option Scheme became effective on the Listing
Date. No share option under the Share Option Scheme
(the "Option”) has been granted since the adoption
of the Share Option Scheme and therefore, there was
no outstanding Option as at 31 December 2019 and no
Option was exercised or cancelled or lapsed during the
Period.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set
out as follows:

(@) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme
The Share Option Scheme enables the Company to
grant Options to the Eligible Persons (as defined in
paragraph (b) below) as incentives or rewards for
their contributions to our Group.

(b) Participants of the Share Option Scheme
An Eligible Person is any full-time or part-time
employee of the Company or any member of the
Group, including any executive director, non-
executive director and independent non-executive
director, adviser and consultant of the Group.

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, invite
any Eligible Persons to take up Options at a price
calculated in accordance with paragraph (d) below.

(c) Acceptance of an offer of Option

An Option shall be deemed to have been granted
and accepted by each Eligible Person who accepts
or is deemed to have accepted the offer of any
Option in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme (the “Participant”) when the
duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the Option
duly signed by the Participant with the number of
Shares in respect of which an offer of an Option
is accepted clearly stated therein, together with a
remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00
by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is
received by the Company within 28 days from the
date on which an Option is offered to an Eligible
Person.
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(d) Maximum number of Shares available for

subscription

The total number of Shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all Options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme or any other share
option schemes (“Other Schemes”) adopted by
the Group from time to time pursuant to which
options to subscribe for Shares may be granted
must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the Shares
in issue as of the date of listing (i.e. 11 December
2017, the “Listing Date”) of the Shares on the
Stock Exchange (the “Scheme Mandate Limit"),
being 400,000,000 Shares. Options which have
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme and Other Schemes will not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the Scheme
Mandate Limit.

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders in
general meeting, the Company may do one or more
of the following:-

(i) refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit to the
extent that the total number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all Options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and Other Schemes under the refreshed
Scheme Mandate Limit must not exceed 10%
of the Shares in issue as at the date of such
Shareholders’ approval, provided that Options
previously granted under the Share Option
Scheme and Other Schemes (including those
outstanding, cancelled, exercised or lapsed in
accordance with the terms thereof) will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating the
refreshed Scheme Mandate Limit; and

(i) grant Options beyond the Scheme Mandate
Limit, provided that Options in excess of the
Scheme Mandate Limit are granted only to the
Eligible Persons specifically identified by the
Company before such Shareholders’ approval
is sought.
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(e)

(f)

The total number of Shares available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme is 40,000,000 Shares,
representing 10% of the issued Shares as at the
Listing Date.

Basis for determining the exercise price
The subscription price for the Shares subject to the
Options will be a price determined by the Board and
notified to each Participant and shall be the highest
of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant of the Options, which must be a day
on which trading of Shares take place on the Stock
Exchange (“Trading Day"”); (ii) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five Trading Days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the
Options; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

Maximum number of underlying Shares
comprised in Options to any one Eligible
Person

The total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the Options granted to a
Participant under the Share Option Scheme and
Other Schemes (including both exercised and
outstanding Options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue from time to
time.

If a grant of Options to a substantial shareholder
(as defined in the Listing Rules) or an independent
non-executive Director, or any of their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) will result
in the total number of the Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the Options already granted
and to be granted (including Options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person under
the Share Option Scheme or Other Schemes in any
12-month period up to and including the date of
the grant:-
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(i) representing in aggregate 0.1% (or such other
percentage as may from time to time specified
by the Stock Exchange) of the Shares in issue
from time to time, and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the Shares at the date of the
grant, in excess of HK$5 million,

then the proposed grant of Options must be
approved by the Shareholders.

Time of exercise of Option

An Option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time
during a period to be determined and notified by
the Board to each Participant, provided that the
period within which the Option must be exercised
shall not be more than 10 years from the date of
the grant of Option.

Minimum period for which an Option
must be held before it can be exercised
There is no minimum period for which an Option
granted must be held before it can be exercised
except otherwise imposed by the Board.

Remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years commencing on the Listing
Date, after which period no further Options may
be granted but the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all
other respects and Options granted during the life
of the Share Option Scheme may continue to be
exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue.

Movements of the options granted under
the Share Option Scheme

No share option has been granted under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company has adopted the Share Award Scheme
(the “Scheme”) on 30 August 2018 (the “Adoption
Date”). The purpose of the Scheme is to recognize the
contribution by certain Employees and give incentives
thereto in order to motivate them for the continual
operation and development of the Group and to attract
suitable personal for further development of the Group.
Unless terminated earlier pursuant to the terms of the
Scheme, the Scheme shall be effective for a period
of four (4) years commencing on the Adoption Date
provided that no contribution to the trust fund will be
made by the Company on or after 31 May 2020. Please
refer to the Company announcement dated 30 August
2018 for further details of the Scheme.

During the Period, the trustee of the Scheme, pursuant
to the terms of the rules and trust deed of the Scheme,
purchased on the Stock Exchange a total of 8,218,000
shares of the Company at a total consideration of
approximately HK$20.0 million. As at 31 December 2019,
no shares were awarded to any director or employee of
the Company under the Scheme.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2019, the following persons (other
than the Directors) had interest in the shares and the
underlying shares of the Company which (a) would fall
to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or
(b) were required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein:

B% 4 82 B 5t &l
ARAT D R2018F8A30B ([ 4 B HI ) £ 4%
B8l ([Zat8ll)) - Zt3z2ENE
RETEEFMIENERIAS THEE - LAS
BEBABEBEAAESELERER RS -
UEABREEE-—TERERSIEGEAT - B
ERBEZTEERIRER L - ZHEBNER
FARBEAMNGFRNER  AIIRAERDTR
2020F5A3As 2B T g RETEESER
"R EZTECEMFRE  F2HEAQ
AIEHHI A20185E8A30H 2 A%

RERA - Z 5T &l 25T AR IR Z 5T 8148 B & 3K
FEARBERBIARKRELN2008EE
TR E RN A A $£8,218,000% A% 15 » 72019
F12A318 - MERBEZFTERAARE FEM
EEgEERLRG °

FTERRK

M2019F12A318 * M TA L (ZEEBRIN A
REIEROEREEROTHEEQ@QEAREESK
HEIE B EXVELFE 230 3 M AN D a) M B
FTEE R KO BALAREELERPE
BB E336KMEFE2E Mo EE:

Number of
issued ordinary/
underlying Percentage
Name of shareholders Nature of interests shares held of interest
FrEe®a
BE/HERG P 4 #E &
BREE KA BatME g BOH
Partner Summit Beneficial owner 296,754,000 73.27%
&8 ExEAA
Vital Kingdom Interest held jointly with another 296,754,000 73.27%
person; interest of controlled
corporation®@
=1 HE-ATHRAFEREZ

REGEEEZ
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Number of
issued ordinary/
underlying Percentage
Name of shareholders Nature of interests shares held of interest
FrEe®&T
B8/ HERG Pt 4 4 25
RREB KA EzmME A BAL
Source Forth Interest held jointly with another 296,754,000 73.27%
person; interest of controlled
corporation®@
R HE-—ATHRFERESZ
REHER#ER
Pine Fortune Interest held jointly with another 296,754,000 73.27%
person; interest of controlled
corporation®@
=1 BE-—ATHRBENER
S b AE R
Mr. Chen Interest held jointly with another 296,754,000 73.27%
person; interest of controlled
corporation®@
PR % & BE-ATHRFAENER:
REHEE R
S.I. Infrastructure Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation® 30,000,000 7.4%
("S.L.")
S.I. Infrastructure Holdings Limited REHEEERY
([s.1.)
Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited  Interest of controlled corporation® 30,000,000 7.4%
(“Shanghai Industrial”)
FEEEERARAR REHEBERC
([EEZER])
Shanghai Industrial Investment Interest of controlled corporation® 30,000,000 7.4%
(Holdings) Company Limited
(“Shanghai Industrial
Investment”)
FBEX(REBE)ERAT REHEBERS
(E=-3 ¢ 4
Shanghai Industrial Investment Interest of controlled corporation® 30,000,000 7.4%

Treasury Company Limited
(“Shanghai Treasury")
Shanghai Industrial Investment
Treasury Company Limited
([shanghai Treasury])

XEHEEEES
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Number of
issued ordinary/
underlying Percentage
Name of shareholders Nature of interests shares held of interest
Fiise &7
58/ HER 5 Pt 4 %€ 25
RREB KA EzmME A Bk
Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation® 30,000,000 7.4%
(“Shanghai Investment”)
FERBEERERA REHEEERO
([LERE]
Sure Advance Holdings Limited Beneficial owners® 30,000,000 7.4%

("Sure Advance”)

BREEZRAERAR(E

Notes:

(M

(2)

(3)

Save

21 EDmBEAAC

All the interests stated below represent long positions in the
shares of the Company.

As at 31 December 2019, 296,754,000 shares were held by
Partner Summit, which is owned as to 87% by Vital Kingdom,
10% by Source Forth and 3% by Pine Fortune. Mr. Chen owns
the entire issued share capital of Pine Fortune. Therefore, Mr.
Chen, Pine Fortune, Vital Kingdom and Source Forth were
deemed to be interested in 296,754,000 shares.

Information is extracted from the corporate substantial
shareholder notices filed by S.I., Shanghai Industrial, Shanghai
Industrial Investment, Shanghai treasury, Shanghai Investment
and Sure Advance on 11 December 2017. Shanghai Industrial
Investment directly holds 100% of the issued share capital of
Shanghai Treasury, which in turn holds 100% of the issued
share capital of Shanghai Investment, which in turn holds
47.77% of the issued share capital of Shanghai Industrial,
which in turn holds 100% of the issued share capital of S.I.,
which in turn holds 100% of the issued share capital of Sure
Advance. Therefore, S.I., Shanghai Industrial, Shanghai Industrial
Investment, Shanghai Treasury and Shanghai Investment are
taken to be interested in the number of shares held by Sure
Advance pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, there

was no person who (i) had an interest or short position
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which (a) would fall to be disclosed to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO; or (b) were required, pursuant to section
336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (ii) were, directly or indirectly, interested in
5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying the right to vote in all circumstances

at general meetings of the Company or any options in
respect of such capital.
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INTEREST BEARING BANK LOANS

Particulars of interest bearing bank loans of the Group
as at 31 December 2019 are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the retirement benefits scheme of the Group
are set out in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial
statements under “Employee benefits” on page 199.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of significant events occurring after the year
ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
percentage of the ordinary shares in public hands exceed
25% as at the date of this annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Set out below are the details of the connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions
of the Company as required to be reported under the
Listing Rules.
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Non-exempt continuing connected TEREZNBFERERS

transactions

(1) Property Management Framework (1) MEEEELEHR
Agreement

Date of agreement
fh % B A

Parties

HEP)

Term

F 5

Scope of Services

AR 7% &8 [

Pricing and payment

TE B KA

Annual cap for the year
ended 31 December 2019

B Z£20194F12A31H
LEFENFE LR

Actual consideration for the
year ended 31 December
2019

B £ 2019412 A31H
LEFENEBERARE
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7 June 2018

201856 HA7H

(i)  Anhui Bund, an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group; and

(i) Anhui Wan Tou, a connected person of the Group at the
subsidiary level

() ZEINE ARFEEFEZEMBRF &

(i ZBHEKR AEEXRMBAREEAMEAL

From 7 June 2018 to 31 December 2020 (both dates inclusive),

during which period the parties may from time to time enter

into specific agreements in relation to the provision of property

management services by Anhui Bund to Anhui Wan Tou or its

associates, which shall be subject to the terms stipulated in the

Property Management Framework Agreement

20186 A7H £ £2020F 12 A31A IL(BEEEMA) - R& K

HRAANTHOAATERLZBIIMNEN TR ERIEEMEERERS

RIVEARHE WEAXMESEERDETEIEKAR

Anhui Bund shall provide property management services to Anhui

Wan Tou or its associates

ZRHIMNEFM TR EMEAREYEETERS

Pursuant to the Property Management Framework Agreement,

the property management fees chargeable for the property

management services shall be determined by the parties through

arm'’s length negotiations with reference to the comparable

fees charged by the Group for services to independent property

owners of other similar projects and on normal commercial terms

or better
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Details of the transactions contemplated under Property
Management Framework Agreement were disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 7 June 2018.

As confirmed by our Directors, the principal business
of Anhui Wan Tou and its associates is property
development only, they do not provide any property
management service.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the connected transactions and the continuing connected
transactions and have confirmed that the connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions have
been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms;
and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and are in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company were engaged to report
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with the Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected transaction under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

Ernst & Young, the auditors of the Company, have
issued an unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusion in respect of the continuing connected
transactions for the Period disclosed above in accordance
with the Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules and confirmed
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the continuing connected transactions:

(i)  have not been approved by the Board;

(i) were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group if the
transactions involving the provisions of goods or
services by the Group;
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(iii) were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing
these continuing connected transactions; and

(iv) have exceeded the relevant annual caps.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions are set out in note 36 to
the consolidated financial statements. Apart from the
connected transactions disclosed above, the other related
party transactions as disclosed in note 36 fall under the
scope of connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules but are exempted from reporting, annual
review, announcement or independent shareholders’
approval requirements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
has complied with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") as stated
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Further information on the Company's corporate
governance practices is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report contained in this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
COMPANIES

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors. In response to specific enquiry made by the
Company, each of the Directors confirmed that he had
complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code from the Listing Date to 31 December 2019.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group is committed to supporting the environmental
sustainability. The Group is committed to maintaining
sustainable working practices and pays close attention to
ensure all resources are efficiently utilized.
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REPORT OF THE D.IR-ECTORS

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Period, as far as the Company is aware,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
applicable laws and regulations by our Group that has a
significant impact on the business and operations of our
Group.

MATERIAL LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION
During the Period, the Group did not have any material
litigation or arbitration.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
DURING THE PERIOD

As announced by the Company on 9 September 2019
and as disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 25
October 2019, Pujiang Property as the purchaser acquired
51% interest in Hong Xin from Shanghai Honghui
Enterprise Management Consulting Partnership Enterprise
(Limited Partnership)* (F/8RAECEEEZAEED
¥ (BB & %)). On 3 January 2020, the acquisition of
51% equity interest in Hong Xin was completed.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT TO THE PERIOD

As announced by the Company on 31 March 2020,
Pujiang Property as purchaser entered into an
equity transfer agreement (the “Equity Transfer
Agreement”) with the vendor and the assurer on 31
March 2020. Pursuant to the Equity Transfer Agreement,
Pujiang Property would acquire 49% equity interest in
Nanjing Songzhu at a consideration of RMB4,267,000.
For further details, please refer to the announcement.

Save and except for the above announcement, the
Directors are not aware of any significant event requiring
disclosure that has taken place subsequent to 31
December 2019 and up to the date of this report.
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EVALUATION ON THE IMPACT OF THE 2019
NOVEL CORONAVIRUS

Since the outbreak of the 2019 Novel Coronavirus
("COVID-19") began in January 2020 in PRC, the Group
has actively taken measures to implement the regulations
and requirements posted by the local governments on
coronavirus epidemic prevention and control.

The Group expected the coronavirus outbreak would
have a certain temporary impact on our business
operation as the Group postponed the resumption of
operation following the Chinese New Year holidays until
February 10, 2020, which led to a one-week delay. The
Group expected that there was no significant impact on
our revenue since the Group mainly provides property
management services.

The Group will continue to pay attention on the
development of the coronavirus situation and evaluate
the impact on the financial position and operation of the
Group. As of the issue date of this report, no significant
adverse impact has been identified.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee which was
established in accordance with the requirements of the
CG Code, for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process
and internal controls. Currently the audit committee
comprises the 3 independent non-executive Directors,
who have reviewed the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited
by Ernst & Young who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at a fee to be agreed by
the Board.

On behalf of the Board

RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
Xiao Xingtao

Chairman

Hong Kong
31 March 2020
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Ernst & Young X EET RN RIS Tel 2% +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower BEPRAEE 15 Fax{5H: +852 2868 4432
§j‘ 1 Tim Mei Avenue R{EAE 2218 ey.com
Central, Hong Kong
Independent auditor’s report BYIBREEMKE

To the shareholders of Riverine China Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Riverine China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 150 to 263,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDIfOR;S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that,
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context.

in our

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements. The results of our
audit procedures, including the procedures performed
to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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How our audit

addressed the key HRERERSEE
Key audit matter BREXKEE audit matter WEELE
Recoverability of trade £ 5 JE 4t 3 18 &9 a] 4
receivables [5] 1%

As at 31 December
2019, the carrying
amount of trade

receivables was
RMB100,183,000,
which accounted for
approximately 32.17% of
the current assets of the
Group.

We identified the
recoverability of trade
receivables as a key
audit matter due
to the significance
of the balance to
the consolidated
financial statements
and the significant
judgement exercised
by management in
estimating the expected
credit losses ("ECLs")
for trade receivables
including, the existence
of disputes, historical
payment records,
forward-looking factors
and any other available
information that may
impact the estimated
expected credit losses.

Please refer to
notes 3&20 to the
consolidated financial
statement for related
disclosures.
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Our

procedures in

relation to assessing the
recoverability of trade
receivables included:

obtaining an
understanding of
how management
assessed the expected
credit losses for
trade receivables,
and evaluating the
design and operating
effectiveness of key
control relating to
the monitoring of the
recoverability of trade
receivables;

evaluating and testing
the methodologies
and data/parameters
used by management,
including historical loss
information, forward-
looking factors,
probability of default
and expected loss;

executing analytical
review procedures by
analysing the fluctuations
of significant outstanding
balances and trade
receivable turnover days;

testing, on a sample
basis, the subsequent
settlement of trade
receivables to cash
receipts and the
related supporting
documentation.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be
made available to us after the date of this auditor’s
report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

-
.
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o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Yin Guo Wei.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2020

38 3 B B ]

ENMEZZESFLER BIAES
L#ﬁﬁﬁiﬁmLhkx’Iﬁﬁﬁﬁé
BRABURETEXHMBILIENREEME M

%EM&W%%&%%%@%%@%@%
/\El\ TT/ﬁ
EERANERZESRBE BTWERER

HEEVBERRERIIEFNZREZEIE - A
ERESZSEIA - @#i@&&ﬁ?*#@ﬁ
BERELEEFRLEBRFENBERLT  BFR

[==Ts =11\

E&%%%%ETAEEWMTE&%%E

BRABMBIMEFFENF & ﬁTFEﬁ¢¢
TURE  BRIESFSEZEENRE P HEL

SFEIR -

BERBRLABIYRHBM RS
BEE -

MIERABAR

RXEFHEE B
S ES- ]
BE

202043 H31H

AT BIERARAR
X@& 2019 149




mEEER

Year ended 31 December 2019 #2019 12 A31H It EE

‘C'ONSOLlleTIaED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARE Tt NG B
REVENUE Wz 5 481,530 392,258
Cost of services provided 12 = R 75 Ak AR 6 (407,359) (324,875)
Gross profit eyl 74,171 67,383
Other income and gains HAtn g A R 2= 5 6,742 6,724
Selling and distribution expenses HERKHEAX (9,395) (6,073)
Administrative expenses THFAX (58,002) (48,392)
Interest expenses FERX 7 (1,676) (390)
Share of profits and losses of: EMRATRARIER
Joint ventures EEDNE 5,082 5,481
Associates iR 6,882 7,307
PROFIT BEFORE TAX Fr Bt B & A 6 23,804 32,040
Income tax expense FrE B X 10 (3,323) (5,800)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F A& M 20,481 26,240
Attributable to: ATALEAL:
Owners of the parent SRABIERE A 17,802 25,405
Non-controlling interests FEIZ AR B o 2,679 835
20,481 26,240
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE B A al E@RIEZRIFAE A
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS S TR AR
OF THE PARENT
Basic and diluted (RMB) AEAR#E(AREK) 12 0.04 0.06
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHEi\ISI\)E INCOME
GeHt2ERER

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR% Tt NS R
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F RN 20,481 26,240
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME H fth 2 U8 =
Other comprehensive income that will B BB E T EHHEE
not be reclassified to profit or loss in BamEm2ma:
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences: ME H ZHE
Exchange differences on translation of B E B MK E LD
financial statements PE 5 =%8 161 2,389
Net other comprehensive income that BEREEEIEEFTORE
will not be reclassified to profit or loss 8 %5 89 H ftb 2 [ UL 25 /% 58
in subsequent periods 161 2,389
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR  F R H fth & A M 25
THE YEAR 161 2,389
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR ~ F A2 E = 458
THE YEAR 20,642 28,629
Attributable to: IATALTEA:
Owners of the parent (SI/NETE PPN 17,963 27,794
Non-controlling interests I 12 IR M = 2,679 835
20,642 28,629
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CONSOLIbATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e PRI R

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2019 2018
il T \F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
o3 ARE Tt NG B
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y 13 4,367 3,750
Intangible assets ;A E 14 3,490 895
Investments in joint ventures RELERERE 15 19,858 18,226
Investments in associates REEPERSE 16 83,015 41,283
Equity investments designated BERAFETA 17
at fair value through other H b 2 W 2= 79
comprehensive income RAKE 6,290 700
Other non-current assets HEMIEREEE 18 30,000 —
Deferred tax assets R IEE E 29 212 35
Total non-current assets IEMBEERE 147,232 64,889
CURRENT ASSETS MENE E
Inventories FE 19 168 284
Trade receivables 2 5 WA 20 100,183 82,943
Prepayments and other receivables  F&{f I8 & E Ath 21
JE W 5k 18 48,354 62,133
Restricted bank balances X PR IR 17 45 B 22 14,113 11,107
Wealth management products B EEHE® 23 5,000 1,000
Financial assets at fair value through A FEFAEZEHN 24
profit or loss TREE — 84,527
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEFEY 25 143,557 80,481
Total current assets mEEERE 311,375 322,475
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEBE
Trade payables g5 ENFRIE 26 74,923 53,043
Other payables and accruals H fth FE 1 R IE & 27
JEFtER 75,563 65,108
Interest-bearing bank loans SFEBEITER 28 61,515 20,000
Tax payable JE < 7% 18 7,040 9,470
Total current liabilities MEBERRE 219,041 147,621
NET CURRENT ASSETS mEBEEFE 92,334 174,854
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERTSAEEG
LIABILITIES 239,566 239,743
Net assets BEFHE 239,566 239,743
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINAN(EIAL.POSITIOI_\i
e PRI R

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB"000
¥z ARB Tt NG R
EQUITY i Fa
Equity attributable to owners BRARBEAEABMGLER
of the parent
Share capital N 30 3,391 3,391
Reserves & 31 224,842 227,698
228,233 231,089
Non-controlling interests FEE AR HE 2 11,333 8,654
Total equity BRI 239,566 239,743
Xiao Xing Tao Fu Qi Chang
B R HHE
Director Director
EFE EFE
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mERERBER

Year ended 31 December 2019 £ ZE20194F12 A31 8 ILEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

CONSOLIbATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BRAKEARL
Exchange Non-
Share  Share  Capital  Merger Statutory fluctuation  Retained controlling ~~ Total
Gpital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits  Total interests  equity
Exid FER
B ROEE EREE  ABEE  iEER B RERA #it I | 1
RMBOO0  RMBO0O*  RMB'000*  RMB'000*  RMB'000*  RMB000*  RMB'O00*  RMB'0O0  RMB000  RMB'00O0
ARETT ARETT \RETT ARBTI ARETT \RETT ARETT ARETTL ARETT ARETR
Note30  Note3lf)  Note3ti) Note31(ii) Note3t  Note3t()  Note31vi
WE0 W0 MR BEMG) WM WEN ME)
At 1 January 2018 H018E1R1A 339 17720 9400 (034 1298 (1739 4o0rd 21025 549 215503
Prfitfr the ear EREH - - - - - - DBS BAS B 640
Other comprehensive income for the Jear: FhEtRENE:
Bxchange difference on anston RERNRRNENZE
of foreign operations - - - - - 2389 - 2389 - 1389
Total comprehensive income for the year AL - - - - — W /s 0 85 BN
Disposal of equity interests of a subsidiary HE-BHBAINRTER - - 14 - - - - 14 752 766
Non-controllng ntrests aising fom additionsl BN EE S5 AR ER
capitalinjection - - - - - - - - 858 858
s ofshaes iR N6 - - - - - 6306 ]
Business combinaton under common contrel -~~~ AR E M EEAR - - (19 - - - - (19 - (19
Acquiston of equiy nterests fom the then equity  WE- BB L 2R
bolderof an assoiae FEAMRTER - - - - - - - - %0 %0
Final 2017 dividend declred BERNTERER S - B - - - - - B -0
Iterim 2018 didend decred EERBETHRE - By - - - - - B - B
Transter fom retained proft ERAREET - - - - Uk - (s - - -
At 31 December 2018 H0sEREYE 300 107 0466 (034 4T 050 62983 231,089 8054 139783
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANéES iN-EQUITY
RERERBER

Year ended 31 December 2019 2201912 318 L FE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRRKEARR
Shares held
Exchange  for share Non-
Share  Share  Capitl  Merger Statutory fluctuation  award  Retained controlling ~~ Total
apital  premium  reserve  reserve  reseve  reseve  scheme  profits Total interests  equity
3R
ExRE #R:d #ER
Brx ROEE EARE oHER iERE  BE REORG REEW A% 0 ER f#
RMBO00  RMBOO0*  RMBOO0*  RMBOO0* - RMBOD0* - RMB'000* - RMB'000* - RMB'OO0*  RMB'0O0  RMB'OO0  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARBTL: ARBTL ARETT ARETT ARETL ARETH ARETH
Note30  Note3!)  Note3(i) Note31i) Note3t()  Note31()  Note 31
S OO o O O 1 21
At 1 January 2019 RI9E171R 330010200 9466 (3034) 14734 650 — 698 3080 8654 239743
Profit for the year ERif - - - - - - - 1780 18 261 20481
Other comprehensive income for he year: ~ EREH2ENE:
Bichange diffeence on tianglton hERNZRNELZE
of foreign operations - - - - - 161 - - 161 - 161
Totd comprefensive income for theyear R ENEAE - - - - - 161 - I8 %3 261 060
Purchase o shares under the share award. ~ BE R ZTHEEZ R
stheme - - - - - - (17919) - (17910) - (17916)
Interim 2019 diidend decared BERNNENERS - 9 - - - - - - 0 -
Transter fom retained proft ERERTE - - - - - - 6w - - -
At 31 December 2019 EDEE 3301 107304 9466 (3034 20776 11 (11916 TAM3 1823 M3B 139566
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of = MR2019F 128318 ZEHEEOREAS MG

RMB224,842,000 in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2019 (2018: RMB227,698,000).

MERANEERE R ARY224,842,0007C (20184 -
AR #227,698,0007T) °
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CONSOLIbATéD STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AERETRER

Year ended 31 December 2019 #2019 12 A31H It EE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B it AR% Tt NS R
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REKEESH
ACTIVITIES RenE
Profit before tax & B B 4 A 23,804 32,040
Adjustments for: AT BIETIEAE:
Interest expenses B X 7 1,676 390
Share of profits and losses of: DIEATRARIER
Joint ventures BERE (5,082) (5,481)
Associates B 8 > 2 (6,882) (7,307)
Interest income B A 5 (1,316) (552)
Depreciation of items of property, Y% BB KE 13
plant and equipment HEFE 1,655 906
Amortisation of intangible assets BB EHH 14 750 106
Provision for impairment of trade B 5 W K IAE 6
receivables VKR 707 140
Net loss on disposal of items of HEWE  BEK 6
property, plant and equipment, net R {EEE EIB F5E 80 4
15,392 20,246
(Increase)/Decrease in restricted bank = R #l| 48 17 45 8%
balances (g ) /L (3,006) 5,977
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories FER L/ () 116 (187)
Increase in trade receivables 2 5 W IE (17,947) (26,111)
Increase in prepayments, deposits ERRIE- ek
and other receivables H 4th JiE Ui R I8 38 0 (13,372) (26,053)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables & 5 & i % 18
#pn, O ) 21,880 (5,325)
Increase/(Decrease) in other payables H i & {f 218 & & &t
and accruals BAEmMm O ) 3,580 (4,858)
Cash flows generated from KETHFAEBHRERE
operations 6,643 (36,311)
Mainland China corporate income tax © %/ B /b 1 3
paid T8 % (5,930) (6,564)
Net cash flows from/(used in) R E, (PR
operating activities BenEeFHE 713 (42,875)

156 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF.:CA‘SH FLOWS
MERERER

Year ended 31 December 2019 #2019 12 A31H It EE

2019 2018
—ZE-h#F —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB"000
¥z AR% Tt NS R
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETYHERERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, plant BEWE W EM
and equipment HEIEE (2,352) (2,645)
Purchases of intangible assets BABRBEEE (3,345) (982)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME  BEK
property, plant and equipment REBEEMGRE — 3
Dividends received from joint ventures WWER K B & & b % &
and associates B > AR R 3,940 2,650
Investments in joint ventures and REERER
associates BMEPENRE (28,465) —
Business combination under common L RIZE & T H ¥ A 6
control, net of cash paid (FBREMNERS) — (19)
Repayments from a related party KE—BEH T ERX
Advances to a related party m— RS BN (765) (1,700)
Acquisition of equity interests Wi — BB AR &R
from the then equity holder of a S ¥ DN L &N
subsidiary, net of cash received W MBEWR e — 1,748
Purchase of equity investments at fair & U A FEFHA
value through other comprehensive — Eth 2 E W 25 HY
income xR & (5.590) (700)
Prepayment (2018: refundable AR ETW B EIED
deposit) to a potential acquisition T8 1~ R 18 (20184 -
RRES) (20,000) (10,000)
Subscription of wealth management R & &1 E M
products — (3,000)
Redemption of wealth management &[0 B = & 32 & &
products 1,000 4,000
Interest received 2 A B 1,316 552
Net cash flows used in investing KEGTBMARERE
activities gl (54,261) (10,093)
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CONSOLIbATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AERETRER

Year ended 31 December 2019 #2019 12 A31H It EE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB"000
M i AR% Tt NS R
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MELTHMBRENE
ACTIVITIES
New bank loans MIBITER 61,515 30,000
Repayment of bank loans BEERITEN (20,000) (15,000)
Non-controlling interests arising from 284MT & E £ &
additional capital injection IF 12 IR M = — 858
Proceeds from issue of shares BITIRD AT IR — 56,514
Disposal of equity interests of a HE—RHKBARA
subsidiary A% 7 4 5 — 766
Dividends paid =Nl (2,903) (13,261)
Interest paid B FE (1,676) (390)
Net cash flows from financing BMEETBFAERENE
activities F RE 36,936 59,487
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH B & KRS EEWIEM
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Ot 4) 7 #8 (16,612) 6,519
Cash and cash equivalents at FUNRERER
beginning of year ZEY 165,008 156,100
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXEHHTE
change 161 2,389
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FARKWIE & NIR S
END OF YEAR ZEY 148,557 165,008
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH ~ B& RRSZEBY & #H
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS DT
Cash and bank balances ] e RIRITHE R 25 143,557 80,481

Wealth management products with I 8% &5 2 2 2§ A
original maturity of less than three DR=EA

months when acquired B EEEEM®M 5,000 84,527
Cash and cash equivalents as stated RE&REXRAM B S K
in the statement of cash flows BEEED 148,557 165,008
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION

Riverine China Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The
registered office address of the Company is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal
place of business is located at 14th Floor, Jiushi
Tower, 28 South Zhongshan Road, Shanghai, PRC.
The Company was listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 11 December 2017.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the business of property management services in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

In the opinion of the Company's directors (the
“directors”), the holding company of the Company
is Partner Summit Holdings Limited (the “Parent”),
a company established in the British Virgin Islands
("BVI"). The ultimate controlling shareholders of
the Company are Mr. Xiao Xing Tao, Mr. Fu Qi
Chang and Mr. Chen Yao (together the “Controlling
Shareholders”).

B RS IR AR Y EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H
AAREBEH

HIFEZEREBRAR(ARR]DIRE
FEHRSRAREZERERSTMMA L
RERRBRAF - AARKEMME
Bz t#h #iF & Cricket square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands o F 2 & 2 #b B 7 50
Bl E8H LMK AEREILE - K
RNAR01I7TFNRANBEE BB ER S
FTBERAR (BT ER LM -

AR R EMBAR(REIAER]) X
EEREARANMB(TFREDREDE
EERBELR -

ARREF(EFDR B ARBINE
BRARRERERBRAR(HRRA]) -
—HERBREABEES(RBRELAHE])
M AT e RRARH &R EERRKRRS
HEZSRELE BHESEERRELLE(S
IR RR]) -
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e 'y . ® =
OTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R ek R MY aE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. REAIREEER (&)
INFORMATION (Continued)
Information about subsidiaries EBEHBATINER

AR FEMBRARNFBNAT

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries

are as follows:

Nominal value
Place and date of issued Percentage of
of incorporation/ ordinary/ equity attributable
registration and registered  to the Company
Name place of operation share capital AAREEEZE AL Principal activities
EmRT BB
BRwERAS LER/CHM  Direct Indirect
£8 REXME RANEE E# B TEER
Sino Ease Global Limited British Virgin Islands Us$100 100% —  Investment holding
16 June 2016
PRERERDA RERAES 100% T 100% — REERRK
2016%6716H
Leading Way Holdings Hong Kong HK$68,431,000 — 100%  Investment holding Limited
20 May 2016
VHEEBRAH BA 68,431,000/ T - 100% REZREBRAA
2016F5H200
Shanghai Pujiang Property Co.,  Shanghai, the PRC, RMB50,000,000 - 100%  Property management
Ltd. Mainland China services
2 December 2002
LEBINEBERAR REAN PELE ARE - 100% MEREERRE
2002412428 50,000,0007C
Shanghai Bund Property Co., Ltd.  Shanghai, the PRC, RMB7,700,000 — 100%  Property management
Mainland China services
8 April 1996
LERMENEFRRA hE R RE L ANEE — 100% MEEERSE
19964 H8H 7,700,0007T
Shanghai Jiu Yi Property Shanghai, the PRC, RMB10,000,000 — 51%  Property management
Management Co. Ltd. Mainland China services
1 April 1996
TBARMEERBERAA > hERM - RELE AR® — 51% MEERRY
199654 A71H 10,000,0007T
Anhui Bund Property Hefei, the PRC, RMBS5,000,000 — 51%  Property management
Management Co., Ltd. Mainland China services
26 December 2005
ZHNENZERARAA > HEAM - FEAE ANEH — 51% NEREERS
2005F12A26H 5,000,0007T
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTE

B RS IR AR Y EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. ARARKEEER (%)
INFORMATION (Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) FEMBLARMNER (&)
Nominal value
Place and date of issued Percentage of
of incorporation/ ordinary/ equity attributable
registration and registered  to the Company
Name place of operation share capital AAFEEEZEAE  Principal activities
EMRT BRT
BRwERAS LEKR/SHEM  Direct Indirect
&8 REXHE BRAHEE E# B TEXR
Shanghai Bund Green Shanghai, the PRC, RMB500,000 — 100%  Property management
Construction Co,, Ltd. Mainland China services
10 August 2004
FEMERCRRBERRA > hERG FELE AR® — 100% WEEERH
2004%8A10A 500,0007T
Shanghai Hongji Property Shanghai, the PRC, RMB3,000,000 — 100%  Property management
Management Co., Ltd. Mainland China services
18 March 2016
TRUENEERERAR > hERM - FELE AR® — 100% #MEEERE
2016%3AH18H 3,000,0007T
Shanghai Jiegu Technology Co.,  Shanghai, the PRC, RMBS5,000,000 — 100%  Technology research services
Ltd. Mainland China
3 May 2016
LENAMBERRR hER - PE LR AR® — 100% BT RS
20165434 5,000,0007C
Shanghai Pujiang Ruizheng Shanghai, the PRC, RMB930,000 — 100%  Property management
Property Co., Ltd. Mainland China services
8 January 2004
IEBIRENEERAA > HEAK PELE AR - 100% MEEERRHE
2004F1A8H 930,0007t
Anhui Pujing Property Co., Ltd.  Hefei, the PRC, RMB6,000,000 — 51%  Property management
Mainland China services
10 May 2017
REBRNEFRAR hE R FEAE AR® — 51% MEERRE
2017F5A4108 6,000,0007T
Shanghai Aidepu Trading Co., Ltd  Shanghai, the PRC, RMB200,000 — 100%  Hardware wholesale
Mainland China
23 November 2006
TBNGEREARAR > hERM - FELE AR® — 100% BH#E
2006 11A23R 200,0007t
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“NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. ARARKEEER (%)
INFORMATION (Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) FEMBLARMNER (&)
Nominal value
Place and date of issued Percentage of
of incorporation/ ordinary/ equity attributable
registration and registered  to the Company
Name place of operation share capital AAFEEEZEAL  Principal activities
AR BRT
ERHERAH LER/CHM  Direct Indirect
&8 REXLH REfEE HE B TEEH
Shanghai Bund Ke Pu Engineering  Shanghai, the PRC, RMB10,000,000 — 97%  Engineering management
Management Company Ltd. Mainland China services
30 November 2004
LEMERBEIRER hE R RE L AR — 97% IRERRE
AR DA 20044117308 10,000,0007C
Ningbo Puyong Property Zhejiang, the PRC, RMB1,000,000 — 51%  Property management
Management Co., Ltd. Mainland China services
15 August 2018
ERBENERBERAR > hERM  REMI AR® — 51% MXERRS
20188 A15H 1,000,0007¢
Nantong Pu Sheng Intelligent Jiangsu, the PRC, RMB6,000,000 — 51%  Property management
Property Co., Ltd. Mainland China services
18 October 2017
MRRREREMEARAT  REAM  PEIK N — 51% NEREERE
2017F10A188 6,000,0007T
Hunan Pujiang Property Hunan, the PRC, RMB6,500,000 — 67%  Property management
Management Co., Ltd. Mainland China services
15 May 2019
MERINEERERAR >  HENM  FEHE N — 67% WERERRH
2019F5A15H 6,500,0007C

* Shanghai Pujiang Property Co., Ltd. is registered as a

wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law.

**  These subsidiaries are registered as a limited liability

companies under PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars

of excessive length.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for wealth management products and equity
investments which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB") and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2019. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing
rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other
vote holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

(©) the Group's voting rights and potential voting
rights.
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NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 21 REEE ()

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss is attributed to the owners of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without
a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded
in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following new and
revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current

year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Ventures
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11, HKAS 12
and HKAS 23

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKAS
19, and Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle, which are not relevant to the preparation
of the Group’s financial statements, the nature
and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs are
described below:

(a)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating
Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The
standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees
to account for all leases under a single on-
balance sheet model to recognise and measure
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, except
for certain recognition exemptions. Lessor
accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors continue to
classify leases as either operating or finance
leases using similar principles as in HKAS 17.
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NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using
the modified retrospective method with the
date of initial application of 1 January 2019.
Under this method, the Group has used the
exemption approach for all short-term leases
with the date of initial application at 1 January
2019.

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains a
lease if the contract conveys a right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control
is conveyed where the customer has both the
right to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the identified asset and
the right to direct the use of the identified
asset. The Group elected to use the transition
practical expedient allowing the standard
to be applied only to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of initial
application. Contracts that were not identified
as leases under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
were not reassessed. Therefore, the definition
of a lease under HKFRS 16 has been applied
only to contracts entered into or changed on
or after 1 January 2019.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(Continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously
classified as operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of
HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for several
items of property. As a lessee, the Group
previously classified leases as operating leases
based on the assessment of whether the lease
transferred substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group.
The Group has applied the short-term lease
exemptions to leases with a lease term that
ends with 12 months from the date of initial
application. The Group recognised rental
expenses under operating leases on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. The adoption of
HKFRS 16 has had no impact on the financial
statements of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope
exclusion of HKFRS 9 only includes interests
in an associate or joint venture to which the
equity method is applied and does not include
long-term interests that in substance form
part of the net investment in the associate or
joint venture, to which the equity method has
not been applied. Therefore, an entity applies
HKFRS 9, rather than HKAS 28, including the
impairment requirements under HKFRS 9, in
accounting for such long-term interests. HKAS
28 is then applied to the net investment, which
includes the long-term interests, only in the
context of recognising losses of an associate
or joint venture and impairment of the net
investment in the associate or joint venture.
The Group assessed its business model for
its long-term interests in associates and joint
ventures upon adoption of the amendments
on 1 January 2019 and concluded that the
long-term interests in associates and joint
ventures continue to be measured at amortised
cost in accordance with HKFRS 9. Accordingly,
the amendments did not have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the
Group.
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NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(@

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for
income taxes (current and deferred) when tax
treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as
“uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation
does not apply to taxes or levies outside the
scope of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically
include requirements relating to interest
and penalties associated with uncertain tax
treatments. The interpretation specifically
addresses (i) whether an entity considers
uncertain tax treatments separately; (i) the
assumptions an entity makes about the
examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities; (iii) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates;
and (iv) how an entity considers changes in
facts and circumstances. Upon adoption of the
interpretation, the Group considered whether
it has any uncertain tax positions arising from
the transfer pricing on its intergroup sales.
Based on the Group’s tax compliance and
transfer pricing study, the Group determined
that it is probable that its transfer pricing
policy will be accepted by the tax authorities.
Accordingly, the interpretation did not have
any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not
yet effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform'
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor

and HKAS 28 (2011) and its Associate or Joint Venture’

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material'
and HKAS 8

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available
for adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.
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NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide
additional guidance on the definition of a business.
The amendments clarify that for an integrated
set of activities and assets to be considered
a business, it must include, at a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create
output. A business can exist without including
all of the inputs and processes needed to create
outputs. The amendments remove the assessment
of whether market participants are capable of
acquiring the business and continue to produce
outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs. The amendments have also narrowed the
definition of outputs to focus on goods or services
provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance to assess whether
an acquired process is substantive and introduce
an optional fair value concentration test to permit
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set
of activities and assets is not a business. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively
from 1 January 2020. Since the amendments apply
prospectively to transactions or other events that
occur on or after the date of first application, the
Group will not be affected by these amendments
on the date of transition.
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2.3

2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a
The new definition
states that information is material if omitting,
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary

new definition of material.

users of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend
on the nature or magnitude of information. A
misstatement of information is material if it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions made
by the primary users. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2020. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint
ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20%
of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a
position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which

joint venture.

exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.
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NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments in associates and joint
ventures (Continued)

The Group’s investments in associates and joint
ventures are stated in the consolidated statements
of financial position at the Group’s share of net
assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results
and other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures are included in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and comprehensive
income. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates or joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments
in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included
as part of the Group’s investments in associates or
joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss
of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its
fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss
of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ’

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments in associates and joint
ventures (Continued)

When an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is classified as held for sale, it is accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations not under common control
are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the
acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses
the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the previously held equity interest is remeasured at
its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETFBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations and goodwiill
(Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified
as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the
acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is,
after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a
gain on bargain purchase.

Business combinations not under
common control

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of
units.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations not under
common control (Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) and part of the operation within that unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of
in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Merger accounting for business combinations
under common control

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the combining entities
or businesses in which the common control
combination occurs as if they had been consolidated
from the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the control of the
controlling parties.
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

24 EXERTBEBEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair
value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ’

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

Level T — based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in
the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required (other than inventories, deferred tax
assets, financial assets and non-current assets), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

B RS IR AR Y EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

24 EXEEEBEE)

DNFEFEGE)

F—H — ENHAREEXRRGBER
BTS2 mECRER
%)

F-HK — ERNVEEIHERERY
RV EFEBERN
RIEEF QB ABEN
HETE

F=HK — ERNTABREHQFE
AEBEANRES
R ABBENEES
7

REERUBERRTERNEERAE
mME AKEBRBENSERERAREHT
EOBRERELATEFEERBEEX
MEEEFRBABRBIBEEA[MES
HEER -

FERMEERME
WEEREDRSR  HAH - REELTT
FEREANA(FE BEERBEEE -
TREENGERBEERIN) BEMH
AEEMAKRE SR —HEEZAHK
NeMREELARTELEUNERE
BERARFERELERANENERR
25 UHENEEETE BRIEFZEE
FFIEEMNRERAERNLETEBBILNE
MMEEXREEMRNMELENRER
EUHBERTEREEMBNRSELE
L E Al d Ol & 58 e

LR AR AR
F7 2019 177



NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to profit or loss in the period in which it arises,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss
is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(@ the party is a person or a close member of

that person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXREGHEBREE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued) B8 ()
(@) (Continued) (a) (&)

(i) has significant influence over the Group; (i) AREBEEATE 5
or

(i) is a member of the key management (i) BAEBEFEGARNETEE
personnel of the Group or of a parent of BEKE
the Group;

or %
(b) the party is an entity where any of the by BEALTRFTETIEMEGEHZE
following conditions applies: fS -

() the entity and the Group are members of () #ZEREAEEEBER —%
the same group; Z BB RA]

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture (i) RERBAS ERHZ—F
of the other entity (or of a parent, B2HRA - MEBRARKREAR
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the MEBARNzBECENEE
other entity); ™%

(i) the entity and the Group are joint (i) ZEBEAEERBRA—F=
ventures of the same third party; TZEERE:

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third vy R ERAE=-"HEEZAE
entity and the other entity is an associate ¥ ME—ERBRE=FE
of the third entity; BoBErE

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit V) ZEBRASESELAEER
plan for the benefit of employees of FHEZERBREEN R
either the Group or an entity related to N7 BEBRR A A A
the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly (i) ZEBX@MERALTZEH
controlled by a person identified in (a); sk A

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant i) R@OMEEATHZERS
influence over the entity or is a member EAENSIBZER (WEK
of the key management personnel of the ERZEBRANZEIZERE
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and B8 &
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETFBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

10%-33.33%
10%-33.33%
10%-33.33%
10%-33.33%

Leasehold improvements
Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTS'

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment
including any significant part initially recognised
is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the
fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may
be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with
a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end.

Software

Purchased software is stated at cost less any
impairment losses and amortised on the straight-
line basis over its estimated useful life of 1 to 3
years.
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NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the
asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project
and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is
expensed when incurred.

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)
The Group assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of office (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (applicable before 1 January 2019)
(Continued)

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other
than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases.
At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the
leased asset is capitalised at the present value of
the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element,
to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held
under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid
land lease payments under finance leases, are
included in property, plant and equipment, and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and
the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance
costs of such leases are charged to the statement
of profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic
rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts
of a financing nature are accounted for as finance
leases, but are depreciated over their estimated
useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group
is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets,
and rentals receivable under the operating leases
are credited to the statement of profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where
the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentives received from
the lessor are charged to the statement of profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income, and fair
value through profit or loss.
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETFBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement
(continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them.
With the exception of trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures
a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined
under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement
(continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business
model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a
business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and
selling. Financial assets which are not held within
the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

24 EXERTBEBEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or
reversals are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss and computed in the same manner as for
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The
remaining fair value changes are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the
cumulative fair value change recognised in other
comprehensive income is recycled to the statement
of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income (equity investments)
Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to
classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income when they meet
the definition of equity under HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for
trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends
are recognised as other income in the statement
of profit or loss when the right of payment has
been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably, except when the Group benefits
from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the
cost of the financial asset, in which case, such
gains are recorded in other comprehensive income.
Equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not subject to
impairment assessment.

186 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

REREMEBEE (B)

HEBFE(E)

B FEFARMEE Kz T EE
(BHETA)
RIEAFESARMBEARENERR
BEmE - MEBWA - INE B KR EE
BRBEORBERAOER  FFEH A
AERBHEAAAENEREEEMER -
HBIAFEEZINEMEZEWREER -
REIEERE REMEZHKREERD
R AFEEHRAEESE -

15 JE # 22 F (8 A B b £ E K a5 89 £ 5
EE(KERE)

R HERE  ASBE R EERRER
BENARBEFENERRIEHMITA:
ERIBATNEEERLLIFFEES
R SERERETSARBEMD R AE
EERAFEFAREMBEEK DO RER
BenBNRENTAEREEE -

ZELRMEENERKETEORER
mAP - EEEXNER BREERR
RPERBSEMBEA - B EHAENE
BEANBERAGEHFERAAEE  BRE2
MR SRR E  BRIFEAKER AN
BRETED  FA—BOoNE RS R
BEKRA  REBERAT  ZFWREAR
AR E®E RS - fHER A FEFTA
HemWEWRAREHARX R
BERFfE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the statement of financial position at
fair value with net changes in fair value recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

e  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to
what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.
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NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets
(Continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred assets is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs") for all debt instruments not
held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are
based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over
the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, the Group applies the
low credit risk simplification. At each reporting
date, the Group evaluates whether the debt
investments are considered to have low credit risk
using all reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort. In
making that evaluation, the Group reassesses the
external credit ratings of the debt investments. In
addition, the Group considers that there has been
a significant increase in credit risk when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default
when contractual payments are 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also
consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that
the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at
amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except
for trade receivables and contract assets which
apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 —  Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to
12-month ECLs

Stage 2 —  Financial instruments for which credit
risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition but that
are not credit-impaired financial
assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-
impaired at the reporting date
(but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO FINANCIAIj STATEMENTS'

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do
not contain a significant financing component or
when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that
contain a significant financing component and lease
receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting
policy to adopt the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs with policies as described above.
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NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETFBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial
recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowing and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
other payables, and interest-bearing bank loans.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of loans and
borrowings is as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTS'

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis. Net realisable value is based on the
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statements
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements
of financial position, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.
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NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside
profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises
from the initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
are offset if and only if the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair
value where there is reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and all attaching conditions
will be complied with. When the grant relates to
an expense item, it is recognised as income on a
systematic basis over the periods that the costs,
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised when control of goods or services is
transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a
variable amount, the amount of consideration is
estimated to which the Group will be entitled in
exchange for transferring the goods or services
to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant
benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year,
revenue is measured at the present value of the
amount receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. When the contract contains
a financing component which provides the Group a
significant financial benefit for more than one year,
revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the
customer and the transfer of the promised goods
or services is one year or less, the transaction
price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient
in HKFRS 15.
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NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition

Provision of property management services
Revenue from the provision of management
services is recognised over the scheduled period
on a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives the benefits provided by
the Group. Like the previous year, revenue from the
lump sum basis are recognised on a gross basis,
and revenue from fixed remuneration contracts are
recognised on a net basis.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the
related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).

Share award scheme

The Company operates a share award scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share award scheme (Continued)

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board of Directors
may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion
cause to be paid to the trustee sums of money from
the Company’s resources for the purchase of shares
to be held on trust in accordance with the Scheme
and the trust deed. Such sums of money shall be
applied toward the purchase of the specific number
of shares from the open market according to the
written instructions of the Board of Directors.

The consideration paid by the trustee for purchasing
the Company’s shares from the market is presented
as “shares held for share award scheme” and the
amount is deducted from total equity.

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to
participate in central pension schemes operated by
the local municipal governments. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of
their payroll costs to the central pension schemes.
The contributions are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the central pension schemes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.
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NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when
they are approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in
the note 11 to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’'s memorandum
and articles of association grant the directors
the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed
and declared.

Foreign currencies

The Company and certain subsidiaries incorporated
outside Mainland China use Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") as their functional currencies, respectively.
The functional currency of the PRC subsidiaries
is Renminbi. As the Group mainly operates
in Mainland China, Renminbi is used as the
presentation currency of the Group. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income
on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is
the date on which the Group initially recognises
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability
arising from the advance consideration. If there are
multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment
or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than Renminbi.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into
Renminbi at the exchange rates prevailing at the
end of the reporting period and their statements
of profit or loss are translated into Renminbi at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal
of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Renminbi at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into
Renminbi at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can
be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies. The carrying
value of deferred tax assets at 31 December 2019
was RMB212,000 (2018: RMB35,000). The carrying
value of deferred tax assets relating to recognised
tax losses at 31 December 2019 was nil (2018:
nil). The amount of unrecognised tax losses at
31 December 2019 was RMB45,673,000 (2018:
RMB31,362,000). Further details are contained in
note 29 to the financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs
for trade receivables. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geography, product type, customer type and rating,
and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of
credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit
loss experience with forward-looking information.
For instance, if forecast economic conditions
(i.e., gross domestic products) are expected to
deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an
increased number of defaults in the manufacturing
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At
each reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.
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NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables (continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount
of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances
and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative
of a customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade
receivables is disclosed in note 20 to the financial
statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other
than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end
of each reporting period. Indefinite life intangible
assets are tested for impairment annually and at
other times when such an indicator exists. Other
non-financial assets are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the
carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs
of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset.
When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTS'

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued
based on a market-based valuation technique as
detailed in note 36 to the financial statements.
The valuation requires the Group to determine the
comparable public companies (peers) and select
the price multiple. In addition, the Group makes
estimates about the discount for illiquidity and size
differences. The Group classifies the fair value of
these investments as Level 3. The fair value of the
unlisted equity investments at 31 December 2019
was RMB6,290,000 (2018: RMB700,000). Further
details are included in note 17 to the financial
statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
For management purposes, the Group is not
organised into business units based on their services
and the Group has only one reportable operating
segment which is engaged in property management
services.

No operating segments have been aggregated to
form the above reportable operating segment.

Geographical information

Since all of the Group’s revenue were generated
from providing property management services
in Mainland China and all of the Group’s non-
current assets were located in Mainland China, no
geographical information in accordance with HKFRS
8 Operating Segments is presented.

Information about major customers

Since none of the Group's sales to a single customer
amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s total
revenue, no information about major customers in
accordance with HKFRS 8 Operating Segments is
presented.
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NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H
5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. & - HRARWE

An analysis of revenue is as follows: W rmT:

2019 2018
s =\«
RMB’000 RMB'000
LS EnTr

Revenue from contracts with P Y=EY==F o)l &3
customers
Property management service income ‘& & I ¥ 2 & 12 IR %5 Ug A
on the lump sum basis 476,646 388,140
Property management service income Bl <& i ) 3 & 12 fR 7% W A
on the fixed remuneration basis 4,884 4118
481,530 392,258
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEAN W=
(i) The following table shows the amount of (i) TRINRAI:KEHEERH W=
revenue recognised in the current reporting e F - ZEWEARYIERED
period that was included in the contract FH & 4 B E I 4 5 71 HA 5T B
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting WEBEAEEES TAM®R:

period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods:

2019 2018

S sl =\«
RMB’000 RMB’000
WL EnTr

Revenue recognised that was included B 5 32 7 ) & Hi #7)

in contract liabilities at the BEIAGRNEEDN
beginning of the reporting period: &=
Provision of property management RUEMEEERD
services 5,425 8,183
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B RS IR AR Y EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. W#H=- - HMKRARKRES (&)
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHNMHMKE(E)
(Continued)
(ii) Performance obligation (i) ERNEE

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations is summarised below:

Property management services

The performances obligation is satisfied over
time as services are rendered. Management
service contracts are for periods of one to
four years, and are billed based on the time
incurred.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated
to the remaining performance obligations
(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31
December are as follows:

BARAEENEGELE R B
T

VEN-BY T
BHOEEBREHERBOEKETX -
EERBAEONE-—ETNFENF
IR WIREANKREEKR -

R12A31H PEZEZ%TEHET
(REREITDEX)NRHER S
CER N

2019 2018
—E-NEF —F-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%E Tt NG B

Amounts expected to be 78 B B R B M ER Y
recognised as revenue: Cok-C
Within one year —F R 353,158 247,151
After one year BiE—F 242,135 122,756
595,293 369,907

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to
the remaining performance obligations which
are expected to be recognised as revenue
after one year relate to property management
services, of which the performance obligations
are to be satisfied within two years. All the
other amounts of transaction prices allocated
to the remaining performance obligations are
expected to be recognised as revenue within
one year. The amounts disclosed above do
not include variable consideration which is
constrained.

BN - FREA/BEND
RERTEHNEENXRZEREHE
BRBRMEREKRNYEE R
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. Wz HMbW A RWE(E)

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers REFZFEHHWE(E)
(Continued)
(ii) Performance obligation (Continued) (ii) BHEFTE)
2019 2018
“E-NE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® Tt ARBEF T
Other income: Hi A
Bank interest income RITH B WA 1,316 552
Government grants* Bk ER* 2,633 4,942
Others Hb 2,793 1,230
6,742 6,724
* Government grants include various subsidies * BREKSESRRBEASER AR
received by the Group from the relevant government B ESHZEME - BEAEZ
bodies. There are no unfulfilled conditions or SN RERIGHEKSHBEEE -

contingencies relating to these grants.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTS
B RS IR AR Y EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. PFRBiA0E R
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after AEBEKBRBER G TR (GEA) T 5
charging/(crediting): BIBEFH
2019 2018
—E-AF —E-)N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB"000
Mt it AR% Tt NS R
Cost of services provided 12 fH AR 75 B B AR 407,359 324,875
Depreciation of property, ME - WE R
plant and equipment HETE 13 1,655 906
Amortisation and intangible assets  # 2 & & # $5 14 750 106
Research and development costs Tt % B A 8,041 7,006
Employee benefit expenses & B2 M F X
(including directors’ and chief (BREEEK
executive’s remuneration FETHAER
(note 8)): & (Bt 7£8)) -
Wages and salaries IEkF® 101,984 86,500
Pension scheme contributions RIK® 5T 8
(defined contribution scheme), (REMHEZEED 34,561 32,866
Minimum lease payments under KEHERT
operating leases KM &K — 2,444
Lease payments not included in the X it AHEGE =
measurement of lease liabilities B & 3 2,458 —
Auditor’s remuneration % EE B & 1,400 1,130
Bank charges RITHE 307 140
Office expenses MAERT 2,641 2,354
Impairment of trade receivables, B 5 R HIERE
net Pt 20 707 140
Net loss on disposal of items of HEME BEK
property, plant and equipment REEEEBFE 80 4
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NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

7. INTEREST EXPENSES

7. MEMX

An analysis of interest expenses is as follows: MERZDHWT:

2019 2018
s =\«
RMB’000 RMB'000
LS EnTr

Interest expenses on bank loans

RITERFERAX 1,676 390

8. DIRECTORS’" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EESRTIEMTHAEME

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration for BB MBS LA (ETEEE
the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing B AEM T Bk BBEQFIK
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as Bl 25383(1)(a) * (b) * (o) & (f) 1§ A &2 A &)
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified (BEEZMZER) RO F2ETH
from time to time, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) BNFAEERETETHRAEN#H W
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 ™

of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2019 2018
SEBEd ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T 7

Fees

aka 315 312

Other emoluments:
Salaries, allowances and

HA B £ :
e RRBEEDEAN

benefits in kind 2,753 2,753
Pension scheme contributions RN 162 240
2,915 2,993

3,230 3,305
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e |

NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8.

REMUNERATION (Continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive
directors during the year were as follows:

B RS IR AR Y EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H
EERFETHAEME(H)

Q) BUFHITES
FRNENBIFNTEENEES N
N

2019 2018

S Nt =\«
RMB’000 RMB'000
LS ErT

Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence HERLE 105 104
Mr. Cheng Dong BREE 105 104
Mr. Weng Guogiang St 105 104

315 312

There were no other emoluments payable
to the independent non-executive directors
during the year (2018: Nil).

TR BEBRNTELERTES
B E B & (20184F : &) o
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&3k 2019 211



NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERFETHAEME(H)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors, a non-executive (b) MITEE —BXEHTEER
director and the chief executive FETHAER

Year ended 31 December 2019
BZ2019F12831R L EE
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total

Fees in kind contributions remuneration

e 2H  EHeHd
e REWEA fit ¥ BEH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AR®Tn AR¥Tx AR®Tn

Executive directors: HIES:
Mr. Xiao Xing Tao HERLE — 929 - 929
Mr. Fu Qi Chang BHEERAE — 654 - 654
Mr. Xiao Yu Qiao™ ER=pideal - 590 81 671
Mr. Jiao Shao Jun ELERE — 580 81 661
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Zhang Yong Jun REELE - — — —

= 2,753 162 2,915
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTS

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors, a non-executive
director and the chief executive
(Continued)

B RS IR AR Y EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H
8. EERFETHAEME(H)

(b) BITES  —BFHATESER
FETRAEGE)

Year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019512831LEE
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  remuneration
e RE  BAeid
e REVEA HxR B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFTT ARETE AREFR
Executive directors: WTES:
Mr. Xiao Xing Tao HEEBLAE — 929 — 929
Mr. Fu Qi Chang BEEXAE — 654 80 734
Mr. Xiao Yu Qiao!" BTBE4EY — 590 80 670
Mr. Jiao Shao Jun® BELEREO — 580 80 660
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Zhang Yong Jun® REELAEC — — — —
— 2,753 240 2,993

M Mr. Xiao Yu Qiao is also the chief executive of the
Company.

@ Mr. Jiao Shao Jun and Mr. Zhang Yong Jun were
appointed as an executive director and a non-
executive director of the Company on 7 May 2018,
respectively.

There was no arrangement under which a
director or chief executive waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration during the year.

o BYBEETRARBTHRAR -

@ BELOERERREEFSLEDHIN2018F5A
TREZERARRARTESMIENITES -

FA O BETAEFAEIETHRABR
ZHIRABREEFAME OB -
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NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.
The five highest paid employees during the year
included four directors including the chief executive
(2018: four directors including the chief executive),
details of whose remuneration are set out in note
8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year
of the remaining one (2018: one) highest paid

LTEEEFEE

FR hEsnygRBREBENEZESRK
FETBRAEQRSF: WZEEK *
ETHRAR) BEMNMESFBHRE
XK FES o BN — R (20185 : —RK) W IE
AAREESETBTRAENGESHE
BENFEAMSNT:

employee who is neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

2019 2018
el T \F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®E Tt INGL R

Salaries, allowances and e ERLEYEAR
benefits in kind 580 829
Pension scheme contributions PSRN R 81 16
661 845

MENFUTHENFEERIFETRT
BABH &S HREREAHNT :

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell
within the following band is as follows:

2018
T—N\%F

Nil to RMB1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/% 7T 1 1
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10.

NOTES TO FINANCIAIj STATEMENTS'”’

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity
basis on profits arising in or derived from the tax
jurisdictions in which members of the Group are
domiciled and operate. The Group and the Company
are not liable for income tax in Hong Kong as they
did not have assessable income sourced from Hong
Kong during the year.

The Company is a tax-exempted company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands.

Provision for the PRC income tax has been made at
the applicable income tax rate of 25% (2018: 25%)
on the assessable profits of the PRC subsidiaries.

B RS IR AR Y EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

10. FRIEHEAX
AEBEENEREERAKEBEKER
%Eafﬂﬁ&m%Pﬁ&?xﬁ%liﬁﬁ?iﬁ
BRENEMNIHAER - AEERAR
RIHABMEBEEMGHR BRENRENR
WEIREEBOERBIA

ViN/NE]| HeBasaMkImefia
j °
HePREKBEA

T 25% (20184 : 25%) it
TR o

A E SR B M IR @ A E
EITHRE RS

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARE Tt NG R

Current Mainland China corporate B AR A B A 3 1 3

income tax FT 15 %%

Charge for the year FAEH 3,500 (4,254)
Deferred tax (note 29) I 3 7 38 (B 3£ 29) (177) 10,054
Total tax charge for the year FAMBE L KB 3,323 5,800

BT B AR AR
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"NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable
to profit before tax at the statutory rate for the
jurisdiction in which the Company and the majority
of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense
at the effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the
applicable rate (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the

effective tax rates are as follows:

10. FRE B A< @)

BARA R EKE D B A= M ATE
AR [ 0K E B R 5 H A9 BR 31 AT B B
EANRAR B ERRERGFEND
AR EE - ARBERBRE (AEERE)
HERREOYERENT:

2019 2018
—E—-h#EF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR% Tt N R

Profit before tax & BB 4 A 23,804 32,040
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25% &% & B £25% 71 & /9 # 8 5,951 8,010
Lower tax rates enacted by local b 7 BE 28 A B R R

authority (234) 125
Profits attributable to joint ventures BREPERBEDLE

and associates (note (a)) J& 15 4 F (B 3E @) (2,991) (3,197)
Expenses not deductible for tax R0l 696 667
Release of tax provision upon the e RA0OK [E 18 BR R BB

expiry of statute of limitation 1 5 (Mt 5% (b))

(note (b)) (3,285) (3,113)
Tax losses not recognised AERHIBEEE 3,186 3,308
Tax charge at the Group's effective EASEEBRREFED

rate 75 T8 B X 3,323 5,800
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTSJ

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

1.

Notes:

(a)

The share of tax attributable to joint ventures and
associates amounting to RMB3,670,000 for the year ended
31 December 2019 (2018: RMB4,240,000) is included
in “Share of profits and losses of joint ventures and
associates” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

B RS IR AR Y EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

10. FREH MA@
Gk

(@) HE2019F12A31BIEFE  DHEEGE
ME 2 ¥R B ARMS6E70,0007T (2018
F: AR ¥4,240,00070) F AT AGZ A B
RInEEEahERBECEER] -

(b) The release of a tax provision of RMB3,285,000 (b) fi% B B E BB A R 3,285,000 5 E =
represented differences between tax provided under the 2015F12A3MBEFEALEBEE TERIZR
Deemed Profit Basis and Accounting Book Basis for certain EmMEERERYUWEETIRBIERB
entities of the Group for the year ended 31 December WEE ARBEBEN)KINEZERBHRE
2015. Such provision is only released upon the latter of i) AERPEABATENRTERMARTE &
the receipt of confirmation from the competent tax bureau AHEERTENBERE - BER2017F4A4
that the adoption of the deemed profit tax assessment W Bz ERE Ri)E 220156128318 1
basis and tax rate following the provisions of relevant PRC G ) B IE B R U TE W (R201945A8
tax laws, which was received in April 2017; and ii) the 3MBEM) B (ARBREEERBE) T UMK -
expiration of the statute of limitation of the tax provision
for the year ended 31 December 2015, which was on 31
May 2019.

DIVIDENDS 1. BE

2019 2018
—E—hE —T—-N\%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%ET 7 R
Interim — HKO0.8 cents RE — iR T AR0.8 7 1l
(2018: HK1 cent) per ordinary share (20184 : 1781) 2,903 3,535
Proposed final — Nil (2018: Nil) EEAEH —SEREBRE
per ordinary share (20184 : &) — —
2,903 3,535

The Board does not recommend the payment of
a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2019.

EFeUWAERIRNMNEZ=2019F12A31
BIFFERREBARKRS -
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"NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE PARENT
The calculation of the basic earnings per share
amount is based on the profit for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent, and the ordinary shares of 397,479,967
(2018: 404,931,506) in issue during the year, as
adjusted to reflect the weighted average number of
shares repurchased under the share award scheme
during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary
shares in issue during the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: Nil).

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per
share are based on:

12.

BAREBESZREABEER
2R

SREARFSEDES DAL BM S
B 5 A B 15 6 9 S8 ) RO BB AT
397,479,967 1% (20184 : 404,931,506% )
SR LT HERRAS
AR 5 IR 19 52 D B AR 19 9 10 4
T -

HE209FRA3MBLEFE AEB W
EBTEECEITE AR (2018F 1 &) ©

BREALEFRNDRATEEE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB"000
ARB Tt NG R
Earnings ZF
Profit attributable to ordinary equity S RAIZEBEZAMEA
holders of the parent FE 1k % 7 17,802 25,405
Number of shares
R&G &R
2018
—F-)\%F
Shares [gv)
Weighted average number of ordinary 7~ [ B 8 17 % 8 i &9
shares in issue during the year I HE F 15 & 397,479,967 404,931,506
Earnings per share BRER
Basic and diluted (RMB) ERR#EHEARET) 0.04 0.06
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ’
B 1% S R fd &

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. % -BERRE

Leasehold Plantand  Furniture and Motor
improvements machinery fixtures vehicles Total
RENEEE  HEREE  GAR%EE HRE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®Tn  AR®Tn  AR®Tn  AR%Tn  AR%ETRn
31 December 2019 20195127318
At 1 January 2019: 01951718 :
Cost B 1,856 3,153 1,055 4,253 10,317
Accumulated depreciation Zitine (946) (2,170) (881) (2,570) (6,567)
Net carrying amount REFE 910 983 174 1,683 3,750
At 1 January 2019, net of accumulated 520191818 »
depreciation NHREHE 910 983 174 1,683 3,750
Additions "E 640 894 534 284 2,352
Disposals & - (49) (3) (29) (80)
Depreciation provided during the year /17 & & & (K :56)
(note 6) (531) (526) (100) (498) (1,655)
At 31 December 2019, net of 20195128318 -
accumulated depreciation Nk2iHE 1,019 1,302 605 1,441 4,367
At 31 December 2019: R2019E 127318 :
Cost A 1,941 3,765 1,564 4,049 11,319
Accumulated depreciation 2i g (922) (2,463) (959) (2,608) (6,952)
Net carrying amount KEGE 1,019 1,302 605 1,441 4,367
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NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. WE BERSRHE®E)
(Continued)
Leasehold Plant and Furniture and Motor
improvements machinery fixtures vehicles Total
BENZEE BERES FRREE RE @i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARET T AEETT ARETR ARET T
31 December 2018 20185124318
At 1 January 2018; 201851418 :
Cost B 1,300 2,347 939 3,145 1731
Accumulated depreciation 2iE (658) (1,854) (834) (2:382) (5,728)
Net carrying amount REYE 642 493 105 763 2,003
At 1 January 2018, net of accumulated 720181418 +
depreciation NEZihE 642 493 105 763 2003
Additions NE 556 820 116 1,153 2,645
Acquisition of a subsidiary W -HHEAT - 15 - - 15
Disposals HE - @) - G) (7)
Depreciation provided during the year /37 & & f5 (Ff 6)
(note 6) (288) (341) 47) (230) (906)
At 31 December 2018, net of R018%5 125318 -
accumulated depreciation TREHFE 910 983 174 1,683 3,750
At 31 December 2018: R2018E12A318
Cost RA 1,856 3,153 1,055 4,253 10,317
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (946) (2,170) (881) (2,570) (6,567)
Net carrying amount BmFE 910 983 174 1,683 3,750
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1% S R fd &

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14. BEREE

Software
B4
RMB’000
AR® Tt
31 December 2019 201912 H31H
Cost at 1 January 2019, net of accumulated 72019F1 A1HH KA -
amortisation Wk BATEH 895
Additions = 3,345
Amortisation provided during the year (note 6) N IE B A (M 5E6) (750)
At 31 December 2019 201912 A31H 3,490
At 31 December 2019: MR2019F12A318 :
Cost DN 4,629
Accumulated amortisation REr#H (1,139)
Net carrying amount REFE 3,490
31 December 2018 201812 A31H
Cost at 1 January 2018, net of accumulated MR2018F1 A 1H BB A -
amortisation Mk B AT 19
Additions =T 982
Amortisation provided during the year (note 6) 9 # 5H B (P9 52e) (106)
At 31 December 2018 MR20184F12 A31H 895
At 31 December 2018: MR2018F12A318 ¢
Cost X AR 1,284
Accumulated amortisation Rt (389)
Net carrying amount BREFE 895
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

15. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

2019 2018
=kl T \F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARE T SR

Share of net assets DRMEEFE 19,858 18,226

EREMHBCIINEYEEREMR AT (Hefei Zheng
Wen Bund Property Management Co., Ltd.) (“Hefei
Zheng Wen") and HEMEEYWE G R A F (Bengbu
Zhi Xin Property Co., Ltd.) are joint ventures of the
Group and are considered to be related parties of
the Group.

Particulars of the Group’s material joint venture are
as follows:

BETBRXIINENEEEBERAF (A
EBRXDEERTEEMEARAAR
AEEEE DR MR SR K E R R
5 e

BELENFERNOT:

Percentage of

1
Place and date of Ownership Voting Profit
Name registration Issued capital interest power  sharing Principal activities
£ EXHERAH ERTRE EEE T § REE JwEN IEXE
Hefei Zheng Wen Hefei, the PRC RMB30,000,000 50% 50% 50%  Property management
14 April 2004 services
=178 hEAE AR 30,000,007 50% 50% 50% NEEERE
200447148

Hefei Zheng Wen, which is considered a material
joint venture of the Group, is a strategic partner
of the Group engaged in property management
services and is accounted for using the equity
method.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTS
B RS IR AR Y EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

15. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(Continued)
The following table illustrates the summarised
financial information in respect of Hefei Zheng Wen
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies
and reconciled to the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements:

15. ARG LENKRE®)

TRINTEBEERXHNHBENBE -
EREARREMNEZEFELARY A
RAaPBHRRANEREESK:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt NG R
Cash and cash equivalents B MRS EEY 33,432 26,025
Other current assets HiRE&EE 32,645 50,353
Current assets mENEE 66,077 76,378
Non-current assets EMBEE 14,192 838
Other current liabilities Hit R aE& (50,422) (50,026)
Current liabilities mEAE (50,422) (50,026)
Net assets BEFE 29,847 27,190
Reconciliation to the Group's interest EIREB RN & & ¥ K
in the joint venture: 1 2 R
Proportion of the Group's ownership 7N & & 7 16 BT & # Lt {71 50% 50%
Group's share of net assets of the joint 7N % & fE {5 & &
venture, and carrying amount of the (¥ ZEEFEM
investment KEREE 14,924 13,595
Revenue W 2z 81,083 81,846
Depreciation and amortisation Pr & B 5N 819 202
Tax i 18 3,230 2,289
Profit and total comprehensive F NE A &
income for the year 2 s B 5 6,658 7,658
Dividend received* 2R B* 2,000 1,250
* Dividend received represented the amount the Company * BWREIERAATEGEBE X BIARE -

received from Hefei Zheng Wen.
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“NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

15. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 15. ®
(Continued)
The following table illustrates the financial
information of the Group’s joint venture that is not
individually material:

EELENRE )

TREHIAKEHEHBERFEEANG ZE D
XM E R

2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB"000
ARE T N v
Share of the joint venture’s profit for FRDEAE LD ER
the year and total comprehensive wmANEEEK S AR
income 1,753 1,652
Carrying amount of the Group’s REEBREGETLERED
investment in the joint venture FREE 4,934 4,631
16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 16. RBELENRE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-NF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARE Tt NS R
Share of net assets DhMEEFE 67,700 40,232
Goodwill on acquisition Uy B B P 15,315 1,051
83,015 41,283

EBRFMEEBRBE AR AT (Shanghai Dong
Fang Xin Di Commercial Services Co., Ltd.) (“Shanghai
Xin Di"), E/B®REYEBRAF (Shanghai Qiang
Sheng Property Co., Ltd.) (“Shanghai Qiang Sheng”),
BEMBMESMEETEBRAA (Ningbo Plaza
Property Management Co., Ltd.) (“Ningbo Plaza”),
ZROE Y EE R B R QA (Anhui Pu Bang
Property Management Co., Ltd.) (“Anhui Pu Bang”),
EBFMICEEBREER LA (Shanghai Xin
Shi Bei Enterprise Management Services Co., Ltd.)
(“Shanghai Xin Shi Bei”)*, #&/IHR{E B &1 H R
2 A] (Fuzhou Puxin Information Technology Co., Ltd.)
("Fuzhou Puxin”) are associates of the Group and are
considered to be related parties of the Group.

* Shanghai Xin Shi Bei was acquired with the consideration
of RMB27,500,000 in August 2019. Further details of
the acquisition are disclosed in Note 32 to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1% S R fd &

16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Particulars of the Group’s material associate are as

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

16. REBE XN RE(H)
AEBEEZHEOENFBODN:

follows:
Percentage of
Place and date of Ownership Profit
Name registration Issued capital interest sharing  Principal activities
£ EXHERAM BETRA FERRE: AMEEN TEXH
Anhui Pu Bang Anhui, the PRC RMB20,000,000 49% 49%  Property management
4 August 2015 services
REBA TEZH AR 20,000,000 49% 49% NEEERHK
2015F8A4H

Anhui Pu Bang, which is considered a material
associate of the Group, acts as a strategic partner of
the Group providing property management services
and is accounted for using the equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised
financial information in respect of Anhui Pu Bang
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies
and reconciled to the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements:

ZREARERASENEER 2D
X RAKHEHREHRYETIE RSO B
BIERA  XRABEEAR-

TRINTEBLRBBHANMBEERHE -
EREARREMNERELARY M
RAMBHRRAMEKEESK:

2019 2018

—E—-hE —E—N\F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR Tt INGE S

Cash and cash equivalents RELREFEY 11,009 6,639
Other current assets EmrEgh&E 11,479 8,889
Current assets mEEE 22,488 15,528
Non-current assets EMEBEE 3,841 776
Other current liabilities B nsa’ (13,629) (9,994)
Current liabilities mENBE (13,629) (9,994)
Net assets BEFE 12,700 6,310
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)  16.
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the

REBEEENRE @)
EASERBECENERHK:

associate:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB"000
AR% Tt NS R
Proportion of the Group's ownership 72N & B BT 16 BT & #E Lt ) 49% 49%
Group's share of net assets of the AEERELEBELEEE
associate and carrying amount of FEMKREREE
the investment 6,223 3,092
Revenue W & 29,627 24,587
Interest income FE WA 68 44
Depreciation and amortisation 1 B 5 37 35
Tax IR 2,072 820
Profit and total comprehensive FAEMNRZ2EK B
income for the year 7,390 2,437
Dividend received* 2R B+ 490 —
* Dividend received represented the amount the Company * BEWBRESEARARRBLEBBRINKRE -

received from Anhui Pu Bang.

The following table illustrates the aggregate
financial information of the Group’s associates that

are not individually material:

Share of the associates’ profits for
the year and total comprehensive
income

Aggregate carrying amount of
the Group’s investments in the
associates

FADEBELED
o A N 2 U AR R

AEERBELEKREDN
RmEAaE

TREJNAEE@ERFEEXNH
ENERTBER:

2019
—E-hF

RMB’000
AR TR

3,261

76,972

bt MK AN
i

2018
—T-N\F

RMB'000
ARBTT

6,113

38,191
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NOTES TO FINANCIAIj STATEMENTS'
B RS IR AR Y EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

17. EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED 17. EERAFEFAHEMEZE K E
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER WREARE

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2019 2018
=N T \F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T NS R

Equity investments designated EERAFETA

at fair value through other Hitt2HE W &= N

comprehensive income RA&RE
Unlisted equity investments, FLETERAKRE -

at fair value %N FEE
URF Holding Group Limited URF Holding Group Limited 5,590 —
Jiangcheng Hujiang Lianfeng IWMEIBMERERMEER

Agriculture Technology Co., Ltd. i /NE 700 700
Shanghai Guotao Real Estate Co., Ltd* EBBlEEEGR A A)* 1,500 1,500
Impairment BE (1,500) (1,500)

6,290 700

The above equity investments were irrevocably Lt RAELEE DA HE 48 E R A F

designated at fair value through other Bt AR 2EKZ  RARAEER

comprehensive income as the Group considers these RZEREBFRBEMEE -

investments to be strategic in nature.

* Shanghai Guotao Real Estate Co., Ltd. did not generate * FEBREEHMEARAR L HEEEEMEK
any revenue and it had ceased to operate any business & B E00F R IEKEEMEKEE
including property management services since 2010. As MEBTRERS) - Bt EEE2HEE -
such, full impairment had been made.

18. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 18. HittFREBEE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ENSL T

Prepayment related to an acquisition — E2— I BB ERE 1Y

(note) & A R E (Bt =) 30,000 —
Note: The balance represents a non-refundable prepayment for MaE: SR IEH F40b) Tt EZ R EWE EE
the proposed acquisition of an equity interest, which is B 7N A] 3R AR FE AT KB o

described in note 40(b).

BT B AR AR
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

19.

20.

"NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVENTORIES 19. 8

2019 2018
S Nl =~
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREF T
Consumables SH 7 168 284

TRADE RECEIVABLES 20. ESEWRIE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR Tt INGE R
Trade receivables Z 5 E W TE 101,030 83,083
Impairment VERIER (847) (140)
100,183 82,943

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are
mainly on credit. The credit period is generally
10 days, extending up to three months for major
customers. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and has a credit
control department to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and
the fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate
to a large number of diversified customers, there
is no significant concentration of credit risk. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

228 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTS'

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

B RS IR AR Y EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

20. EZRWFREAE)

RBEHR BHERFBAREZBH
WK & B BB RRE DT

2019 2018

—E-hE —E-N\F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR Tt NG R

Within 1 year 1N 97,831 80,595
Over 1 year B BF 2,352 2,348
100,183 82,943

The movements in the loss allowance for
impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

EZRRRBREEEREBEEZSHUT

2019 2018

—z-n+ EEEENE

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®E Tt N B

At beginning of year R E A 140 —
Impairment losses (note 6) o 18 &5 18 (B 7t6) 707 140
At end of year JINEZSN 847 140

An impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date using a provision matrix to measure
expected credit losses. The provision rates are
based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e.,
by geographical region, product type, customer
type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit
or other forms of credit insurance). The calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions. Generally, trade
receivables are written off if past due for more
than one year and are not subject to enforcement
activity.

REREAMERABEGEREETRED
- At ERMEEER - BEXIIAE
REFBRUBEBERA (AR E RS -
EmBi FEFRURFH URER
EREMPANEERBRES D) K
ZEXEFPOMANNBHMBEHETE - &
AAERRIAETMBELER BEERKER
RBEBHABHERBESER  E5
AR B R AR R TR B & 7R N R 5
B —ME BZEWKANEH
B —FRFAME  BHAXRN®E
HEITIES o

LR AR AR
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NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20. EZEWNIE(E)
Set out below is the information after excluding the TXEHVWEHEASEFERAEEREENE
above effect about the credit risk exposure on the SRWFEMRAXNEERRE B (K
Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix: Wbk Lt 2 2) -
As at 31 December 2019 A2019%F12A31H

Expected Gross 2019
credit loss carrying Expected
rate amount credit losses
20194

BAHREE AHEE
BREE fRE A E | F ]
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR®BFR

Within 1 year 16 A 0.07% 97,831 77
Over 1 years BB 1F 24.07% 3,199 770
101,030 847

Expected Gross 2018

credit loss carrying Expected

rate amount credit losses

20184F

HEEE EHEE

BEE FRE&E & 18

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBTT

Within 1 year 1A 0.07% 80,595 56
Over 1 years BB 3.37% 2,488 84
83,083 140
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B RS IR AR Y EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

21. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 21. ENRIER H B R IE
RECEIVABLES

2019 2018

TE AT i
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T NSRRI

Prepayments to suppliers BT ERg SR IE 9,774 12,090
Payments on behalf of residents REER XM
(note (a)) KIE (Kt 3E @) 23,250 15,577
Cash in advance BEXHEE 974 1,388
Deposits oA 8,927 6,773
Prepaid expenses X 1,309 677
Prepayment related to a potential FRAEREWBEERN
acquisition (note (b)) T8 15 3k 38 (B 5% (b)) — 10,000
Amount due from a related party JE Uk B8 B 5 sk IE 2,465 1,700
Others H 1,655 13,928
48,354 62,133
Notes: B 3E
(@ The balance represents payments for property (a) HBEREXERIVEETERBIMAOR
management services on behalf of residents. I8
(b)  The balance represents a refundable deposit for a by #HHEERFAUWEFTENATRERS -
proposed acquisition, which bears interest at a rate of 8% 8% B A X 5 8 W B W KM ZF18F
and has been transferred to long-term prepayment for Bz kBEEERPEMNKE-

acquisition as described in note 18.

The financial assets included in the above balances FFALM SRR EE S RITBRY
relate to receivables and prepayments for which EHALE SN EKFKIEREN
there was no recent history of default and past due 3K IE o 7A20194F K2018F12A31H « /&
amounts. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the BEETUEBEN -

loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

BT B AR AR
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NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

22. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES 22. Z PR %R 1T 4 B8R
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT—\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETF T
Restricted bank balances received WERBERME
from residents for property EERBH
management services X PRl R 1T 45 £ 14,113 11,107

Restricted bank balances earn interest at interest
rates stipulated by the respective financial
institutions. The restricted bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent

history of default.

23.

WEALTH MANAGEMENT PRODUCTS

23.

ERERITERBESREET T
KRIAE - XERBIRITER D FRE
EE R KRBT B RS ERHYERTT o

g
i}
TR
5
i
Zn

Wealth management products

f

EEEEM

2019 2018
5l T \F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T NSRRI
5,000 1,000

The wealth management products have a term
of less than one year and an expected annual
rate of return of 3.7% (2018: 3.7%). Pursuant to
the underlying contracts or notices, the wealth
management products are principal protected upon

the maturity date.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENT'S'
B RS IR AR Y EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 2. RATFEFABENEREE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2019 2018
—E-AEF —ET-N\F
RMB’000 RMB"000
ARE Tt NS R
Other unlisted investments, at fair HMIELMRE
value (R FEE) — 84,527
The above unlisted investments at 31 December it R2018F12A31MBMIE LMK E A
2018 were wealth management products issued in EHRBEAMETHMEEREE®R AR
Mainland China. They were mandatorily classified as HAENRenEXFERRE LN BN
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as MR EFERCRIMESERRA
their contractual cash flows are not solely payments FTEHFAFAEZNSREE °
of principal and interest.
25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25. BERBEESEEY
2019 2018
—E-AEF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB"000
ARE Tt NS R
Cash and bank balances W& RIRWITEHEER 143,557 80,481

At the end of the reporting period, the cash
and bank balances of the Group denominated
in RMB amounted to RMB124,804,000 (2018:
RMB54,820,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

RBEHR  AEBUAREFENR
& R ITH B B AR K124,804,0007T
(20184 : A R#54,820,0007T) - A R ¥
THEEBRABAEMER - AW BIE
PR INEE IR GO R A IE - BEE
ENEERRTE AEBEABEAERE
KEIINEEBHRITHEARBLBR AR
ftb & % o

BEHRRBTNESEEARTERAE
87 B I R BORF B o 3R 174 8 T I
PSR B T R AR B HE R AR AR MV R 1T o

BT B AR AR
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NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

26. TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the
end of the reporting periods, based on the invoice

date, is as follows:

26. EZENFRE
RFERR EHENHEBREZHE
M

B B B 0

2019 2018

=kl —Z\F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR Tt N R

Within 3 months 3E AN 71,905 49,070
3 to 12 months 321218 A 2,865 2,064
Over 1 year HBEF 153 1,909
74,923 53,043

The trade payables are unsecured, non-interest-
bearing and are normally settled on terms of 5 to

90 days.

27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

EH5RNRBEAERT 2ELT—HBMA
S5E90KRHIAH o

27. HttENRERETER

2019 2018

kN T \F

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

ii¥za ARE T N R

Contract liabilities EHaE (a) 6,640 5,750

Staff payroll and welfare payables & T T & N 4& Fl

J& 5 I8 9,968 9,002

Deposits received B EZ & 10,610 7,531

Receipts on behalf of residents REBERRKK (b) 29,378 28,546

Maintenance funds HwEE — 2,996

Other tax payable H b & B 18 12,092 11,283
Payable for acquisition of an W B — B 1 3

associate JE S 38 () 6,875 —

75,563 65,108
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B 1% S R fd &

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 27. HWERREREFTEH(H)
(Continued)
Notes: B 5 -
(@)  Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (a) AHBEHFBWOT:

2019 2018

= —F-N\EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBETT

Short-term advances received from customers B 4 & 42 8] # 51

Property management services "% E B R 6,640 5,750
Total contract liabilities sEHaERE 6,640 5,750
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to EHNEEREDHRRERYEETE RS K
deliver property management services. PSR-

(b)  The balance represents receipts from building residents to (b) HHEMBFERUMOHKXBEBURKRES
settle utilities, bills, maintenance and repair fees on behalf EELARAXRE RE -RELBKBEER-
of them.

() The balance represents the outstanding payments related (0 #HHpEHEKBELSFMILBEOKRE
to the acquisition of Shanghai Xin Shi Bei, The acquisition B OR I8 o 3% TH UL B 2019688 = K o

was completed in August 2019.

Other payables and accruals are unsecured, non- HENRBELEAERAREER &
interest-bearing and repayable on demand. BRARERFFEE -
28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS 28. ;T ERITER
2019 2018
—E-NEF ZE-N\F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) RMB'000 rate (%) RMB'000
BERFX BB M E
(%) AR®Tx (%) ARBFT
Bank loans — unsecured BITER — BER
and unguaranteed K EER 4.00-6.00 61,515 5.00 20,000

BT B AR AR
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29. DEFERRED TAX
The movements in deferred tax assets during the
year are as follows:

NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. iE fE % 1/

BELERBEEERFANESHNOT

Deferred tax assets EEBHIEEE
Losses
available for
offsetting
against
future
taxable Accrued
profits payroll  Impairment Others* Total
TR
ARERHK
BRNESR EIE HE Hit* )
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETRT ARETRT ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2018 #2018%1818 - 1,949 - 8,140 10,089
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to RERA /(1B E)
profit or loss during the year BRMETHE
(note 10) (Ht3E10) — (1,949) 35 (8,140) (10,054)
At 31 December 2018 and 2018512 A318 &
at 1 January 2019 1201951818 - — 3 — 35
Deferred tax charged to profitor ~ RERNBEEHEH
loss during the year (note 10) I 5 5t 78 (W 510) - - 177 - 177
At 31 December 2019 120194124318 - — 212 — 212
* Others represent deferred tax assets recognised in trade * Hh R REEB IO EDAREERB B

payables for unsettled service charges to dispatch agencies
or sub-contractors.

236 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

RERNBESENREEINEEREEE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTS

29. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets (Continued)
The Group had tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
RMB17,745,000 as at 31 December 2019 (2018:
RMB13,132,000) that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose.

The Group also had tax losses arising in Mainland
China of RMB27,928,000 as at 31 December 2019
(2018: RMB18,230,000), that will expire in one
to five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised.

The movements in deferred tax assets during the
year are as follows:

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group,
the applicable rate is 10% (2018:10%). The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008.

B RS IR AR Y EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

29. i JE BIE (&)

EEHEEE (&)

R2019F 128318 - AEBEETEE AL
i 78 B 1B A R %17,745,0007T (20184 :
A R #13,132,0007T) © A EEBR HA A AR 3R
HELEBEMNARKNRRERDGEF -

2019F 128318 AE B A EHE R
HE A B IE B B A K %27,928,0007T
(20184 : A R#18,230,0007T) * # % —
ERFAEE  TAREHERKRERS

i A e

HRZEEEDRAEERE —BREHN
MEBAR  BRA/TAFEEERN
A AR S AR TR B 1R - [ Uk 3 B B X
FERMRELENEEE -

ELERAEERFANESNOT

BERBECEREHE - R E R K
VRN ECEARRAIIEREES IR
BR% B IR EE10% T M o 2 2K H2008
F1ATE & % - I @ A K20079F12 A
BNHBEREENRT - BINEEEEMB
AAEREPEANEREHE - INE
REEMNERAREENMRE -HAEHE
Mms - @AHBEEAE10% (20184 : 10%) °
Eit ARPEAMKIOZEMNER
AIFLE2008F 1 ATEHEELNEF TS
KR E - AREBAZMBN -
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

29.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets (Continued)

At 31 December 2019, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China (2018: Nil). In the
opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these
subsidiaries and joint ventures will distribute such
earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China

"NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. iF fE IR ()

EEHEEE (&)

2019 12A318 - W EHR AR EER
B A b AR S A BT B R B A R BE A
(BB RE) M e~ A T8 05 1 3R
BEERIEQOISF - E) - EEREB  #%
EMBARREECENIAAERAE
R IKEBBAEF - H2019F12 31
H MABREERESGEHORFERA
B AR ENHBEERZES £
A AN R %92 488,0007T (20184 : A R
76,114,0007T) °

for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised was approximately RMB92,488,000 as at
31 December 2019 (2018: RMB76,114,000).

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. A
2019 2018
sl T \F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®S Tt NG R
Authorised: EE
8,000,000,000 shares 8,000,000,000 % & %
of HK$0.01 each M E0.017%8 T A R% 19
(2018: 8,000,000,000 shares (20184 : 8,000,000,000
of HK$0.01 each) % & X T E0.017%8 7T /Y
A7) 70,096 70,096
Issued and fully paid: BETRHRE:
405,000,000 shares 405,000,000 8% & A%
of HK$0.01 each M E0.017%8 T A % 17
(2018: 405,000,000 shares (20184 : 405,000,000 A%
of HK$0.01 each) E R EE0.0178 7T /Y
A7) 3,391 3,391
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31. RESERVES
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current year and prior
years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity of the financial statements.

(i)

(i)

Share premium

The share premium of the Group represents
the difference between capital injection and
the share capital paid by the Controlling
Shareholders.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represents (1)
the difference between the consideration and
net assets acquired paid by the Controlling
Shareholders for the further acquisition of
non-controlling interests in subsidiaries; (2)
the difference between the consideration
received by the Controlling Shareholders and
the net assets disposed of for the partial
disposal of certain subsidiaries; and (3) the
difference between the consideration received
by the Controlling Shareholders and net
assets acquired under common control for the
acquisition of equity interests in subsidiaries.

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the
movements therein for the current year and
prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.

.

B RS IR AR Y EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

31. RE
REBRAFERBAFTENFEBESE
REBHRUMBERERNGEEER
KREF o

(i) R&2EE
AEBOEDEERTERER
BRIXNHEARZENEE -

(i) EXREB
AEENEAREFEENZERBKRR
RE-—FZHRBHBARMNIFEEZERK
1 5 M S N EY (B B AT IR B0 0%
BEZEMEZR: QERBRRE
DHEETHE AR WD MR ER
HENFEEZHNEZR: ROHE
P B R U BB P B A B A #E &
Y By B B[R AT U
MFEECHEMNER -

AEERANEFERBEFEN KB
TRNMEZEPRVBEBRRNES
RaEEBHRANES -
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F7 2019 239

= | '1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - ’




NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

31. RESERVES (Continued)
(iii) Merger reserve

(iv)

The merger reserve of the Group represents
the capital contributions from the equity
holders of the subsidiaries. The addition
during the year represents (1) the injections
of additional paid-in capital by the equity
holders of the subsidiaries to the respective
companies; (2) the consideration paid by
the Controlling Shareholders for the further
acquisition of non-controlling interests in
subsidiaries; and (3) the consideration paid by
the Controlling Shareholders for repayment of
the consideration received in the progress of
Reorganisation. The deduction during the year
represents the consideration received by the
Controlling Shareholders for disposal of the
subsidiaries in the progress of Reorganisation.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the PRC regulations and
the articles of association of the companies of
the Group, before distributing the net profit of
each year, companies of the Group registered
in the PRC are required to set aside 10% of
their statutory reserve net for the year after
offsetting any prior year's losses as determined
under relevant PRC accounting standards
to the statutory surplus reserve fund. When
the balance of this reserve reaches 50% of
each company’s share capital, any further
appropriation is optional. The statutory surplus
reserve fund is non-distributable except in the
event of liquidation.

Subject to certain restrictions set out in the
relevant PRC regulations, part of the statutory
surplus reserve may be converted to increase
share capital, provided that the remaining
balance after the capitalisation is not less than
25% of the registered capital.
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(iv)

AEENAHFHEEBEERENB AR
REFAANLE - FREMEQ)
MEARWEDZRFAEARERAQT
BINEAE B A 2 F B AR
phifE — UL RE B B A A Y SR HE X
RaDNORE: RQ)ERBERS
EEHEBEHABRERERNREM
AT ERAE o F AR R 2 R
R ERABRETHENE AR MK
B R AE -

& E f#

RIBEHBER R AEBEE T REH
MEERAR - BF2OFNEA -
AEBEFBEEMNRERIEER
TREEFERMRERBEEFNE
BR AEBEFEEATFRHB
MI0%EEERBAEE  HEZX
RHEEESRARAN50%LE
EREBIERLZFTER -
EEBB A AADIK 0 BRIEH
£ -

AR ELE R E TRHERBET -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTS

31. RESERVES (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve is used to
record exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of the
subsidiaries with functional currencies other
than RMB.

Shares held for share award scheme
On 30 August 2018, the Company announced
to adopt the share award scheme (the
“Scheme"”) with objectives to recognise the
contribution by certain employees and give
incentives thereto in order to motivate them
for the continual operation and development
of the Group and to attract suitable personal
for further development of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2019,
8,218,000 shares were purchased by the
trustee from the market at an average price
of approximately HK$2.43 (equivalent to
RMB2.18) per share, with an aggregate
amount of HK$20,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB17,917,000). No shares were granted to
eligible employees pursuant to the Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2019. At
the end of the reporting period, there were
8,218,000 shares held by the trustee.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board of Directors
may, from time to time, at its absolute
discretion cause to be paid to the trustee sums
of money from the Company’s resources for
the purchase of shares to be held on trust in
accordance with the Scheme and the trust
deed. Such sums of money shall be applied
towards the purchase of the specific number
of shares from the open market according
to the written instructions of the Board of
Directors.

B RS IR AR Y EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

31. & (®)

(v)

(vi)

EREBREEANCERED L
ERBARBUINEEHHE QR
M HRRMEENELZR -

mROERBTEFENRSG

2018F8H30H © AR Al E M K
Mm—IERNDEBEE(T5E] - %
EMmEBEmASER TEEMED
WERBRGETESTEE A
BRERBLERERASEH: RIK
SIEEABARE—TERAEH o

H E209FNRA3MHEFE ¥
AARTFHEREBRN243E T
(MBERARB218T) RN ™ 5 E
A8,218,000 Il fh - # & B A
20,000,000 T(H &8 N A R &
17,917,0007T) ° 7 # £20195F12H
BNEILEFERN - MMERGOBEZ
EIRTEERER - RBREHK -
8,218,000k IR A FEAHF A ©
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NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

32. ACQUISITION OF AN ASSOCIATE 32. WIBE—BHME L

On 31 August 2019, the Group acquired a 27.5%
interest in Shanghai Xin Shi Bei from a third party.
Shanghai Xin Shi Bei is engaged in the business
of property management services. The acquisition
was made as part of the Group’s strategy to
expand its market share of property management
services in Shanghai. The purchase consideration
for the acquisition was in the form of cash, with

R2019F8A31H ' AEE B E = i
FgFHmIL275% = o EFF IR
EMEEEREES - ZBREIHASE
EREAHEELETMYEESERBITED
BHEEEN—IH5 WENBERE
NWIRE R ERAR13,750,000
TR EER BT - 2 TA K ¥6,875,000
TLR2019F11 A26 8 X i ©

RMB13,750,000 paid at the acquisition date and

the remaining RMB6,875,000 paid on 26 November

2019.

RKEREE LML &R EE &

The fair values of the identifiable assets and

liabilities of Shanghai Xin Shi Bei as at the date of BEAFEWNT:
acquisition were as follows:
Fair Value
recognised
on
acquisition
U =g
BRHAFHE
RMB'000
ANR®EF T
Property, plant and equipment Mx - BWEKR&E 6,258
Intangible assets BEAE 917
Customer relationship BPE IR 28,320
Cash and bank balances HWe NIRTHEES 92,340
Trade receivables 2 5 WK IE 15,948
Prepayments and other receivables Ta TR K B A fE Y FR 1A 7,747
Trade payables 5N RIA (45,327)
Accruals and other payables FEEt B B & H th JE 3R (38,156)
Tax payable J& 1~ %5 18 (1,055)
Deferred tax liabilities BT IBEE (7,425)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BATFEGFTESNAER
BEFEER 59,567
Non-controlling interests FEVE R A (11,435)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEEE FT{h P A R ) 27.5%
Shares of identifiable net asset at fair value DIEREAFEFENTHA
BEFE 13,236
Goodwill on acquisition W R e 14,264
Satisfied by cash AR & A+ 27,500
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33.

34.

NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMEN
B RS IR AR Y EE
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

ACQUISITION OF AN ASSOCIATE 32. WiE— BB E D E(E)

(Continued)

The Group incurred transaction costs of AEBERUBEEEERINAARE
RMB189,000 for this acquisition. These transaction 189,0007C c Z FEXRHHK A X 8+ W
costs have been expensed and are included AR EEERAMNITRAS -

in administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED 3. FEBHERERMT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Changes in liabilities arising from METHELENEEED
financing activities
Interest-
bearing
bank loans
and interest
FERITER
RFE
RMB"000
ANR¥EF T
2019 20194
At 1 January 2019 201941 H1H 20,000
Changes from financing cash flows MEREREH 39,839
Interest expense MERAX 1,676
At 31 December 2019 72019412 A31H 61,515
2018 20185
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1H 5,000
Changes from financing cash flows MEREREZE 14,610
Interest expense B R X 390
At 31 December 2018 72018 12 A31H 20,000
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 34. AIAREE
As at the end of the reporting period, the Group RBERR  AEBALESERKAEE -

had no significant contingent liabilities.

BT B AR AR
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NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

35. COMMITMENTS 35. &IE
(a) The Group had the following capital (a) RBEHR AEBBEEUTER
commitments at the end of the reporting HHE
period:
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%S Tt NG R
Contracted, but not provided for: BEEIH B REE
Acquisition of a subsidiary Y iEg —FWE AT 61,800 —
(b) Operating lease commitments as at (b) R2018F12A31HMKEHE

31 December 2018

The Group leased certain of its office under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for office
were negotiated for terms of around three
years.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

AR
AEEREELEHELZHEEH
ETHAZE - PAZEHENHEHY
RBMER=FLH-

M2018F12A31H » A E B R 1B+~
AR TH & M AR R K EN
MREBEMREENT:

follows:
2018
2018
RMB'000
ARETF T
Within one year —F R 2,036
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

Particulars of the related parties which entered
into material transactions with the Group are
as follows:

Name Relationship
=x B &

B RS IR AR Y EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

36. BBt AR S

(a)

AEEEWE S TLERZHH
HEMT

Referred to as
&8

EBHmZEBEREABMRAT  Controlled by the Controlling Shareholders ~ Shanghai Gaoze

F 22 S P BR 4%

Transaction with a related party, other than
those already disclosed elsewhere in the
financial statements:

Cash advances

(b)

EERE
HEBINZXS(ERNMBHREAAE
i 30 75 3 58 & BR A1)

RHeBR

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARE Tt NG S

Related parties 2 Bt
Shanghai Gaoze FemE

(765) (1,700)

BT B AR AR
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(Continued)

(¢) Due from a related party:

NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

36. BEE AR B (&)

(0)

& Wi 768 Bt 05 R

2019
ZE-NF

RMB’000
AR®TR

Shanghai Gaoze

LERE

2,465

2018
—F-N\F

RMB'000
AREEF T

1,700

The amount due from Shanghai Gaoze is
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed

payment terms.

B EEBRERBADEEAR 2

BN EE RN o

(d) Compensation of key management personnel d) AEEZEZEEEABTH:
of the Group:

2019 2018

=kl —ZT\F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARE T NG

Short term employee benefits R R A 2,654 3,053

Post-employment benefits RIKEE T 323 263
Total compensation paid to key ENFEZEEEBAER

management personnel e 2,977 3,316

Further details of directors’ and the chief
executive’s emoluments are included in note 8

to the financial statements.

246 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

EENSRTBRAENME 8 E —
BTN T RRM ES -



o = - | 4 L]
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Br RS R MY RE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 37. ZEEE»emIA
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of REBEHRR SENERITANKEEB
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting W

period are as follows:

2019 2019
Financial assets EMEE

Financial assets
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income
BATLERTA
Hip2EB &N
Financial assets
Equity at amortised
investments cost
g ¥
B A B #
RERE tREE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBT T ARBTR

Equity investments at fair value through B A FEtAE M 2@

other comprehensive income R e RAKE 6,290 — 6,290
Trade receivables B 5 RN FIE — 100,183 100,183
Financial assets included in STARA AR EA

prepayments and other receivables ERFENEHEE — 37,271 37,271
Restricted bank balances IR IR 17 4 5 — 14,113 14,113
Wealth management products NEEREM — 5,000 5,000
Cash and cash equivalents BekBE2EEY — 143,557 143,557

6,290 300,124 306,414

BT B AR AR
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (Continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. REFEAPERM I AE)

2019 (Continued) 20194 (&)
Financial liabilities cRAas
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
BASTEN
cRMER
RMB’000
AR¥T
Trade payables 2 RN RIE 74,923
Financial liabilities included in other payables T CE A E S IR K
and accruals EErERANeRAasE 46,863
Interest-bearing bank loans FFERITER 61,515
183,301
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEME.NTS
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (Continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

37. REFS PRI AE)

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting I N
period are as follows:

2018 20184
Financial assets cREE

Financial assets

RBEMR SRR TANKEE

Financial assets at fair value
at fairvalue  through other
through profit or  comprehensive
loss income
BATE
BRRTE FARMEE
STABRD gt
eREE PREE
Mandatorily Financial assets
designated as Equity at amortised
such investments cost Total
g £it
KA EN
BEMBET RARE THEE @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT  ARETRT  ARBTT  ARETR
Equity investments at fair value through EAFEFAEMEE
other comprehensive income KaEmRARE - 700 — 700
Trade receivables BHEWE - - 82,943 82,943
Financial assets included in SABRTREREM
prepayments and other receivables EURENGREE — - 26,009 26,009
Restricted bank balances XBHRTES - - 11,107 11,107
Wealth management products BEEREM — - 1,000 1,000
Financial assets at fair value through R AFEFABEH
profit or loss EREE 84,527 - - 84,527
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEN — - 80,481 80,481
84,527 700 201,540 286,767
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

37.

38.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (Continued)

"NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. REFEAPERM I AE)

2018 (Continued) 20184 (&)
Financial liabilities cRAas
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
2 5
ARG 2/
TRLEE
RMB'000
ARBT T
Trade payables 5 ENRIEA 53,043
Financial liabilities included in other payables AP EH AL E AT BOE R
and accruals EErERAMNemas 39,073
Interest-bearing bank loans AFEHRITER 20,000
112,116

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values
of cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank
balances, wealth management products, trade
receivables, trade payables, financial assets included
in prepayments and other receivables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals,
and interest-bearing bank loans approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the
finance manager is responsible for determining
the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The finance
manager reports directly to the chief financial
officer and the audit committee. At each reporting
date, the finance department analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved
by the chief financial officer. The valuation process
and results are discussed with the audit committee.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTS

B RS IR AR Y EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 3. e TEAENAFERAFEER
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL (&)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities cHMEERBENATEFABERER
are included at the amount at which the instrument AREBRIXRZ(BRIERIEERINF
could be exchanged in a current transaction RBMZITEAMBZCE - Het AT EE
between willing parties, other than in a forced RATHAERRKRK -
or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
The Group invests in unlisted investments, which AREBRENRFLTRE  ETFEAM
represent wealth management products issued by RITBITHMEEEER - AEEEK
banks in Mainland China. The Group has estimated AR REeRERERR  TERAEE
the fair value of these unlisted investments by using FEDLIG 3 N 3L B 1) T BT 35 Al R Ak 5 %
a discounted cash flow valuation model based on ZEILMBENQTFE-
the market interest rates of instruments with similar
terms and risks.
For the fair value of the unlisted equity investments HREAFTEFAEMEZEKREMIEL
at fair value through other comprehensive income, MRAKRE  EERECHEMERAH
management has estimated the potential effect of ERERAENEREB ABEZE
using reasonably possible alternatives as inputs to FEERME -
the valuation model.
Below is a summary of significant unobservable 3R B R2019%F 201812 A31H £ &t
inputs to the valuation of financial instruments TEBEZERTAEBEEHAZIRER
together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at ELHBRESTHHRE:
31 December 2019 and 2018:
Significant
Valuation unobservable Sensitivity of fair value
technique input (level 3) to the input
ERTAHEE
i AR
(EREES R0 (F=%) AV EHBABECHZRE
Equity investments Valuation Average EV/ 5% (2018:5%) increase/decrease
at fair value through multiples EBITDA in multiple would result in
other comprehensive multiple of increase/decrease in fair value
peers income by RMB290,000
(2018: RMB33,000)
BAFEAAHGBEZE HEEH [ 3 SF 9 EV/ S8 EF T #5% (20185 : 5%)

Yo B IR AR R &

EBITDAfE &

15 E A FE
#5038 A A B #290,0007T
(20184 : A R#33,0007T)
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BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial
instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2019

Equity investments designated at fair R A FEFAEMD

value through other comprehensive 2 E M &K R AKE

income

38. TR TAMNAFERAFEHER

(%)

RFESER
TRINASESRTANRFENE
S

BRFEAENEE:

R2019%12A31H

Fair value
measurement using
EATISEETALENE
Significant Significant
observable  unobservable
inputs inputs

(Level 2) (Level 3)
EAUBE BEAFRARE
BAYE BAHE
(B=#&) (B=R) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARE TR ARE TR

- 6,290 6,290
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTS'
B RS IR AR Y EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H
3. EMIAMAFERLAFEELR

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
As at 31 December 2018

(#&)

AFEERE)
R2018512A31H

Fair value
measurement using

ERATHRRETATENE

Significant Significant
observable unobservable
inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BAAEE EXRTAER
BAHE N6
(E-®,) (E=8) @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTR ARETT
Financial assets at fair value through A FEFAEBEH
profit or loss TREE 84,527 — 84,527
Equity investments at fair value through X A FEFAEMLEE
other comprehensive income W e RAKE — 700 700
84,527 700 85,227

The movements in fair value measurements within
Level 3 during the year are as follows:

FA - F=RANRXFEFELBHOT :

2019 2018
sl - \F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE Tt NG R
Equity investments at fair value BRAFEFAEMEE
through other comprehensive W IRAKRE
income
At 1 January M1A18 700 —
Purchases BE 5,590 700
At 31 December M12A318 6,290 700
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OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
cash and bank balances. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for
the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
receivables and trade payables, which arise directly
from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk
As the Group has no bank loans with floating
interest rate, there is no interest risk.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTS'

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland
China and nearly all transactions are conducted
in RMB. As nearly all of the Group’s assets and
liabilities were denominated in RMB, the subsidiaries
of the Company in Mainland China were not
subject to significant foreign currency risk. As at 31
December 2019, the Group’s assets and liabilities
denominated in HKD were mainly held by the
Company and certain subsidiaries incorporated
outside Mainland China which had HKD as their
functional currency, and the Group did not have
material foreign currency transactions in Mainland
China during the year.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy
that all customers who wish to trade on credit
terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad
debts is not significant. For transactions that are
not denominated in the functional currency of the
relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer
credit terms without the specific approval of the
Head of Credit Control.

B RS IR AR Y EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

9. IBEAMEEEFER BK(H)

Hh BE = Bz
AEBAEPEAMKEEBLBELTRE
E¥BUARBE -BARAEEL T
EEENBEYUYUAREE A2
7 B A /9 B B A B B 8 T BR & K AN
fE & % - 7W2019412831H » KN &£ & A
BILAENEERBEZZHARAR
e B i A SN GE B 32 B #8078 TE R
e EENAETHBARFEE  BERF
AN ANEETE R BRI E [ E K
RS

= & E b

AEBERERAREERTNE =
R REAKENREK  FABEHRIKRIE
EBRFTETRINEFALBEBBEE
ZERRF I AEEERHEERE
Wiger  MAKRBRERRARITERX °
MU IFABERLEEMNNEEBED
RHPME EAREEEZRIEREHR
EBRT  AEETSREEEMRNK -
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end

staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the
Group's credit policy, which is mainly based on past
due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging

classification as at 31 December.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts
for financial assets and the exposure to credit risk

for the financial guarantee contracts.

As at 31 December 2019

“NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H
0. I EMEEBEERBE(H)

2 By £ PR R 5K B B

TREAHRNZANEREBEAEBREER
REZENRBHEN KBIFEFTESE
AL E NI BG B ER - BIER)
MEEEZRMEERR LR UEEX

e *
PEER DR o

2R AEMEENFEHAENRY
BEREHEERR -

R2019%12A31H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
@A"Y
GEEBE 2HEHEERR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1E& FIRE E3IB RS @it
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRE AR¥Tn AR%Tn AR%Tn AR%Trn
Trade receivables* BHRYIE — - — 100,183 100,183
Financial assets included SARRAFER
in prepayments and Hpth e IER)
other receivables CREE
— Normal** — g 37,211 — - - 37,211
Restricted bank balances RREBTES
— Not yet past due —WARH 14,113 - — - 14,113
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEEN
— Not yet past due — WARH 143,557 - - - 143,557
Wealth management products HEEREm
— Not yet past due —WARH 5,000 - — - 5,000
199,941 - — 100,183 300,124
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI: STATEMENTS'

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end
staging (Continued)

B RS IR AR Y EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H
3. I ERMEEEERBEE)

B B b BR B2 5 K B BR (4)

As at 31 December 2018 M2018%12A31H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
EAES
FEEE cHEBEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1ER FRE 3R Bl HE @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETRT ARETR ARETR
Trade receivables* B o MR - - — 82,943 82,943
Financial assets included in STABRNFER
prepayments and E it KA
other receivables EREE
— Normal** — EE* 26,009 — — — 26,009
Restricted bank balances RREBTERS
— Not yet past due —HRBH 11,107 - - - 11,107
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEN
— Not yet past due —HRBH 80,481 - — - 80,481
Wealth management products MEERER
— Not yet past due — B AR 1,000 - - - 1,000
118,597 - - 82,943 201,540

* %

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the
simplified approach for impairment, information based on
the provision matrix is disclosed in note 20 to the financial
statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due
and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial
assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.

* MAEBMEBEXRAGLLENE S E KK
EHmMs ERBHEEESIENENREBK
MKW 20 E -

o FABNRE EMBERREREMGEE
MEeREENGEEZRN ARG ALSE
ANMKBEREER VAR AL KXEE N
MIEBATHRAIER] - BRI EREEN
EREERREARIARR] -

FRAASEESRERBMELENGEER
R a0 — S BCBUR  EMBHREM
20 B o
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31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 30. BEBEEEERBEEXE)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end
staging (Continued)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement
for collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are
managed by customer/counterparty, by geographical
region and by industry sector. There are no
significant concentrations of credit risk within the
Group as the customer bases of the Group's trade
receivables are widely dispersed in different sectors
and industries.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of
funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool.
This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g.,
trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans, and
other interest-bearing loans.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial
liabilities as at the end of each reporting period,
based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is

as follows:

(0]}
demand

RMB’000
ARBTR

39.

B RS IR AR Y EE

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

BHEEREEEERBEKE)

REBEEERE(E)
AEENESRABRSHRERRERA
MARBRRNARAENIBBFRDOT

As at 31 December 2019
RK2019%12A31H

Less than
3 months

PR=EA
RMB’000
ARBTR

3to
12 months

=%

T=@A
RMB’000
ARBTR

1to
5 years

Total

—E0fF
RMB*000
ARBTR

5t
RMB'000
ARETR

Interest-bearing bank loans it ERITER — 766 62,678 — 63,444

Trade payables BHRMNHIE 68,781 6,142 — — 74,923
Financial liabilities included in ~ F A E 4 B £
other payables and accruals A K& fE5f

ERAMESRAEE 46,863 — — — 46,863

115,644 6,908 62,678 — 185,230

As at 31 December 2018
720186124318
on Less than 3to 1to
demand 3 months 12 months 5 years Total
=F

®RER OSR=fA +ZEAR —ZEIF @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT ARB®TR ARBTR ARETR

Interest-bearing bank loans HERTER — 278 20,698 — 20,976

Trade payables BHENFIE 27,369 25,674 — — 53,043
Financial liabilities included in 5T A\ E 4t fE 1+
other payables and accruals I8 I fE 5T

ERMeREE 39,073 — — — 39,073

66,442 25,952 20,698 — 113,09

BT B AR AR
&3k 2019 259



OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern and to maintain
healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group
is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2019
and 31 December 2018.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is total debt divided by total equity. Total
debt includes interest-bearing bank loans. Capital
represents total equity.

"NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 9. IBEAMEEEER BKR(H)

EXERE
AEBEREENTIZANRRELRE
ERBKENRN  THFBROER
R BUAXBEXBERBERSRR
BE -

AEEEKERANESERBEEE
WERFBEREEEARBERELAE -
K FTREARE - MRFREERNK
BT - AEEHBEESTEMRMIND
Me hEY & AR E o B £2019F12A31H
K2018F12A3IBHILEFE EBELN
B BERIBBEIELRETMES -

AEBEEREAAGL X (BIREKK
MR EREN - BHEBEEFR
RITER - EAEERED -

2019 2018

ZE-NE —E—N\F

RMB’'000 RMB"000

ARE T NG R

Interest-bearing bank loans ATEHRITER 61,515 20,000
Total debt 18 (& 7% 61,515 20,000
Total equity BRI 239,566 239,743
Gearing ratio BEXRBELLE 25.7% 8.3%
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40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 40. R EH &S H#

(a) Evaluation on the impact of the 2019
Novel Coronavirus
Since the outbreak of the 2019 Novel
Coronavirus (“COVID-19") in January 2020 in
PRC, the Group has actively taken measures to
implement the regulations and requirements
posted by the local governments on
coronavirus epidemic prevention and control.

The Group expected the coronavirus outbreak
would have a certain temporary impact on its
business operation as the Group postponed
the resumption of operation following the
Chinese New Year holidays until 10 February
2020, which led to a one-week delay.
The Group expected that there will be no
significant impact on its revenue since the
Group mainly provides property management
services.

The Group will continue to pay attention on
the development of the coronavirus situation
and evaluate the impact on the financial
position and operation of the Group. As of the
issue date of this report, no significant adverse
impact has been identified.

(b) Acquisition of interest in Hongxin
Environment Group Company
Limited
On 31 January 2020, the Group acquired a
51% interest in Hongxin Environment Group
Company Limited (“Hongxin”), which provides
property management services. The purchase
consideration of RMB91,800,000 for the
acquisition was in the form of cash and was
fully paid in January 2020.

41. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS
Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified
to conform with the current year’s presentation.
In the opinion of the directors of the Group, this
presentation would better reflect the financial
performance of the Group.

41.

(@) 2019 BMREZ WL EFT 4

H2020F1H20195T & T Ak fm & &
& ([COVID-19)) £ B /& %5 DA 3k -
AN BTSSR EIE i EEE MK
T 2% 45 &) 75 B8 37 75 & 15 TE B AN %
HEER R ERK -

AEEERFTEEBESHEEL
BLEEAXA " TFTHNERTE AANK
SEKEHZEEIHEER 72020
F2H108 - BT -HENTEE -
RAEEXTERHMEERRYE
AEBEHEET@HHEKEE
EERTE -

AEBBESBINTRIBNE
B UWRFEEHAEEBEMKR
FIEENTE - HEARNRENEA
Bl mREREMEAINEE -

(b) WEBAMRBREEERRATH
&

202018318 + 28 5 [ Uk B 54 iR
RIEEBE AR AF (5K 51% #
o RARIEEYEETERIGER o
W B i B R (E A K %91,800,000
TLER2020F1 AR & 2RIt -

EEBEF
ETHRBFOEEFOH  LEAF
BZ2HE-—H - AKEEFRR XK
REFHAIE B RRAEE 2 P15 R
iF o
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OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial

NOTES Td FII\iANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS IR AR B AL

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H
42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 42. XQT BB AR R E

position of the Company at the end of the reporting N

period is as follows:

ARR R E M RA I MR E B

2019 2018
—ZE—-h#F —E-N\EF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR Tt INGE S
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEMEBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EMNBARIMIEE 59,535 59,535
CURRENT ASSETS mENE E
Amount due from a subsidiary NGRS 69,616 69,574
Prepayments, other receivables and AR RIE - HA
other assets EUWRIE N EMEE 18,660 13,524
Cash and cash equivalents B MR EEY 18,282 26,116
Total current assets RBEERE 106,558 109,214
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAE
Amount due to a subsidiary RN NI E ] 1,272 1,272
Interest-bearing bank loans FERITEN 4,515 —
Total current liabilities mEBERTE 5,787 1,272
NET CURRENT ASSETS mENEEFE 100,771 107,942
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT MEERTBAEE
LIABILITIES 160,306 167,477
Net assets BEEFE 160,306 167,477
EQUITY 1 2
Share capital A% 3,391 3,391
Reserves (note) it 5 (B 5E) 156,915 164,086
Total equity 1R 2 160,306 167,477
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

43.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 1% S R fd &

31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

42.

RAT M HAARR T (@)

Note: M 5F
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AABIEER R OT -
Exchange
Share fluctuation Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
ROEE ERREBHEE 2 ERA et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR F T AR¥EF T ARBTFT AREF T
Balance at 1 January 2018 R2018F 1 A1H & 4 & 180,782 (1,735) (8,223) 170,824
Final 2017 dividend declared B & k20174
RNEARR B (9,726) — — (9,726)
Interim 2018 dividend declared & & k20184
R (3,535) — — (3,535)
Total comprehensive loss for G A2 & 18 25
the year — — (4,813) (4,813)
Issue of shares EITRMD 6,264 — — 6,264
Exchange difference on BMEBINEBE
transaction of foreign EHEE
operations — 5,072 — 5,072
At 31 December 2018 and 1 M2018F 12 4318 &
January 2019 201961518 173,785 3,337 (13,036) 164,086
Final 2018 dividend declared 2 & k20184
RHEIRR B
Interim 2019 dividend declared & = k20194
R (2,903) — — (2,903)
Total comprehensive loss for A2 M & 18 8%
the year — — (4,613) (4,613)
Exchange difference on BREBINEBE
transaction of foreign EHEE
operations — 345 — 345
At 31 December 2019 2019412 A31H 170,882 3,682 (17,649) 156,915
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 43. L EM B HREK

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31

March 2020.

B 75 3R R 20203 A3 HEE & #
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“FIVE YEAFiS FfNANCIAL SUMMARY
AFMBRE

OPERATING RESULTS EEXE

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-hEF -\ ZE—+F ZE—RE —T-h#F
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
INGL-ES AREFTr AREFT AREFR ARET:R
Revenue g 481,530 392,258 363,303 309,268 293,029
Gross Profit ESy 1l 74,171 67,383 66,869 60,643 56,794
Profit for the year R F 20,481 26,240 36,167 30,536 35,482
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EE BEkER
For the year ended 31 December
BEE12A3MBLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-hE —EF-N\F ZE—+F ZE-RF CZT-LF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BTN ARXETrt AREFRT ARETT AREBFTn
Non-current assets ERBEE 147,232 64,889 62,442 52,900 33,504
Current assets RBEE 311,375 322,475 306,683 205,944 262,939
Total assets EEHE 458,607 387,364 369,125 258,844 296,443
Current liabilities RBEE 219,041 147,621 153,622 198,552 220,080
Net current assets FREBEEFE 92,334 174,854 153,061 7,392 42,859
Total assets less BEEBAER
current liabilities RBAE 239,566 239,743 215,503 60,292 76,363
Net assets EERE 239,566 239,743 215,503 60,292 76,363
Capital and reserves BAK 5
Share capital AR 3,391 3,391 3,349 — —
Reserves i 224,842 227,698 206,905 56,271 71,276
228,233 231,089 210,254 56,271 71,276
Non-controlling FEERER
interests 11,333 8,654 5,249 4,021 5,087
Total equity wmER 239,566 239,743 215,503 60,292 76,363
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